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RESPONSIBLE MINISTRY FOR GOVERNMENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISES,
ORGANIZATIONS, TRUSTS & MISCELLANEOUS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ministry of Agriculture and Food/Rural Affairs
AgriCorp
Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario

Ministry of the Attorney General
Legal Aid Ontario
The Public Guardian and Trustee for the Province of Ontario

Ministry of Citizenship and Immigration
Ontario Immigrant Investor Corporation

Ministry of Economic Development and Growth/Research, Innovation and Science
Ontario Capital Growth Corporation

Ministry of Education
Education Quality and Accountability Office
Ontario Educational Communications Authority (TV Ontario)
Ontario French-Language Educational Communications Authority

Ministry of Energy
Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc.
Fair Hydro Trust
Hydro One Limited
Independent Electricity System Operator
Ontario Energy Board
Ontario Power Generation Inc.

Ministry of the Environment and Climate Change
Ontario Clean Water Agency

Ontario Climate Change Solutions Deployment Corporation (Green Ontario Fund)

Ministry of Finance
Deposit Insurance Corporation of Ontario
Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario
Liquor Control Board of Ontario
Losses Deleted from the Accounts
Motor Vehicle Accident Claims Fund
Ontario Cannabis Retail Corporation
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation
Ontario Financing Authority
Ontario Lottery and Gaming Corporation
Ontario Securities Commission
Pension Benefits Guarantee Fund
Provincial Judges Pension Fund
Revenue Remissions

Ministry of Infrastructure
General Real Estate Portfolio
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation (Infrastructure Ontario)
Toronto Waterfront Revitalization Corporation (Waterfront Toronto)
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RESPONSIBLE MINISTRY FOR GOVERNMENT BUSINESS ENTERPRISES,
ORGANIZATIONS, TRUSTS & MISCELLANEOUS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care
Cancer Care Ontario
eHealth Ontario
Local Health Integration Network — Central
Local Health Integration Network — Central East
Local Health Integration Network — Central West
Local Health Integration Network — Champlain
Local Health Integration Network — Erie St. Clair
Local Health Integration Network — Hamilton Niagara Haldimand Brant
Local Health Integration Network — Mississauga Halton
Local Health Integration Network — North East
Local Health Integration Network — North Simcoe Muskoka
Local Health Integration Network — North West
Local Health Integration Network — South East
Local Health Integration Network — South West
Local Health Integration Network — Toronto Central
Local Health Integration Network — Waterloo Wellington
Ontario Agency for Health Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario)
Ornge

Ministry of Labour
Workplace Safety and Insurance Board

Ministry of Municipal Affairs / Housing
Ontario Mortgage and Housing Corporation

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry
Algonquin Forestry Authority
Forest Renewal Trust

Ministry of Northern Development and Mines
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation
Ontario Northland Transportation Commission

Ministry of Tourism, Culture and Sport
The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology (Ontario Science Centre)
Metropolitan Toronto Convention Centre Corporation
Niagara Parks Commission
Ontario Place Corporation
Ontario Tourism Marketing Partnership Corporation
Ontario Trillium Foundation
Ottawa Convention Centre Corporation
Province of Ontario Council for the Arts (Ontario Arts Council)
Science North
The Royal Ontario Museum
Toronto Organizing Committee for the 2015 Pan American and Parapan American Games (Toronto2015)

Ministry of Transportation
Metrolinx

Treasury Board Secretariat
Ontario Pension Board
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A GUIDE TO THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

1. SCOPE OF THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

The 2017-2018 Public Accounts of the Province of Ontario comprise the Annual Report and Consolidated
Financial Statements and three volumes:

Volume 1 contains ministry statements and detailed schedules of debt and other items. The ministry statements reflect
the financial activities of the government's ministries on the accrual basis of accounting, providing a
comparison of appropriations with actual spending. Ministry expenses include all expenses that are subject
to appropriation approved by the Legislative Assembly, but exclude adjustments arising from consolidation
of government organizations whose expenses are not appropriated.

Volume 2 contains the financial statements of Government Organizations and Business Enterprises that are part of the
government’s reporting entity and other miscellaneous financial statements.

Volume 3  contains the details of payments made by ministries to vendors (including sales tax) and transfer payment
recipients that are not deemed to be prohibited by the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
Act.

2, A GUIDE TO VOLUME 2 OF THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

The financial statements of the selected crown corporations, boards and commissions are for fiscal periods ending
within the Province’s own fiscal period April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018. They are presented in the same detail as
the approved, audited financial statements and as nearly as possible in the same form. The statements have
been presented in the order shown in the Table of Contents. In addition, a listing is provided which groups the
crown corporations, boards and commissions by ministerial responsibility.
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Agricorp

An agency nﬂbo Government of Ontario Un
org: goug de I'Ontackc

Management’s responsibility for financial reporting

The accompanying financial statements and the financial information in the annual report have been
prepared by management. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
Public Sector Accounting Standards. Management is responsible for the accuracy, integrity and objectivity
of the information contained in the financial statements. Financial information contained elsewhere in the
annual report is consistent with that contained in the financial statements.

The financial statements include some amounts, such as provisions for claims that are necessarily based
on management's best estimates and have been made using careful judgment.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management
maintains financial and management control systems and practices designed to provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded, and proper records are maintained.
The systems include formal policies and procedures and an organizational structure that provides for
appropriate delegation of authority and segregation of responsibilities.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring management fulfills its responsibilities for financial
reporting and intemal control. The Board meets regularly to oversee the financial activities of Agricorp and
annually reviews the financial statements.

These financial statements have been audited by the Auditor General of Ontario. The Auditor General's
responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance

with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. The Auditor's Report, which appears on the following
page, outlines the scope of the Auditor General's examination and opinion.

Lo D

Doug LaRose Monll}n:%
Chief Executive Officer Chief cial Officer

June 19, 2018


sithamra
Stamp


PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2017-2018

Office of the Auditor General of Ontario
Bureau de la vérificatrice générale de I'Ontario

Independent Auditor’s Report

To Agricorp

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Agricorp. which comprise the statement of
financial position as at March 31. 2018. and the statements of operations and fund balances.
remeasurement gains and losses and cash flows for the year then ended. and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility fer the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted
my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment. including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments. the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the etfectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness ot accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
Opinion

In my opinion. the financial statements present fairly. in all material respects. the financial position of
Agricorp as at March 31. 2018 and the results of its operations. remeasurement gains and losses and its
cash tlows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Toronto., Ontario Susan Klein. CPA. CA. LPA
June 19,2018 Assistant Auditor General
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Agricorp
Statement of financial position
As at March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

General Production

(In thousands of dollars) Fund Insurance Fund 2018 2017
Current assets
Cash $ 3,015 $ 33,716 $ 36,731 $ 427762
Short term investments (note 5) 481 883,568 884,049 735,979
Accounts receivable (note 4) 3,759 8,606 12,365 8,086
Funds under administration (note 3) 32,986 - 32,986 111,193
Prepaid expenses 597 - 597 650
Total current assets 40,838 925,890 966,728 898,670
Long term investments (note 5) - - - 108,856
Accrued pension asset (note 11) 9,278 - 9,278 8,276
Capital assets (note 6) 2,722 - 2,722 638
Total assets 52,838 925,890 978,728 1,016,440
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,205 169 5,374 5,682
Unearned premiums and revenue (note 9) 5,837 17,690 23,527 20,667
Provision for claims - 4,600 4,600 1,200
Funds under administration (note 3) 32,986 - 32,986 111,193
Total current liabilities 44,028 22,459 66,487 138,742
Fund balances
Unrestricted funds 8,810 - 8,810 8,662
Restricted funds - 903,139 903,139 866,228
Total fund balances 8,810 903,139 911,949 874,890
Accumulated remeasurement gains 5 292 292 2,808
Liabilities, fund balances and
accumulated remeasurement gains $ 52,838 $ 925,890 $ 978,728 $1,016,440

Commitments and contingencies (note 12)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Patricia Lorenz

Finance and Audit Committee Chair
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Agricorp
Statement of operations and fund balances
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

General Production
(In thousands of dollars) Fund Insurance Fund 2018 2017
Revenue
Funding — provincial government (note 8) $ 20,476 $ 31,489 51,965 $ 52,055
Funding — federal government (note 8) 19,510 47,249 66,759 68,024
Premiums from producers - 52,529 52,529 54,210
Consulting and other services 910 - 910 852
Investment income 58 16,613 16,671 16,970
Total revenue 40,954 147,880 188,834 192,111
Expenses
Claims - 108,031 108,031 127,709
Reinsurance (note 10) - 2,926 2,926 3,641
Administration (note 15) 40,806 - 40,806 40,020
Bad debts - 12 12 6
Total expenses 40,806 110,969 151,775 171,376
Excess of revenue over expenses 148 36,911 37,059 20,735
Fund balances, beginning of year 8,662 866,228 874,890 854,155
Fund balances, end of year $ 8,810 $ 903,139 911,949 $ 874,890

Related party transactions (note 13)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Agricorp
Statement of remeasurement gains and losses
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017
(In thousands of dollars)

2018 2017
Accumulated remeasurement gains, beginning of year $ 2,808 $ 6,752
Unrealized (losses) on investments (2,194) (3,010)
Realized (gains) reclassified to the statement of operations and fund (322) (934)
Net change for the year (2,516) (3,944)
Accumulated remeasurement gains, end of year $ 292 $ 2,808

See accompanying notes to financial statements



1-6 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2017-2018

Agricorp
Statement of cash flows

Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

General Production
(In thousands of dollars) Fund Insurance Fund 2018 2017
Cash provided by operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 148 $ 36911 § 37059 $ 20735
Items not requiring an outlay of cash
Realized (gains) on investments - (322) (322) (934)
Amortization of capital assets 520 - 520 572
Total 668 36 589 37 257 20 373
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable (1 125) (3 154) (4 279) 401
Prepaid expenses 53 - 53 20
Accrued pension asset (1 002) - (1 002) (262)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (261) (47) (308) (8 461)
Unearned premiums and revenue 2 059 801 2 860 (6 744)
Provision for claims - 3400 3400 (2 970)
Total (276) 1000 724 (18 016)
Investing activity
Net (purchase) proceeds of investments (5) (41 403) (41 408) 17 311
Capital activity
Purchase of capital assets (2 604) - (2604) (398)
(Decrease) increase in cash (2217) (3814) (6 031) 19 270
Cash, beginning of year 5232 37 530 42 762 23 492
Cash, end of year $ 3015 $ 33716 $ 36731 § 42 762

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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1.

Agricorp
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

Nature of operations

The AgriCorp Act, 1996 established Agricorp as a provincial Crown corporation without share
capital on January 1, 1997. As an agency of the Ontario government, Agricorp’s mandate is to deliver
government business risk management programs to Ontario’s agriculture industry on behalf of the
Ontario Ministry ofAgriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA). These programs are as follows:

Government — Production Insurance

Production Insurance was established in 1966 and currently operates pursuant to the Agricultural
Products Insurance Act (Ontario, 1996). For over 100 commercially grown crops in Ontario, Production
Insurance provides insured producers with financial protection against yield reduction caused by
natural perils.

Government — Other Business Risk Management

These programs, as detailed under note 3, are administered by Agricorp on behalf of
OMAFRA and the government of Canada (“federal government”). The rules regarding payments to
customers are determined by the programs and in formal agreements with Agricorp. The funds paid
out under these programs flow from either the government of Ontario (“provincial government”) or
federal government or both, through Agricorp to qualified applicants, and are held in segregated
accounts in funds under administration.

Other

Agricorp is responsible for the delivery of the Farm Business Registration program (FBR) established
under the Farm Registration and Farm Organizations Funding Act, 1993. Under an agreement with
OMAFRA, Agricorp’s primary obligations include registration of farm businesses, collection of
registration fees, and disbursement of the fees net of an administrative charge to Ontario’s accredited
farm organizations.

As an Ontario Crown agency, Agricorp is exempt from income taxes.

Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements of Agricorp have been prepared bymanagement in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards (PSAS) for governments as recommended by the
Public Sector Accounting Board of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada (CPA
Canada). Agricorp has also elected to apply the section 4200 standards for Government Not-For-
Profit Organizations.

Agricorp follows the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenue is
recognized in the year in which it is earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized, as they
are incurred and measurable, as a result of receipt of goods or services.

Agricorp uses fund accounting whereby the activities in each program are accounted for in
separate funds. The General Fund is used to account for all administrative revenues and
expenses, as well as for all unsegregated activities. The Production Insurance Fund is used
to account for activities specific to the Production Insurance program.
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Agricorp
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

b) Capital assets

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided for using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Computer hardware 3 years
Computer software 2 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Software under development is recorded at cost, which includes amounts directly related to the acquisition,
development, customization and installation, as well as directly attributable labour. Software under
development is not amortized until it is available for use.

Employee future benefits
Agricorp provides defined retirement benefits and other future benefits for substantially all retirees and
employees. These future benefits include pension plan and accumulated sick leave.

i) Pension plan
Agricorp sponsors a contributory defined benefit registered pension plan for all full-time and eligible part-
time employees as well as a supplemental defined benefit pension plan for eligible employees. Unless
otherwise noted, information on A gricorp’s post-employment benefit programs is presented on a
consolidated basis.

Agricorp contributes to the plans based on employee contributions and a factor determined by the plans’
independent actuary. The cost of pension benefits for the defined benefit plans is determined by an
independent actuary using the projected benefit method pro-rated on service and management’s best
estimates of expected plan investment performance, salary escalation and retirement ages of employees.
Pension plan assets are valued using current fair values and any actuarial adjustments are amortized on
a straight-line basis over the average remaining service life of the employee group.

ii) Accumulated sick leave
Agricorp provides a non-vested sick leave benefit to all full-time and part-time employees. Employees are
granted 5 days of sick leave per year. Unused sick leave days are eligible to accumulate up to 47 days,
which can only be used to supplement the short term disability benefit. Employees are not paid for unused
sick leave.

d) Revenue recognition

Under the General Fund, Agricorp accounts for government funding under the deferral method of accounting.
Government funding used for the purchase of capital assets is deferred and amortized into revenue on the
same basis and at rates corresponding to those of the related capital assets. All remaining government funding
is recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the amount to be received can be r easonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Consulting and other services revenue is recognized as services are performed, collection of the relevant
receivable is probable and persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists.

Production Insurance government funding and producer premiums are recognized as revenue in the year in
which the related agricultural products are harvested. Premiums received for future years are classified as
unearned premiums and revenue on the statement of financial position.
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Agricorp
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

e)

f)

g)

Financial instruments
Agricorp’s financial instruments consist of cash, investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities.

All financial instruments are recorded at cost or amortized cost unless management has elected to carry the
instruments at fair value. Management has elected to record short-term demand deposit type investments at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value, and all other investments at fair value. Guaranteed Investment
Certificates (GICs) are valued based on cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value.

Unrealized changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses until
they are realized, and then transferred to the statement of operations and fund balances.

All financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis. When a decline is determined to be other
than temporary, the amount of the loss is reported in the statement of operations and fund balances. Any
unrealized gain or loss on investments is adjusted through the statement of remeasurement gains and losses.
When an asset is sold, unrealized gains and losses previously recognized in the statement of remeasurement
gains and losses are reversed and recognized in the statement of operations and fund balances.

Agricorp is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy, which indicates three
levels of information that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 — observable or corroborated inputs, other than level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in inactive markets or market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities;
and

Level 3 — unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the
fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with PSAS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the carrying amounts of
accounts receivable, capital assets, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, unearned premiums and
revenue, provision for claims and accrued pension asset. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Provision for claims

The provision for claims liability represents management’s estimate of the total cost of Production Insurance
claims outstanding at year-end. Measurement of this provision is uncertain as not all of the necessary
information for reported claims is always available as of the year-end date and therefore estimates are made
as to the value of these claims.
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Agricorp
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

3. Funds under administration
Agricorp processes and disburses payments to producers enrolled in agricultural business risk management
and other programs. These programs are generally administered on behalf of OMAFRA for producers in the
province, and cover joint federal-provincial, federal-only and provincial-only programs. Individual
program delivery agreements are in place for each program.

Program payments are calculated according to program requirements and the program delivery
agreements. Funding is provided by the federal and/or provincial governments and all funds are segregated
in accounts under administration by program until payments are processed for the producers.

Funds for these programs are held in accounts with Canadian banks, bankers’ acceptance or bank discount
notes and all are highly liquid. As Agricorp only administers these programs, no recognition is made for
program revenue, expense, receivables or payables.

a) AgriStability
AgriStability was established under the Growing Forward Framework Agreement in 2007 as a
continuation of the Canadian Agricultural Income Stabilization program. This program provides
agricultural producers with financial protection against large declines in farm margin. To participate,
producers must enroll in the program and pay administration and enroliment fees based on their
reference margin for specified prior years. Producers are also required to submit an application that
includes production data and farming income (or loss) reported for income tax purposes.

AgriStability is cost shared by the federal and provincial governments at a basis of 60% and 40%
respectively.

b) Risk Management Program (RMP)
RMP helps producers offset losses caused by low commodity prices and fluctuating production costs.
RMP is fully funded by the provincial government and is an advance against Ontario’s share of
AgriStability program costs and reduces its share of AgriStability payments. Effective January 2015,
AgriStability participation is no longer an eligibility requirement of RMP. RMP includes the following plans:

RMP: Grains and Oilseeds (RMP-GO)

The plan provides Ontario grain and oilseed producers with commodity-specific price support based on
cost of production. To participate, producers must pay premiums, provide a premises identification
number and participate in Production Insurance, if available for their crop.

RMP for livestock (RMP-LS)

RMP for livestock includes individual plans for cattle, hogs, sheep and veal. The plans provide producers
with commodity-specific price support based on cost of production. To participate, producers must pay
premiums and provide a premises identification number.

RMP - Self-Directed Risk Management: Edible Horticulture (RMP-SDRM)

Under the terms of the plan, producers of edible horticulture deposit into their account a percentage of
their eligible net sales and a contribution is made into the account by the provincial government.
Funds can be withdrawn to cover risks to the farm business, such as a reduction in income or other
farm-related expenses or losses. To participate, producers must make a deposit into their SDRM
account and provide a premises identification number.
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Agricorp
Notes to the financial statements
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

c)

d)

f)

General Top-Up Program (GTUP)

GTUP was established under the Federal-Provincial Implementation Agreement and expired on
March 31, 2008. Under the terms of the agreement, producers that participated in AgriStability and received
a payment under that program were eligible for a top-up payment based on a fixed percentage of their 2003
and 2004 AgriStability government benefits.

Marketing and Vineyard Improvement Program (MVIP)

The MVIP initiative provides grape growers with funds to help with the cost of improvements related to
production of wine grapes. Agricorp began administering this program on behalf of OMAFRA. MVIP is fully
funded by the provincial government.

Vintners Quality Alliance Wine Support Program (VQA-WSP)

The VQA-WSP provides grants to help wineries invest in growing their VQA wine business, including export
and tourism development activities. Agricorp began administering this program on behalf of OMAFRA. This
program is fully funded by the provincial government.

Other programs

Agricorp administers other programs on behalf of OMAFRA and the federal government, some of which are
in the process of being wound down. These programs continue to be funded by OMAFRA and the federal
government in accordance with their program delivery agreement. Examples include:

Farm Business Registration (FBR)

In accordance with the Farm Registration and Organizations Funding Act, 1993, farm businesses in Ontario
whose gross farm income is equal to or greater than $7,000 are required to register their farm business. In
return for the registration, the farm business pays a reduced property tax rate on agricultural land and is
granted membership in an accredited farm organization of their choice. Agricorp collects these fees and remits
them, less an administrative charge, to the chosen accredited farm organization.

Provincial Premises Registry (PPR)

Established in 2008, the PPR registers unique parcels of land in Ontario associated with agri-food activities.
The PPR collects information including agri-food business location, activities and emergency contacts, and
maintains a current database for access by the Ministry for emergency response and preparedness. As part
of the National Agri-Food Traceability System, all provinces are responsible for having a premises registration
system in place to enable the swift response to incidents and emergencies that could harm agri-food
businesses and consumers. Agricorp began administering this program on behalf of OMAFRA in February
2018.

Edible Horticulture Support Program (EHSP)

The EHSP is a two-year support program announced by the provincial government in the 2017 fall economic
statement. The program supports Ontario’s fruit and vegetable farmers and other horticultural producers, by
helping them adapt to evolving cost pressures facing the sector, and adapt to a new small business climate.
Agricorp began administering this program on behalf of OMAFRA in January 2018.

Farm Property Class Tax Rate Program (FPCTRP)

Under FPCTRP, eligible farm properties pay a reduced property tax rate for their acreage. Currently, OMAFRA
delivers the FPCTRP, completes eligibility assessments for all valued and assessed farm properties, and
reports the properties that meet all the FPCTRP requirements to the Municipal Property Assessment
Corporation (MPAC). MPAC in turn forwards this information to the local municipalities. The municipality will
then tax the properties at the farm rate that meet the requirements.
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Agricorp

Notes to the financial statements
Year ended March 31, 2018 with comparative information for 2017

In July 2017, the provincial government signaled that their activities related to the delivery of FPCTRP will be
transferred to Agricorp in early 2019. In the meantime, Agricorp will work to design, develop and implement
business processes and system capabilities to facilitate this transfer. There are no changes related to the
involvement of MPAC or the municipalities in this program.

The following summarizes the transactions related to the funds under administration:

Opening Funding, Funding, Closing
(In thousands balance federal provincial balance
of dollars) 2018 government government Other Payments 2018
AgriStability $ 92,889 $ 40,910 §$ 17,183 $ (82,022) $ (54,371) $ 14,589
RMP-GO 144 - 31,893 4 (30,516) 1,525
RMP-LS 4,913 - 37,677 (170) (38,667) 3,753
RMP-SDRM 9,419 - 25,402 (3,010) (22,657) 9,154
GTUP 2,533 - - 29 - 2,562
MVIP 783 - 1,822 1 (1,731) 875
VQA-WSP - - 7,500 - (7,500) -
Other programs 512 - 2,038 11 (2,033) 528
Total $ 111,193 $ 40,910 $ 123,515 $ (85,157) $ (157,475) $ 32,986

Opening Funding, Funding, Closing
(In thousands balance federal provincial balance
of dollars) 2017 government government Other Payments 2017
AgriStability $ 73,018 $ 45940 $ 23,085 $ 9,649 $ (58,803) $ 92,889
RMP-GO 256 - 36,335 (9) (36,438) 144
RMP-LS 6,432 - 40,059 (1,383) (40,195) 4,913
RMP-SDRM 8,879 - 21,070 223 (20,753) 9,419
GTUP 2,507 - - 26 - 2,533
MVIP 306 - 1,868 465 (1,856) 783
VQA-WSP - - 7,000 - (7,000) -
Other programs 467 - 4 45 (4) 512
Total $ 91,865 $ 45,940 $ 129,421 $ 9,016 $ (165,049) $ 111,193

The Other column in the tables above includes items such as producer fees and premiums, and changes in
program receivables and payables.

. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are comprised primarily of amounts due from the federal and provincial governments and

from producers.

(In thousands of dollars) 2018 2017
Funding — federal government $ 8,948 $ 5,403
Funding — provincial government 2,100 1,408
Other 1,464 1,411
12,512 8,222
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (147) (136)
Total $ 12,365 $ 8,086
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5. Investments
Legislation restricts Agricorp’s investments to highly liquid, high-grade investments such as federal and provincial
bonds, deposit notes issued by domestic financial institutions and other securities approved by the Minister of
Finance.

a) Portfolio profile

(In thousands of dollars) 2018 2017
Short-term

Province of Ontario $ 11625 $ 21905
Other provincial governments 37 888 31932
Provincial utilities 22 012 11 634
Financial institutions — deposits held 277 660 195775
Financial institutions — guaranteed investment certificates 534 864 469 692
Financial institutions — bonds - 5 041
Total short-term 884 049 735979
Long-term

Province of Ontario - 11 507
Other provincial governments - 39 358
Provincial utilities - 22 514
Financial institutions — guaranteed investment certificates - 35477
Total long-term - 108 856
Total investments $ 884049 $ 844 835

b) Maturity profile of the investment portfolio

(In thousands of dollars) 2018 2017
<1 Year $ 884,049 $ 735,979
1-3 Years - 108,856
Total $ 884,049 $ 844,835

c) Fair value hierarchy

(In thousands of dollars) Level 2018 2017
Cash and equivalents 1 $ 277,660 $ 195,775
Guaranteed investment certificates 2 534,864 505,168
Bonds 1 71,525 143,892
Total $ 884,049 $ 844,835

There were no transfers of investments between Level 1 and Level 2.
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6. Capital assets

2018 2017

Accumulated Net book Net book

(In thousands of dollars) Cost  amortization value value
Furniture and fixtures $ 1,218 $ 1,217  $ 1 $ 3
Computer hardware 3,726 2,991 735 566
Leasehold improvements 1,958 1,952 6 10
Computer software 13,315 13,178 137 59
Software under development 1,843 - 1,843 -
Total $ 22,060 $ 19,338 $ 2,722 % 638

7. Financial instruments risk management

a)

b)

c)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will affect the fair value of reported assets and liabilities.
Market factors include three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and equity risk. Agricorp is not
exposed to significant currency or equity risk as it does not transact materially in foreign currency or hold
equity financial instruments.

Agricorp operates within investment guidelines constraints set out by legislation that restricts Agricorp’s
investments to highly liquid, high-grade investments, such as federal and provincial bonds, deposit notes
issued by domestic financial institutions and other securities approved by the Minister of Finance.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the adverse consequences of interest rate changes on Agricorp’s financial position,
operations and cash flow.

Agricorp’s bond portfolio has interest rates ranging from 3.64% to 5.50% (2017 — 2.28% to 5.50%) with
maturities ranging from August to December 2018 (2017 — June 2017 to December 2018). As at
March 31,2018, a 1% fluctuation in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the value of bonds by an estimated $0.4 million (2017 - $1.6 million).

Fluctuations in interest rates have a direct impact on the market valuation of Agricorp’s fixed income securities
portfolio. The average return on investments is 2.01% (2017 - 2.20%). Fluctuations in interest rates could have
a significant impact on the fair value of the fixed income securities profile. Although investments are generally
held to maturity, realized gains or losses could result if actual Production Insurance claim levels differ
significantly from expected claims, and liquidation of long-term investments is required to meet obligations.
There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to risk or to the policies,
procedures and methods used to measure the risk.

Credit risk

General

Credit risk is the risk that other parties fail to perform as contracted. Agricorp’s exposure to credit risk is
principally through balances receivable from the federal and provincial governments and producers as well as
through its investment securities.
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Reinsurance

Agricorp is exposed to credit risk on the reinsurance contracts that are placed with reinsurers. In
order to minimize this risk, Agricorp places reinsurance with a number of different reinsurers and
evaluates the financial condition of each of these reinsurers in order to minimize exposure to a significant
loss from any one reinsurer in the event of insolvency.

Reinsurers are typically required to have a minimum financial strength rating of A-, based on the
rating agencies A.M. Best, and Standard and Poor’s. Based on professional judgment, management
set limits to establish the maximum amount of business that can be placed with a single reinsurer.

Collectability

Credit risk on balances receivable arises from the possibility that the entities that owe funds to
Agricorp may not fulfill their obligation. Collectability is reviewed regularly and an allowance for
doubtful accounts is established to recognize the impairment risks identified.

Investments

Credit risk on investment securities arises from Agricorp’s positions in term deposits, corporate debt
securities and government bonds. Legislation restricts the types of investments Agricorp may
hold to high-grade Canadian debt instruments and investments approved by the Minister of Finance,
which significantly reduces credit risk.

8. Funding - provincial and federal
a) Production Insurance Fund
Premiums from producers represent 40% of the total funding of the Production Insurance program. The
federal and provincial governments fund the remaining premiums at a basis of 60% and 40%
respectively.

b) General Fund
Agricorp provides administration services on a cost recovery basis to process and disburse
payments to producers enrolled in agricultural business risk management and other programs. The
provincial and federal governments have agreed to share the costs of administering Production
Insurance, AgriStability and GTUP at the ratio of 60% and 40% respectively. The costs to administer
RMP-GO, RMP-LS, RMP-SDRM, MVIP, VQA-WSP, PPR, EHSP and FPCTRP are funded by the
provincial government.

9. Unearned premiums and revenue
Unearned premiums represent Production Insurance premiums of $17.7 million (2017 - $16.9 million) received
by Agricorp in the current fiscal year, and are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
agricultural products are harvested. Unearned revenue includes operating funding related primarily to the
unamortized value of capital assets of $2.7 million (2017 - $0.7 million) and other unearned amounts of
$3.1 million (2017 - $3.1 million).

10. Reinsurance agreement
Agricorp has an ongoing program of reinsurance with a number of insurance carriers. This program provides
for the reinsuring companies to assume Production Insurance losses based on negotiated thresholds.
Agricorp purchased reinsurance to mitigate a fixed percentage of losses for 2017 Production Insurance
claims in excess of $598 million to a maximum of $661 million (2016 production year — in excess of $495
million to a maximum of$587 million). As actual claims for the 2017 production year were less than the
minimum threshold, no reinsurance payments were received by Agricorp.
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Agricorp signed an agreement in December 2017 whereby it purchased reinsurance through a number of carriers
for the 2018 production year. The amount purchased under this agreement is to mitigate a fixed percentage of
losses between 16% and 21% (on a 50% co-reinsurance basis) of insured liability, subject to a maximum of $4.0
billion (2017 19% — 21% subject to a maximum of $3.75 billion).

11.Pension

Agricorp has a mandatory contributory defined benefit plan for all full-time and eligible part-time employees as
well as a supplemental defined benefit plan for eligible employees. The changes for the defined benefit plans of
Agricorp during the year are as follows:

(In thousands of dollars) 2018 2017
Accrued benefit obligation

Balance, beginning of year $ 50,828 $ 45,337

Current service cost 2,917 2,557

Interest cost 3,116 2,798

Employee contributions 1,650 1,438

Benefits paid (2,358) (1,545)
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,379) 146

Plan amendment - 97

Balance, end of year 54,774 50,828

Plan assets

Fair value, beginning of year 61,239 52,622

Actual return on plan assets 2,937 6,211

Employer contributions 3,152 2,513

Employee contributions 1,650 1,438

Benefits paid (2,358) (1,545)
Fair value, end of year 66,620 61,239

Funded status

Plan surplus 11,846 10,411

Unamortized actuarial (gain) (2,568) (2,135)
Accrued pension asset $ 9,278 $ 8,276

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the accrued benefit obligations of Agricorp are:

2018 2017

(L] (L]

Discount rate to determine accrued benefit obligation 6.00 6.00
Discount rate to determine benefit cost 6.00 6.00
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 6.00 6.00

Rate of compensation increase 2.75 3.25
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The net benefit plan expense is as follows:

(In thousands of dollars) 2018 2017
Current service cost $ 2917 § 2,557
Interest cost 3,116 2,798
Expected return on plan assets (3,748) (3,233)
Amortization of unrecognized (gain) loss (136) 44
Plan amendment - 97
Net benefit plan expense $ 2149 $ 2,263

The percentage of total fair value of plan assets by category is as follows:

2018 2017
Security type (%) (%)
Canadian equities 28.4 30.5
U.S. equities 18.2 18.6
International equities 12.7 11.6
Bonds 24.2 28.8
Real estate 101 8.9
Cash and cash equivalents 6.4 1.6
Total plan 100.0 100.0

An external investment advisor manages the investments held by the pension plan. Administration expenses on
the statement of operations and fund balances include pension expense of $2.1 million (2017 - $2.3 million).

The most recent pension plan actuarial valuation is as of January 1, 2017. At that time, the plan had a going
concern actuarial surplus of $7.0 million and had a solvency and wind-up deficit of $9.2 million. These estimates
are determined under the provisions of Section 76 of the Regulations to the Pension Benefits Act, 1990 (Ontario).
Payment of the solvency deficit is required to be made over 5 years. An allowable election was made to defer
these payments for 2 years, thus commencing January 1, 2019, $2.1 million will be contributed to the pension
plan annually for 5 years. The next actuarial valuation is required to be completed as of January 1, 2020.

12. Commitments and contingencies
a) Commitments
Agricorp is committed to several leases for office space, weather data and sites, print services, mainframe
support and operating leases for vehicles. The minimum aggregate costs for the remaining terms of these

leases are:
Head office
location
(In thousands of dollars) (note 13) Others Total
2019 $ 1,153 $ 2,605 $ 3,758
2020 1,170 859 2,029
2021 1,189 611 1,800
2022 1,207 449 1,656
2023 1,226 391 1,617
Thereafter 3,799 1,265 5,064

Total $ 9,744 $ 6,180 $ 15,924
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b) Contingencies
During the normal course of business, certain claims or program payments may be denied by Agricorp. As a
result, various claims or proceedings have been, or may be, initiated against Agricorp. The disposition of the
matters that are pending or asserted is not expected by management to have a material effect on the financial
position of Agricorp or on its results of operations.

13.Related party transactions
Agricorp has entered into several agreements to acquire services from OMAFRA. The cost for administrative,
legal and internal auditing services amounted to $0.2 million (2017 - $0.2 million). In addition, Agricorp rents its
head office location from the Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation for a total cost for the year of $1.1
million (2017 - $1.1 million). Agricorp earned revenue of $52.0 million (2017 - $52.1 million) from OMAFRA as
their share of Production Insurance premium and operating funding.

14.Board remuneration and salary disclosure
Total remuneration to members of the Board of Directors was $32 thousand (2017 - $43 thousand). The Public
Sector Salary Disclosure Act, 1996 requires Agricorp to disclose employees paid an annual salary in excess of
$100 thousand. Complete disclosure for Agricorp is included in the “Public Sector Salary Disclosure 2017: Crown
Agencies” listing on the Government of Ontario website: https:/www.ontario.ca/page/public-sector-salary-
disclosure-2017-all-sectors-and-seconded-employees.

For the 2017 calendar year, actual amounts paid to the five employees with the highest annual salaries are:

Name Position Salary Taxable benefits

Beifuss, Erich Chief Financial Officer $ 165,203 $ 527

Dosanjh, Baliit Director, Systems Development 154,014 505
& Computing Network Services

Fazil, Abbas Director, Architecture Services 153,654 485

LaRose, Doug Chief Executive Officer 190,803 595

Sayer, Greg Senior Director, Legal Services 157,296 524

15. Administration

(In thousands of dollars) 2018 2017
Salaries and benefits $ 32,062 $ 31,459
Equipment and maintenance 2,610 2,471
Consulting and professional 1,750 1,972
Facilities 1,498 1,387
Office 782 590
Telephone and postage 767 787
Vehicle and travel 586 582
Amortization 520 572
Other 231 200
Total $ 40,806 $ 40,020

16.Comparative figures
Certain figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.


https://www.ontario.ca/page/public-sector-salary-disclosure-2017-all-sectors-and-seconded-employees
https://www.ontario.ca/page/public-sector-salary-disclosure-2017-all-sectors-and-seconded-employees
https://www.ontario.ca/page/public-sector-salary
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17.Subsequent events
New agricultural policy framework

Canada’s federal, provincial and territorial agriculture ministers reached agreement on a new agricultural policy
framework, called the Canadian Agricultural Partnership (the Partnership), which came into effect in April 2018,
replacing the Growing Forward 2 (GF2) framework that expired in March 2018. The intent of the new framework
is to strengthen the agriculture, agri-food and agri-based products sector, ensuring continued innovation, growth
and prosperity. In addition, producers will continue to have access to a robust suite of Business Risk Management
(BRM) programs. Similar to GF2, the Partnership is a five-year investment by federal, provincial and territorial
governments to strengthen the agriculture and agri-food sector. For a full list of changes to the BRM suite of
programs under the Partnership, visit the Government of Canada - Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada website.
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The Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario

Management's Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The accompanying financial statements of the Agricultural Research Institute of
Ontario (ARIO) have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. Management is responsible for the accuracy,
integrity, and objectivity of the information contained in the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates
based on management's best judgment, particularly when transactions affecting
the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future
periods. These financial statements have been prepared within reasonable limits
of materiality with information available up to and including June 18, 2018.

In discharging its responsibility for the integrity of the financial statements,
management maintains financial and management control systems and practices
designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized,
assets are safeguarded, and proper records are maintained.

The financial statements have been examined by RLB LLP, independent external
auditors appointed by the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs
on behalf of ARIO. The external auditors' responsibility is to express an opinion on
whether the financial statements are presented fairly in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. The Auditors' Report outlines the scope of their
examination and opinion.

On behalf of management:

(%/‘:—W\ y ;))/" W \./(i u( _/Z,u&_/

Christine Primeau, ' Sue Mihelchic,
Director of Research Comptroller
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of: Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and the statements of revenues and
expenditures and changes in fund balances, remeasurement (losses) gains and cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario as at March 31, 2018 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

TLB LI

Guelph, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
June 18, 2018 Licensed Public Accountants

GUELPH OFFICE 197 HANLON CREEK BLVD, UNIT 103, GUELPH, ON, NiC 0AI « TEL: 519-822-0033 « FAX:519-822-9212 « rlb.ca
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

2018 2017
{schedule 1)
ASSETS

CURRENT
Cash $ 6,662,999 $ 3,740,844
Investments 27,213,712 37,124,309
Accounts receivable 188,426 269,672
Accounts receivable - OMAFRA (re: TBARS) 500,000 0

Note receivable - North Grenville (re: Kemptville
sale) (hote 11) 4,000,000 0
38,565,137 41,134,825
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS UNDER CONSTRUCTION 8,432,364 3,389,048
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (note 5) 78,598,160 84,698,918
$125,595,661 $129,222,791
LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Accounts payable and accruals $ 1,570,026 $ 1,471,415
Holdbacks payable 528,076 427,842
Unclaimed expenditures 3,267,330 2,769,930
Deferred revenue 562,552 339,471
5,927,984 5,008,658
DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDED CONTRIBUTIONS (note 6) 71,842,359 72,286,239
DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS (note 7) 16,826,781 22,022,133
94 597,124 99,317,030

NET ASSETS

FUND BALANCES 18,367,711 16,683,246
ACCUMULATED REMEASUREMENT (LOSSES) GAINS (51,348) 15,232
CONTRIBUTED ASSETS (notes 4, 5and 11) 12,682,174 13,207,283
30,998,537 29,905,761

$125,595,661

See notes to the financial statements

$129,222,791
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AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF ONTARIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

2018 2017
(schedule 2)
REVENUES
Research
Grants - provincial (note 9) $ 500,000 $ 1,850,000
Grants - OEGF (Kawartha and IGPC) (note 12) 378,000 378,000
Intellectual property (note 8) 1,539,667 1,621,773
2,417,667 3.749.773
Property
Grants - provincial - minor capital (note 9) 4,500,000 4,260,952
Grants - provincial - Food Innovation (note 9) 800,000 0
Rental income - provincial 948,489 836,868
Rental income - private industry 1,570,505 1,306,250
Deferred capital impairment (notes 4, 6 and 7) 765,910 6,000,403
Deferred capital contributions on sale of tangible
capital assets (note 11) 3,437,392 0
Grants - provincial - payments in lieu of taxes (note 9) 750,000 750,000
Payments in lieu of taxes 189,430 206,852
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 2,646,124 3,046,549
15,607,850 16,407,874
Other
Gain on disposal of tangible capital asset (note 11) 4,197,692 0
Investment income (note 13) 465,843 408,541
4,663,535 408,541
22,689,062 20,566,188
EXPENDITURES
Research
Research project/program 1,430,079 2,522,338
Intellectual property (note 8) 1,005,668 956,074
2,435,747 3,478,412
Property
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,032,852 965,206
Minar capital 4,226,092 4,684,373
Transfer payments - U of G - Guelph Turfgrass Institute (note 10) 5,000,000 0
Transfer payments - U of G - Food Innovation (note 10) 800,000 0
Pravision for forgivable loan (note 11) 3,700,000 0
Operations and maintenance 1,198,997 942,529
Loss on disposal of tangible capital asset 0 327,253
Impairment of tangible capital assets (note 5) 765,910 6,000,403
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,646,124 3,046,549
19,369,975 15,966,313
21,805,722 19,444,725
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES for the year 883,330 1,121,463
NET AMOUNT TRANSFERRED FROM UNCLAIMED
EXPENDITURES 736,220 709,417
1,619,550 1,830,880
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 29,905,761 28,858,842
NET REMEASUREMENT (LOSSES) GAINS for the year (66,580) 46,039
IMPAIRMENT OF CONTRIBUTED LAND (note 4) (460,194) (830,000)
FUND BALANCES, end of year $_30.998,537 $_29,905,761

See notes to the financial statements
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AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF ONTARIO
STATEMENT OF REMEASUREMENT (LOSSES) GAINS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

2018 2017

ACCUMULATED REMEASUREMENT GAINS

{(LOSSES), beginning of year $ 15,232 $ (30,807)

Unrealized (losses) gains attributable to investments (56,981) 117,784

Amounts reclassified to the statement of operations:

Realized gains on investments (9.599) (71.745)

Net remeasurement (losses) gains for the year (66,580) 46,039
ACCUMULATED REMEASUREMENT (LOSSES)

GAINS, end of year $ (51,348) $ 15,232

See notes to the financial statements
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AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF ONTARIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

2018 2017
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenditures for the year $ 883,330 $ 1,121,463
Items not requiring an outlay of cash
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,646,124 3,046,549
Impairment of tangible capital assets 765,910 6,000,403
Impairment of contributed land (460,194) (830,000)
Completed project surplus transferred to
unclaimed expenditures 1,233,619 31,709
Deferred capital contributions (5,195,352) (6,204,068)
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets (4,197,692) 327,253
Net remeasurement (losses) gains (66,580) 46.039
(4,390,835) 3,539,348
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 81,246 (18,090)
Accounts receivable - OMAFRA (re: TBARS) (500,000) 0
Note receivable - North Grenville (re: Kemptville sale) (4,000,000) 0
Investments 9,910,597 (4,702,960)
Accounts payable and accruals 98,611 (151,265)
Deferred capital funded contributions (443,880) 9,609,768
Prepaid land deposits 0 250,000
Holdbacks payable 100,234 (175,011)
Deferred revenue 223,081 (41,265)
1.079.054 8.310.525
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Additions to tangible capital assets (813,583) (14,198,758)
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 7,700,000 0
Tangible capital assets under construction (5,043,316) (3.389.048)
1,843,101 (17.587.806)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH for the year 2,922,155 (9,277,281)
CASH, beginning of year 3.740,844 13.018,125
CASH, end of year $_ 6,662,999 $__3.740.844

See notes to the financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario (ARIO) is a non-profit corporate body reporting
directly to the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA). ARIO is a non-
profit organization within the meaning of the Income Tax Act (Canada) and is exempt from
income taxes. It was created by the ARIO Act with specific responsibilities over the co-
ordination and direction of agricultural research programs in Ontario. These programs relate to a
broad range of commaodities and disciplines, covering all aspects of the agri-food system.

Funding for programs supported by ARIO is available from various sources. The Ontario
Government, through the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs, is the primary source of
funding. The Ontario Government also provides funding for open research programs. Under the
ARIO Act, ARIO may accept grants and donations for research. Other funds usually come from
commercial sources (such as agri-business, marketing boards and producer associations) and
can be either designated for specific projects or non-designated. In addition, ARIO reinvests
royalties earned from Ministry funded research.

All receipts are held in trust by the Director of Research and are allocated in accordance with the
terms of the funds. Transactions between OMAFRA and the below programs are recorded at the
exchange value.

The current research trust funds managed by the secretariat to ARIO are as follows:

. Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario (ARIO)
. New Directions Research Program (New Directions)
. Food Safety Research Program (Food Safety)
. Infrastructure
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards for government not for profit organizations, including the 4200 series of
standards, as issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board ("PSAB for Government NPOs") and
include the following significant accounting policies:

(a)  BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

ARIO follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Restricted
contributions are recognized as revenue of the appropriate research trust fund in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred. Unrestricted contributions are
recognized as revenue of the appropriate research trust fund when received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.
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AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH INSTITUTE OF ONTARIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Measurement of financial instruments

The organization initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value, except
for certain non-arm'’s length transactions.

The organization subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortized cost, except for investments, which are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains (losses).

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and accounts receivable.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accruals,
holdbacks payable, unclaimed expenditures, deferred revenue, deferred capital funded
contributions and deferred capital contributions.

The organization’s financial assets measured at fair value include the investments.

Impairment
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are tested for impairment when there are

indicators of impairment. [If an impairment has occurred, the carrying amount of
financial assets measured at amortized cost is reduced to the greater of the discounted
future cash flows expected or the proceeds that could be realized from the sale of the
financial asset. The amount of the write-down is recognized in the statement of
revenues and expenditures. The previously recognized impairment loss may be
reversed to the extent of the improvement, directly or by adjusting the allowance
account, provided it is no greater than the amount that would have been reported at the
date of the reversal had the impairment not been recognized previously. The amount of
the reversal is recognized in the statement of revenues and expenditures.

Transaction costs

The organization recognizes its transaction costs in expenditures in the period incurred.
However, financial instruments that will not be subsequently measured at fair value are
adjusted by the transaction costs that are directly attributable to their origination,
issuance or assumption.

UNCLAIMED EXPENDITURES

Unclaimed expenditures are defined as the total approved budget for open research
projects less expenses incurred to date.

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost and are amortized using the following
annual rates and method:

Buildings and components - 25 to 40 years straight line
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2,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

Long lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized when the carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted
cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition. The amount of the
impairment loss is determined as the excess of the carrying value of the asset aover its
fair value.

DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital confributions are recognized in the same period as the related
impairment and amortized at the same rate as the buildings to which they relate.

RESTRICTIONS ON THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS

The purpose, funding, terms and conditions and duration of each research trust fund are
stipulated in the relevant Order-in-Council, memorandum of understanding or Ministry
correspondence.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PSAB for Government NPOs
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates and
assumptions relate to the valuation of accounts payable and accruals and the useful life
of capital assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

FAIR VALUE

For certain of ARIO's financial instruments, the carrying amounts of cash, accounts
receivable and accounts payable and accruals, approximate fair value due to the short
term maturity of these financial instruments.

PS3450, Financial Instruments - Disclosures requires disclosures about the inputs to fair
value measurements, including their classification within a hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to fair value measurement. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices that are cbservable for the asset or
liability either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 Inputs that are not based on observable market data.

ARIQO’s financial instruments are all classified as Level 1 as at March 31, 2018 and 2017.

There were no transfers in or out of Level 1 for the years ended March 31, 2018 and
2017.
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3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) ASSOCIATED RISKS

(i)

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of an instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an
individual investment, its issuer or all factors affecting all instruments traded in
the market. As all of ARIO’s financial instruments are carried at fair value with
fair value changes recognized in the statement of remeasurement losses, all
changes in market conditions will directly affect the increase (decrease) in
accumulated remeasurement losses. Market price risk is managed by the
Investment Manager through construction of a diversified portfolio of instruments
traded on various markets and across various industries.

A 1% increase (decrease) in the value of the investments would increase
(decrease) the asset value and the change in unrealized gains in investments by
$272,137 (2017 - $371,243). The price of the investments is affected by changes
in market values, foreign exchange rates and interest rates impacting the
underlying financial instruments held within the individual investments managed
by the Investment Manager.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the adverse consequences of interest rate changes on
the Institute's cash flows, financial position and income. Interest rate changes
have an indirect impact on the investment assets in ARIO. ARIO uses
investment diversification to manage this risk.

(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.
All of ARIO’s fixed income securities are considered to be readily realizable as
they can be quickly liquidated at amounts close to their fair value in order to
meet liquidity requirements.

(iv) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. ARIO is
not exposed to significant foreign currency risk.

(v) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterpart may be unable or unwilling
to meet a commitment that it has entered into with ARIO. ARIO is not exposed
to significant credit risk.

4, CONTRIBUTED ASSETS

Contributed assets of $12,682,174 (2017 - $13,207,283) are recorded in the Infrastructure Fund
and represent the cost of the land transferred to ARIO from the Government of Ontario. During
the year, the fair value of the land in Alfred was adjusted by an impairment of $460,194 (2017 -
$830,000) and the fair value of the land in Kemptville was adjusted by $64,915 (2017 - $nil) due
to a sale (see note 11). The land adjustment in Kemptville represents a real transaction and not a
provision for impairment. Accordingly, it has been included in excess of revenue over
expenditures for the year and the impairment on contributed assets at year end is $460,194,
despite contributed assets on the statement of financial position being reduced by $525,109.
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5. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
Accumulated Net Net
Cost Amortization 2018 2017
Land:
Simcoe railway line $ 9,793 § 0 % 9,793 § 9,793
Regional campuses 1,736,994 0 1,736,994 2,262,104
Research stations 24,642 185 0 24642185 24.642.184
26,388.972 0 26,388,972 26,914,081
Buildings:
Regional campuses 25,118,835 8,117,008 17,001,827 20,862,613
Research stations 45,373,538 10,166,177 35,207,361 36,922,224

70.492.373 18,283,185 52,209,188 57,784,837

$_ 96,881,345 $_18,283,185 $_78,598.160 $_84.698.918

As at March 6, 2007, the titles for tangible capital assets (land and buildings) with a carrying
value of approximately $60.9 million were transferred to ARIO from the Government of Ontario.
Carrying value is being used as the transfer value since the transfer took place between non-
arm's length parties, is non-manetary in nature and does not have commercial substance. As an
agency of the Government of Ontario, ARIO reports these tangible capital assets (and other
assets and liabilities) in consolidation with the Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs on
an annual basis.

During the year, an impairment of land and buildings was recognized resulting in a loss on
tangible capital asset write down of $460,194 (2017 - $830,000) on land and $305,716 (2017 -
$5,170,403) on buildings for a total impairment of $765,910 (2017 - $6,000,403). Additionally,
contributed surplus was reduced by $64,915 (2017 - $nil) due to a sale of land parcels in
Kemptville.

6. DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDED CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions relating to construction of capital funded projects represents the
amount of grants and other restricted funding received by ARIO for construction projects.

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of the year $ 72,286,239 $ 62,676,471
Less amortization for the year (1,066,593) (1,121,328)
Less deferred capital impairment (127,287) (891,556)
Add contributions received for capital purposes 750,000 11.622.652
Balance, end of the year $_71,842,359 $_72,286,239
The funding sources are as follows:

2018 2017
Federal $ 1,172,500 $ 1,207,500
Provincial 61,794,811 62,764,098
Industry 8,875,048 8,314,641

$_71,842,359 $_72,286.239
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DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount of the net book value of the
buildings transferred to ARIO from the Government of Ontario in 2007. The amortization of
capital contributions is recorded as revenue in the statement of revenues and expenditures. The
changes in the deferred capital contributions are as follows:

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of the year $ 22,022,133 § 28,226,201
Less deferred capital impairment (305,716) (4,278,847)
Add prior year amortization adjustments 0 2,480
Less funds recognized on sale of Kemptville (3,310,106) 0
Less amortization for the year (1.579.530) (1.927.701)
Balance, end of the year $ 16.826,781 $_22,022,133
ARIO RESEARCH FUND
Seed Technology Total Total
Royalty Royalty Other 2018 2017
Revenue
Intellectual property $ 1,269,046 $ 270,621 % 0% 1,639,667 $ 1,621,773
Investment income 50,814 59,280 0 110,094 178,102
1,319,860 329,901 0 1,649,761 1,699,875
Expenses 993,481 12,187 0 _1.005.668 956,074
Net surplus for the year 326,379 317,714 0 644,093 743,801
Fund balance, beginning
of year 2,388,275 2,736,819 0 5,125,094 4,342,685
Remeasurement (losses)
gains (15,953) (18,281) 0 (34,234) 38,608
New Directions (Competitive
Research) Program transfer 0 0 500,000 500.000 0

Fund balance, end of year $ 2,698,701 $_3.036.252 $__500.000 $ 6,234,953 $_5,125,094

GRANTS RECEIVED FROM THE PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT

The following grants, recorded at the exchange value, have been received from the Ontario
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs and successor ministries:

2018 2017

New Directions (Competitive Research) Program $ 0 $ 1,350,000
Food Safety Research Program 500.000 500,000

500,000 1.850.000
Minor capital 4,500,000 4,260,952
Growing Forward 2 - Food Innovation project 800,000 0
New Directions (Competitive Research) - re: TBARS 650,000 0
Elora Livestock Environmental and Energy Complex 0 10,510,000
Payments in lieu of taxes 750,000 750.000

6,700,000 15,520,952

$__ 7,200,000 $_17,370,952
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9. GRANTS RECEIVED FROM THE PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (continued)

The following grants, recorded at the exchange value, have been received from the Ontario
Ministry of Advanced Education and Skills Development (MAESD):

2018 2017
Lakehead University Project:
Funding received $ 500,000 $ 0
Capitalized - Unclaimed expenditures {500,000) 0
Net revenue $ 0 % 0

Note: Funding was flowed to OMAFRA from MAESD and is payable to ARIO at March 31, 2018.

The following Provincial Government capital transfer payment grants have been partially
capitalized as Deferred Capital Funded Contributions and partially recognized as Revenues as

follows:
2018 2017

Minor capital:

Funding received $ 4,500,000 $ 4,650,000
Capitalized - Deferred Capital Funding Contribution 0 (389,048)
Net revenue $__ 4,500,000 $__ 4,260.952
Food Innovation project:

Funding received $ 800,000 $ 0
Capitalized - Unclaimed expenditures 0 0
Net revenue $ 800,000 $ 0
New Directions (Competitive Research) - re: TBARS:

Funding received $ 650,000 $ 0
Capitalized - Unclaimed expenditures {(650.000) 0
Net revenue $ 0 % 0
Elora Livestock Environmental and Energy Complex:

Funding received $ 0 $ 10,510,000
Capitalized - Deferred Capital Funding Contribution 0 (10.510.000)

Net revenue $ 0 $ 0
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10. TRANSFER PAYMENTS TO THE UNIVERSITY OF GUELPH

During 2016, ARIO entered into a funding agreement with the University of Guelph. Under the
agreement, ARIO would provide maximum funds of $12,000,000 to be combined with up to
$3,000,000 in industry contributions to fund the construction of a new Turfgrass Research facility
on the University of Guelph's Arboretum land. The ARIO funds for this agreement come from
deferred capital funded contributions which were previously received by ARIO from the Ontario
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs and successor ministries. At March 31, 2018
funding milestones have been met and ARIO has provided the University with $12,000,000 in
funding.

During 2017, ARIO entered into a funding agreement with the University. Under the agreement,
ARIO would provide maximum funds of $800,000 to fund equipment for the Guelph Food
Innovation Centre. At March 31, 2018, funding milestones have been met and ARIO has
provided the University with $800,000 in funding.

11. SALE OF KEMPTVILLE

During the year, the organization sold parcels of land in Kemptville to the Municipality of North
Grenville for proceeds of $7.7 million, comprised of $4 million note receivable at year end and
$3.7 million set up as a provision for a forgivable loan. This involved the following transactions:

Proceeds from sale $ 7.700,000
Cost of tangible capital assets - Kemptville 7,449,275
Accumulated amortization - Kemptville (4,011,882)
Net book value - Kemptville 3,437,393
4,262,607
Contributed asset - Kemptville land (64.915)
Gain on sale of Kemptville $__ 4,197,692

12. FUNDING AGREEMENTS WITH THIRD PARTIES

(a) The Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario (ARIO), Her Majesty the Queen in right of
Ontario as represented by the Ontario Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs
(OMAFRA) and the Integrated Grain Processors Co-operative Inc. (IGPC) have jointly
signed an agreement whereby, pursuant to a Capital Grant Agreement effective June
2006 between OMAFRA and IGPC, IGPC agreed to contribute to a research and
development fund in exchange for the capital grant support provided by OMAFRA
through the Ontario Ethanol Growth Fund. IGPC has agreed to contribute $280,000
annually for 10 years (for a total of $2,800,0000) starting in April 2012 and ending with
the final payment in April 2021. These funds are being paid directly to ARIO to be used
to support research priorities in the agri-food sector in Ontario. Funds recognized to date
are $1,680,000. See schedule 2.
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12, FUNDING AGREEMENTS WITH THIRD PARTIES

(b) Her Majesty the Queen in right of Ontario as represented by the Ontario Ministry of
Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) and Kawartha Ethanol Inc. have signed a
Capital Grant Agreement effective August 1, 2008 between OMAFRA and Kawartha
Ethanaol Inc. whereby Kawartha Ethanol Inc. agreed to contribute to a research and
development fund in exchange for the capital grant support provided by OMAFRA
through the Ontario Ethanol Growth Fund. Kawartha Ethanol Inc. has agreed to
contribute $98,000 annually for 10 years (for a total of $980,000) starting April 2013 and
ending with the final payment in April 2022. These funds are to be paid directly to ARIO
to be used to support research priorities in the agri-food sector in Ontario. Funds
recognized to date are $490,000. See schedule 2.

13. INVESTMENT INCOME

Investment income is comprised of the net result of investment earnings and management fees
paid. Included in investment income is $35410 (2017 - $30,712) in expenses paid for
management of investment portfolios.



1-36 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2017-2018

Agricultural Research Institute of Ontario Schedule 1
Research Trust Funds

Schedule of Financial Position

As at March 31, 2018

New
ARIO Infrastructure Directions Food Safety Eliminations 2018
(page 4)
3 $ $ $ $ $

ASSETS
CURRENT

Cash 6,662,999 6,662,999

Investments 27,213,712 27,213,712

Due from ARIO 23,205,994 5,076,363 1,301,695  (29,584,052) 0

Accounts receivable 149,709 38,124 560 33 188,426

Accounts receivable - OMAFRA (re: TBARS) 500,000 500,000

Note receivable - North Grenville (re:

Kemphille sale) (note 11) 4,000,000 4,000,000

38,526,420 23,244,118 5,076,923 1,301,728  (29,584,052) 38,565,137
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS UNDER
CONSTRUCTION 8,432,364 8,432,364

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (note 5) 78,598,160 78,598,160

$ 38526420 $110,274642 $ 5076923 § 1,301,728 $(29,584,052) $125,595,661

LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Due to other research trust funds 29,584,052 (29,584,052) 0
Accounts payable and accruals 1,057,416 207,751 220,035 84,824 1,570,026
Holdbacks payable 370,390 157,686 528,076
Unclaimed expenditures 1,650,000 1,291,975 325,355 3,267,330
Deferred revenue 184,552 378,000 562,552
32,291,468 392,303 2,260,400 567,865  (29,584,052) 5,927,984
DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDED
CONTRIBUTIONS (note 6) 71,842,359 71,842,359
DEFERRED CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS (note 7) 16,826,781 16,826,781
32,291,468 89,061,443 2,260,400 567,865  (29,584,052) 84,597,124
FUND BALANCES 6,240,063 8,563,419 2,829,162 735,067 18,367,711
ACCUMULATED REMEASUREMENT
LOSSES (5,111) (32,394) (12,639) (1,204) (51,348)
CONTRIBUTED ASSETS (notes 4, 5and 11) 12,682,174 12,682,174
6,234,952 21,213,199 2,816,523 733,863 0 30,898,537

$ 38,526420 $110274,642 $ 5076923 $ 1,301,728 $(29,584,052) $125,595,661

See notes to the financial statements
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Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended March 31, 2018
New
ARIO Infrastructure  Directions  Food Safety 2018
(nate 8) (page 5)
$ $ $ $ $
REVENUE
Research
Grants - provincial (note 9) 500,000 500,000
Grants - OEGF (Kawartha and IGPC) (note 12) 378,000 378,000
Intellectual property (note 8) 1,539,667 1,539,667
1,539,667 0 378,000 500,000 2417667
Property
Grants - provincial - minor capital (note 9) 4,500,000 4,500,000
Grants - provincial - Food Innovation (note 9) 800,000 800,000
Rental income - provincial 948,489 948,489
Rental income ~ private industry 1,670,505 1,570,505
Deferred capital impairment (notes 4, 6 & 7) 765,910 765,910
Deferred capital contributions on sale of tangible capital
assets (note 11) 3,437,392 3,437,392
Grants - provincial - payments in lieu of taxes (note 9) 750,000 750,000
Payments in lieu of taxes 189,430 189,430
Amortization of deferred capital contributions 2,646,124 2,646,124
0 15,607,850 0 0 15,607,850
Other
Gain on disposal of tangible capital asset (note 11) 4,197,692 4.197,692
Investment income (note 13) 110,093 265,528 80,581 9,641 465,843
110,093 4,463,220 80,581 9,641 4,663,535
1,649,760 20,071,070 458,581 509,641 22,689,052
EXPENDITURES
Research
Research project/program 1,076,663 353416 1,430,079
Intellectual property (nate 8) 1,005,668 1,005,668
1,005,668 0 1,076,663 353416 2,435,747
Property
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,032,852 1,032,852
Minor capital 4,226,092 4,226,092
Transfer payments - U of G - Guelph Turfgrass Institute
(note 10) 5,000,000 5,000,000
Transfer payments - U of G - Food Innovation (note 10) 800,000 800,000
Provision for forgivable loan {note 11) 3,700,000 3,700,000
Operations and maintenance 1,198,997 1,198,997
Impairment of tangible capital assets (nate 6) 765,910 765,910
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,646,124 2,646,124
4] 19,369,975 0 0 19,369,975
1,005,668 19,369,975 1,076,663 353416 21,805,722
EXCESS (SHORTFALL) OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENDITURES for the year 644,092 701,095 (618,082) 156,225 883,330
NET AMOUNT TRANSFERRED FROM UNCLAIMED
EXPENDITURES 386,514 349,706 736,220
644,092 701,095 (231,568) 505,931 1,619,550
FUND BALANCES, beginning of year 5,125,094 20,893,460 3,558,393 228814 29,905,761
NET REMEASUREMENT LOSSES for the year (34,234) (21,162) (10,302) (882) (66,580)
TRANSFER OF NEW DIRECTION FUNDSTO
LAKEHEAD PROJECT (RE: TBARS) 500,000 (500,000) 0
IMPAIRMENT OF CONTRIBUTED LAND (note 4) (460,194) (460,194)

FUND BALANCES, end of year

$6234952 § 21213199 $2816523 § 733,863 $30,998,537

See notes to the financial statements
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Year ended March 31, 2018

Management's Responsibility for Financial Information

Management and the Board of Directors of the Algonquin Forestry Authority are responsible for the
Financial Statements and all other information presented in this Annual Report. The Financial Statements
have been prepared by Management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards
and, where appropriate, include amounts based on Management's best estimates and judgements.

The Algonquin Forestry Authority is dedicated to the highest standards of integrity in its business. To
safeguard the Authority's assets, the Authority has a sound and dynamic set of internal financial controls
and procedures that balance benefits and costs. Management has developed and maintains financial and
management controls, information systems and management practices to provide reasonable assurance
of the reliability of financial information in accordance with the Algonguin Forestry Authority Act.

The Board of Directors ensures that Management fulfills its responsibilities for financial information and
internal control. The Board of Directors meets regularly to oversee the financial activities of the Authority
and at least annually to review the audited Financial Statements and the external Auditors’ Report thereon,
and recommends them to the Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry for approval.

The Financial Statements have been examined by the Auditor General of Ontario. The Auditor General's
responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the Financial Statements are fairly presented in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. The Independent Auditors Report
outlines the scope of the Auditor's examination and opinion.

Tim Doyle, @PA, CA Jeff W. Leavey
Treasurer General Manager

H
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Office of the Auditor General of Ontario
Bureau du vérificateur général de I'Ontario

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Algonquin Forestry Authority
and to the Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Algonquin Forestry Authority, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, and the statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. |
conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Algonquin Forestry Authority as at March 31, 2018 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Toronto, Ontario Susan Klein, CPA, CA, LPA
June 15,2018 Assistant Auditor General
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Algonquin Forestry Authority

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 1,353,410 $ 3,305,316
Accounts receivable (Note 3) 10,445,785 7,130,035
inventories held for sale 520,520 543,036
Prepaid expenses 1,962 1,962
12,321,677 10,980,349
Capital assets (Note 4) 451,956 534,874
$ 12,773,633 $ 11,515,223
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities $ 2,249,458 $ 1,475,788
Cont actors' performance holdbacks 74,580 60,124
Due to Consolidated R~*~nue Fund (Noie 13) 302,857 225,969
Deferred contributions (vote 5) 15,888 33,240
2,642,784 1,795,121
Obligation for emplo ee future ben its (N e 6) 334,172 348,947
Net assets
Restricted - Fol :st Renewal Fund (Notes 7 and 9) 3,282,239 3,050,709
inv~~*ed in capital assets (Note 8) 451,956 534,874
Unrestricted - General Fund 6,052,482 5,784,572

$ 12,773,633 $ 11,515,223

tor ‘@ LA, /%MZ Me/;tor

On behalf of thez% / ' 7 /.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Statement of Operations

Year Ended March 31 2018 2017
General Forest
Fund Renewal Fund Total Total
Revenue
Product sales $ 22,506,224 $ - $ 22,506,224 $ 22,362,486
Forest renewal activity - 1,815,831 1,815,831 1,729,884
Standing timber sales 35,356 - 35,356 224,106
Other (Note 10) 2,548,087 439,740 2,987,827 2,798,500
25,089,667 2,255,571 27,345,238 27,114,976
Expenses
Direct program costs 19,309,526 1,540,613 20,850,139 21,026,903
Crown timber stumpage charges (Note 13) 2,971,286 - 2,971,286 2,986,500
Public access road maintenance 317,352 - 317,352 292,609
Operations planning 371,447 - 371,447 272,003
Wood measurement 45,543 - 45,543 40,763
23,015,154 1,540,613 24,555,767 24,618,778
Operating income 2,074,513 714,958 2,789,471 2,496,198
Administrative and other
Salaries and benefits 1,424,230 380,051 1,804,281 1,367,763
Amortization of capital assets 121,986 67,780 189,766 176,453
Office supplies and other 132,218 95 132,313 112,443
Directors' allowance 59,284 - 59,284 53,306
Office rent 43,414 14,348 57,762 57,103
Public relations 37,280 - 37,280 29,213
Insurance 19,953 8,264 28,217 31,757
Staff travel and training 23,660 2,890 26,550 48,911
Consulting, legal and miscellaneous 26,054 - 26,054 3,198
Interest and bank charges 1,442 - 1,442 2,000
1,889,521 473,428 2,362,949 1,882,147
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 184,992 $ 241530 $ 426,522 $ 614,051

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31

Restricted -
Invested in Forest Unrestricted -
Capital Renewal General
2018 Assets Fund Fund Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 534,874 $ 3,050,709 $ 5,784,572 $ 9,370,155
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses (Note 8) (189,766) 241,530 374,758 426,522
Invested in capital assets (Note 8) 106,848 - (106,848) -
Balance, end of year $ 451,956 $ 3,292,239 $ 6,052,482 $ 9,796,677
Restricted -
Invested in Forest Unrestricted -
Capital Renewal General
2017 Assets Fund Fund Total
Balance, beginning of year $ 275,257 2,935,404 $ 5,545,443 $ 8,756,104
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses (Note 8) (176,453) 115,305 675,199 614,051
Invested in capital assets (Note 8) 436,070 - (436,070) -
Balance, end of year $ 534,874 $ 3,050,709 $ 5,784,572 $ 9,370,155

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority
Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended March 31 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of revenue over expenses 426,522 614,051
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Amortization of capital assets 189,766 176,453
Gain on sale of capital assets (9,115) (15,195)
607,173 775,309
Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Accounts receivable (3,315,750) 1,527,624
Inventories held for sale 22,516 (214,428)
Prepaid expenses - 5,439
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 773,671 191,973
Contractors' performance holdbacks 14,456 (19,883)
Due to Consolidated Revenue Fund 76,888 (66,907)
Deferred contributions (17,352) 7,391
Obligation for employee future benefits (15,775) (86,887)
(1,854,173) 2,119,631
Cash flows from capital activities
Acquisition of capital assets (106,848) (436,070)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 9,115 15,195
(97,733) (420,875)
Net (decrease) increase in cash (1,951,906) 1,698,756
Cash
Beginning of year 3,305,316 1,606,560
End of year 1,353,410 3,305,316

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

Algonquin Forestry Authority (the "Authority") is a Crown Agency which was established by the Ontario Government on
January 4, 1975 under the Algonquin Forestry Authority Act, 1974 . The Authority is responsible for forest management in
Algonquin Provincial Park and operates on a not-for-profit basis. The Authority is exempt from income taxes under the
Income Tax Act.

1. Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The Authority's financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards including the 4200 standards for government not-for-profit organizations. A statement of remeasurement gains
and losses has not been presented as there is nothing to report therein.

Fund accounting

The General Fund accounts for the Authority's revenue generating and administrative activities. The Forest Renewal Fund
accounts for the forest management activities, including silvicultural work.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from product sales and forest renewal charges are recognized when the wood is delivered, and the customer
takes ownership and assumes risk of loss, collection of the relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists and the sales price is fixed and determinable.

The Authority accounts for contributions, which include government grants, under the deferral method of accounting as
follows:

Operating grants are recorded as revenue in the period to which they relate. Grants approved but not received at
the end of a period are accrued. Grants relating to future periods are deferred and recognized in the subsequent
period when the related activity occurs. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amounts can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the period in which the related expenses are
recoghized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue on
the same basis and at rates corresponding to those of the related capital assets.

Other income is recognized when earned.

Inventories held for sale

Inventories held for sale, which consist of harvested wood not yet delivered to customers, are measured at the lower of
cost and net realizable value with cost being determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Cost includes all acquisition costs
incurred in bringing inventory to its present location and condition. Net realizable value is estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less any applicabie selling expenses.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Capital assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Amortization is provided on the straight-line basis using the following annual rates:

Asset Rate
Automotive equipment and trailers 25%
Portable steel structures 20%
Technical and data processing equipment 10%
Furniture and fixtures 10%
Leasehold improvements 10%

The cost of bridges and access roads is amortized over the estimated number of operating seasons for which the bridges
and roads are to be used, with a maximum amortization period of 10 years. Forest renewal assets (comprised of furniture
and fixtures, technical and data processing equipment, automotive equipment and trailers) are amortized on the same
basis and at the same rates as the assets mentioned above.

Financial instruments

The Authority's financial assets and financial liabilities are accounted for as follows:
Cash is subject to an insignificant risk of change in value so carrying value approximates fair value.

Accounts receivable are recorded at amortized cost less any amount for valuation allowances. Valuation allowances
are made to reflect accounts receivable at the lower of amortized cost and the net recoverable value, when
collectability and risk of loss exists. Changes in valuation allowances are recognized in the Statement of Operations.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities, contractors' performance holdbacks and Due to Consolidated Revenue
Fund are recorded at amortized cost.

The Authority does not use derivative financial instruments.
Employee future benefits

The Authority provides termination benefits to qualifying employees for services rendered prior to January 1, 2016. The
costs of severance entittements under the Public Service of Ontario Act and unused vacation entittements earned by
employees during the year are accrued for in the financial statements. The costs of any legislated severance are
recognized when earned by eligible employees.

Defined contribution plan accounting is applied to a muiti-employer defined benefit plan for which the Authority has
insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting periods. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include determination
of the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, inventory obsolescence, useful lives of capital assets and employee
future benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and as
adjustments become necessary, they are reported in the statement of operations in the year in which they become known.

2, Related party transactions

The Authority, under the provisions of the Algonquin Forestry Authority Act, is subject to the direction and control of the
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (“the Ministry”). During the normal course of operations, the Authority entered
into the following related party transactions with the Ministry during the year:

i) Received funding for the reimbursement of road construction and maintenance costs (see Notes 5 and 10)
ii) Received funding for the reimbursement of public access road maintenance costs (see Notes 5 and 10)
iii) Paid crown timber stumpage charges (see Note 13)

All related party transactions have been recorded at their exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the related parties.

3. Accounts receivable 2018 2017
Trade receivables $ 9,984,921 $ 6,666,575
Billable stumpage and other 498,778 501,374
10,483,699 7,167,949
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (37,914) (37,914)

$ 10,445,785 $ 7,130,035
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Algonquin Forestry Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

4 Capital assets 2018
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
Bridges and access roads $ 5,346,799 § 5,346,799 $ -
Portable steel structures 958,076 723,395 234,681
Forest renewal assets 498,042 395,978 102,064
Automotive equipment 518,870 420,106 98,764
Technical equipment 181,435 174,869 6,566
Data processing equipment 74,720 71,694 3,026
Furniture and fixtures 50,608 50,608 -
Leasehold improvements 44,804 44 804 -
Trailers 12,550 5,695 6,855
$ 7685904 $ 7,233,948 $ 451,956

2017
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value
Bridges and access roads $ 5,346,799 $ 5,346,799 $ -
Portable steel structures 958,076 676,496 281,580
Forest renewal assets 512,662 384,558 128,104
Automotive equipment 459,190 349,752 109,438
Technical equipment 176,007 172,623 3,384
Data processing equipment 74,720 70,181 4,539
Furniture and fixtures 50,608 50,608 -
Leasehold improvements 44,804 44,804 -
Trailers 12,550 4,721 7,829
$ 7635416 $ 7,100,542 $ 534,874

5. Deferred contributions

Deferred contributions represent unspent resources received from the Ministry in the current period and which relate to
expenses of future periods. Changes in the deferred contributions balance are as follows:

Road
construction Public access
and road
maintenance maintenance 2018 Total 2017 Total
Balance, beginning of year $ - $ 33,240 $ 33,240 $ 25,849
Add: contributions received in the year 1,951,566 300,000 2,251,566 2,169,561
Less: amount spent in the year (1,951,566) (317,352) (2,268,918) (2,162,170)

Balance, end of year $ - $ 15888 $ 15,888 $ 33,240
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Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

6. Employee future benefits
(@)  Multi-employer pension plan

The Authority's full-time employees participate in the Public Service Pension Fund ("PSPF") which is a defined
benefit pension plan for certain employees of the Province of Ontario and many provincial agencies. The Province
of Ontario, which is the sole sponsor of the PSPF, determines the Authority's annual payments to PSPF. As the
sponsor is responsible for ensuring that the pension fund is financially viable, any surpluses or unfunded liabilities
arising from the statutory actuarial funding valuations are not assets or obligations of the Authority. The Authority's
annual payments of $141,080 (2017 - $117,019) are included in salaries and benefits in the Statement of
Operations.

(b)  Termination benefits

The Authority provides termination benefits to qualifying employees. All full-time employees hired before April 1,
2014 qualify for a severance payment equal to one week of salary for each year of continuous service with the
Authority provided before January 1, 2016, to a maximum of one-half of the employees' annual salary. The total
obligation for vested severance payments amounts to $334,172 (2017 - $349,947) at year end.

(¢)  Non-pension post-retirement benefits

The cost of other non-pension post-retirement benefits is the responsibility of the Province of Ontario, a related
party, and accordingly is not accrued or included in the Statement of Operations.

7. Forest Renewal Fund

Effective September 6, 2012, the Authority renewed its agreement with the Ministry to perform forest management
activities, including silvicultural work. Funding, on a cost recovery basis, for these activities is derived from stumpage
charges levied under the Crown Forest Sustainability Act and grants from the Forestry Futures Fund. The term of the
agreement commenced April 1, 2007 and expires March 31, 2027.

The agreement also requires the Authority to maintain a minimum balance of $1,500,000 in the Forest Renewal Fund.
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Algonquin Forestry Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

8. Invested in capital assets 2018 2017

(@)  Investment in capital assets $ 451,956 $ 534,874

(b)  Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

Deficiency of revenues over expenses:
Amortization of capital assets $ (189,766) $ (176,453)

()  Netchange in investment in capital assets:

Purchase of capital assets $ 106,848 $ 436,070

9. Interfund transfer

The Board of Directors has approved, by resolution, that any loss incurred in the Forest Renewal Fund resulting from
forest renewal activity expenses exceeding revenues, net of related capital asset amortization, during the year which
cannot be funded by the Forest Renewal Fund without causing the Forest Renewal Fund balance to fall below $2,500,000
shall be funded by the General Fund. No amount has been transferred during the year (2017 - $Nil).

10. Other revenue 2018 2017
Ministry reimbursement - road construction and maintenance $ 1,951,566 $ 1,869,561
Ministry reimbursement - public access road maintenance 317,353 292,609
Interest 196,167 269,315
Gain on sale of capital assets 9,115 15,195
Forestry Futures Trust Ontario 397,914 196,901
Other 115,712 154,919

$ 2,987,827 $ 2,798,500

Included in General Fund other revenue is revenue of $1.95 million (2017 - $1.87 million) received by the Authority
pursuant to an agreement with the Ministry. The purpose of the agreement is to provide the Authority with reimbursement
of road construction and maintenance costs on eligible primary and secondary forest access roads where access to those
roads is not limited to the forest industry. A portion of the Ministry funding was passed on to the Authority's customers
through a rebate allocated on the basis of sales volumes. In fiscal year 2018, $472,632 (2017 - $492,002) was passed on
to the Authority's customers and is netted in product sales in the Statement of Operations.

11. Remuneration of appointments

Total remuneration of the Board members of the Authority was approximately $28,700 during the fiscal year (2017 -
$24,600).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

12.  Financial instruments risk management

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. The Authority's credit risk arises from its financial assets including cash and receivables. The
Authority's receivables are due from various customers and from government agencies and are collectible. All cash
deposits are held with financial institutions. As such, the Authority is not exposed to significant credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet all cash ouiflow obligations as they come due. The
Authority is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its accounts payable and accrued liabilities, contractors’ performance
holdbacks and amounts due to the Consolidated Revenue Fund. The Authority mitigates this risk by monitoring cash
activities and expected outflows through extensive budgeting and maintaining adequate cash balances in the near-term if
unexpected cash outflows arise.

13. Crown timber stumpage charges

Crown timber stumpage charges are incurred during the normal course of operations and are paid to the Ministry. Any
amounts owing by the Authority at year end are recorded as Due to Consolidated Revenue Fund on the Statement of
Financial Position. Year end balances are normally settled in full in the first quarter of the following year.
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KPMG LLP Telephone 905) 265-5900
100 New Park Place Fax (416) 777-8818

Suite 1400 www.kpmg.ca

Vaughan ON L4K 0J3

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To Board of Directors of Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc.

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc., which comprise
the separate balance sheet as at December 31, 2017, the separate statement of operations and retained earnings, cash
flows and changes in shareholder's equity for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the separate
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the separate financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the separate financial position of
Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc. as at December 31, 2017, and its separate financial performance and its separate cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

_ LT

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Vaughan, Canada
March 29, 2018

KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.


http:www.kpmg.ca
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Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc.
Separate Balance Sheet

As at December 31 As atDecember 31

2017 2016
Assets
Cash $ 493,539,457 $ -
Loans receivable (including interest accrued) - 211,900,312
Investment in subsidiary - 172,000,000
Due from shareholder 100 100

$ 493,539,557 $ 383,900,412

Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity

Shareholder's equity

Share capital 100 100
Contributed surplus (Note 4) 349,553,394 368,044,793
Retained earnings 143,986,063 15,855,519

493,539,557 383,900,412

$ 493,539,557 $ 383,900,412

Subsequent events (Note 9)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

/m’ %Mwu/_‘ %{W

alr ard of Dlrectors Difector
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Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc.
Separate Statement of Operations
and Retained Earnings

For the For the 12 month
12 month period ended period ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Revenue

Interest income $ 6,624,344 $ 11,883,500

Dividend income from investment (note 5) 30,700,000 -

Gain on sale of investment (Note 5) 160,196,000 -

197,520,344 11,883,500

Expense

Bank Charges 128 -

Consulting Fees 25,747 -

Loss on debt forgiveness (note 7) 69,207,048 -

Office expenses 1,271 -

Professional fees 45,200 -

Salaries and benefits 109,586 -

Travel 820 -

69,389,800 11,883,500

Net income 128,130,544 11,883,500
Retained earnings, beginning of period 15,855,519 3,972,019

Retained earnings, end of period $ 143,986,063 $ 15,855,519
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Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc.
Separate Cash Flow Statement for the year ended December 31, 2017

For the 12 month
period ended For the 12 month

December 31, period ended
2017 December 31, 2016

Operating Activities
Net Income 128,130,544 11,883,500
Add back: interest income - 6,624,344 - 11,883,500
Add back: dividend income - 30,700,000 -
Net Cash from Operating Activities 90,806,200 -
Investing Activities
Pre-closing dividend received from investee 30,700,000 -
Interest received from investee 25,524,656 -
Proceeds from HOBNI sale 545,400,000 -
Non-cash Gain on sale of HOBNI investment - 160,196,000 -
Non-cash loss on debt forgiveness 69,200,000 -
Net Cash from Investing Activities 510,628,656 -
Financing Activities
Regulatory distribution to Province of Ontario - 107,895,399 -
Net Cash used in Financing Activities - 107,895,399 -
Net Increase in Cash Flow 493,539,457 -

Cash at the beginning of the period - -

Cash at the end of the period 493,539,457 -
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Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc.

Separate Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity

Contributed Retained
Share Capital  Surplus (note 4) Earnings Total
Balance at December 31, 2015 (note 4) 100 368,044,793 3,972,019 372,016,912
Current Net Income 11,883,500 11,883,500
Balance at December 31, 2016 100 368,044,793 15,855,519 383,900,412
Net Income 128,130,544 128,130,544
Settlement of Asset (note 4) 89,404,000 89,404,000
Regulatory transfer to Province (note 6) - 107,895,399 - 107,895,399

Balance at December 31, 2017 100 349,553,394 143,986,063 493,539,557
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BramptonDistribution Holdco Inc.
Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

Financial Notes

1. Description of the Business
Brampton Distribution Holdco Inc. (the “Company” or “Brampton HoldCo”) was incorporated on
August 31, 2015 under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The Company is wholly owned
by the Province of Ontario (Province)

2. Basis of Operation

These separate financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 12 months ended
December 31, 2016 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). During the period, Brampton Hold Co. sold 100% of its interest in Hydro One
Brampton Networks Inc. (“HOBNI”) to Alectra Utilities Corporation. (the “Purchaser”) for a total
proceeds of $614,600,000. The cost of investment immediately before the transaction was
$454,404,000 (note 5). These separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the significant accounting policies described in Note 3.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash
Cash includes cash in bank accounts.

Investments

In an entity’s separate financial statements, acquisitions of shares in an entity under common control
are outside the scope of IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. IFRS provides no direct guidance on the
accounting for these types of transactions as a result the Company was required to develop an
accounting policy in line with IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements.

The Company adopted an accounting policy to account for the acquisition of the investment in
Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. (“HOBNI”) by Brampton Holdco using book value as both
Brampton Holdco and Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc. (“HOBNI”) are both wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Province of Ontario and as such are part of the same larger economic group. In
applying book value accounting, no entries are recognized to the income statement; instead, the
result of the transaction is recognized in equity as arising from a transaction with shareholders. The
book value of the investment in “HOBNI” has been determined to be the carrying amount in the
separate financial statements of Hydro One Inc. (“HOI”) being the transferor

The following tables summarize the carrying value of the net investment of Brampton Hold Co as at
August 31, 2015:

July 31, 2001 - HOI Acquired Brampton Hydro Corporation for 262,000,000
Nov 13, 2001 - HOBNI reduction in stated capital (143,000,000)
August 31, 2015 - HOBNI Spin off completed and HOI Subscription 53,000,000

Brampton HoldCo investment in HOBNI as of August 31, 2015 172,000,000
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Notes to the Separate Financial Statements

Financial Notes

4,

Contributed Surplus

The contributed surplus as at December 31, 2017 consists of assets transferred from Hydro One Inc.
of $368,044,793 on the inception of Brampton HoldCo. on August 31, 2015 and a deemed
contribution of $89,404,000 from share issuance by a subsidiary for settlement of loans receivable
during the period. The following table provides the break-down;

Asset transferred from HOI on August 31, 2015:

Loan Receivable 193,000,000
Interest Receivable 3,044,793
Fair Value of Investment from HOI 172,000,000
Total Asset transferred 368,044,793
Settlement of Debt Receivable on February 27, 2017:

Long Term Debt 193,000,000
Share issuance at fair value 282,404,000
Total difference carried over to Contributed surplus 89,404,000

HOBNI Sale

The Company was incorporated under the Ontario Business Corporations Act, (OBCA) on August
31, 2015 as a result of the Province’s decision to move forward with broadening the ownership of
Hydro One Inc. and sell its interest in HOBNI. The Province and Brampton Holdco entered into a
Share Purchase Agreement on March 24, 2016 with the purchaser for a purchase price of $607
million on a debt-free basis, subject to post-closing working capital and fixed asset adjustments. The
sale of HOBNI to the Purchaser closed on February 28, 2017. The following table provides
breakdown of Purchase Price calculation at close and Post-closing adjustments:

Base Cash Purchase Price 507,000,000
Promissory Note 100,000,000
Add: Working Capital Adjustment 28,300,000
Add: Net Fixed Asset Adjustment 12,200,000
Less: Pre-close dividend 30,700,000
Purchase Price at close 616,800,000
Less: Final working capital and net fixed assetadjustment 2,200,000
Net Purchase Price 614,600,000
Cost of Investment:

Less: Investment in HOBNI (note 3) 172,000,000
Less: Share Issuance at Fair Value 282,404,000
Cost of Investment 454,404,000
Gain on Sale Proceeds (Net Purchase Price Less Cost of Investment) 160,196,000

Regulatory Transfer to Province

Ontario Regulation 387/17, Trillium Trust Act, 2014 for Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc.
applies with respect to voting securities of Hydro One Brampton Networks Inc., Purpose of the
section 6 of the Act covers following amount in connection with the disposition of the assets is to be
credited to the Trillium Trust promptly after this section comes into force: $107,895,399, being 100
per cent of the designated proceeds of disposition, as determined undersection 4 of the Act.
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Financial Notes

Promissory Note

Initial principal amount of $100,000,000 made between The Company and Alectra Utilities
Corporation dated February 28, 2017 which Note was delivered pursuant to Section 2.3(1)(b) of the
Purchase Agreement. Reference is further made to Section 4(a) of the Note which permits Alectra
Utilities Corporation to reduce the Principal Amount by the Reduction Amount by written notice to
the Company. Alectra Utilities Corporation notified The Company that the Principal Amount is
reduced by the Reduction Amount that MergeCo has calculated the Reduction Amount to be
$69,235,048 and that Alectra Utilities Corporation has calculated the Principal Amount to be
$30,764,952 dated April 27, 2017. This has resulted in $69.2 million adjustment to Purchase Price
of $607 million.

Future Accounting Pronouncements

A number of new accounting standards, amendments and interpretations, including but not limited
to IFRS 15 - Revenue from Customer Contracts, IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments and IFRS 16 -
Leases have been issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and are not yet
effective for the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company is in the process of evaluating the
impact of these standards

Subsequent Bvent
Brampton HoldCo has transferred $492,500,000.00 on February 23, 2018 to the Province of
Ontario.


http:492,500,000.00
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June 25, 2018

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Information

Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the financial statements and all other
information presented in this financial statement. The financial statements have been prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and, where appropriate,
include amounts based on management’s best estimates and judgements.

Cancer Care Ontario is dedicated to the highest standards of integrity and patient care. To safeguard
Cancer Care Ontario’s assets, a sound and dynamic set of internal financial controls and procedures
that balance benefits and costs has been established. Management has developed and maintains
financial and management controls, information systems and management practices to provide
reasonable assurance of the reliability of financial information. Internal audits are conducted to assess
management systems and practices, and reports are issued to the Audit Finance Committee.

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2018, Cancer Care Ontario’s Board of Directors, through the Audit
Finance Committee, was responsible for ensuring that management fulfilled its responsibilities for
financial reporting and internal controls. The Committee meets regularly with management, the
internal auditor and the Auditor General to satisfy itself that each group had properly discharged its
respective responsibility, and to review the financial statements before recommending approval by the
Board of Directors. The Auditor General had direct and full access to the Audit Finance Committee,
with and without the presence of management, to discuss their audit and their findings as to the
integrity of Cancer Care Ontario’s financial reporting and the effectiveness of the system of internal
controls.

The financial statements have been examined by the Office of the Auditor General of Ontario. The
Auditor General’s responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly
presented in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The Auditor’s Report
outlines the scope of the Auditor’s examination and opinion.

On behalf of Cancer Care Ontario Management,

Michael Sherar, Elham Roushani, BSc, CPA, CA

PhD President and Vice President & Chief Financial

CEO Officer
S »> ,
620 University Ave, Toronto, ON M5G 2L7 [/r Ontarlo

T 416.971.9800 | F 416.971.6888 | publicaffairs@cancercare.on.ca | cancercare.on.ca Cancer Care Ontario
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Office of the Auditor General of Ontario

Bureau du vérihcateur général de I'Ontario
Independent Auditor’s Report

To Cancer Care Ontario
and to the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cancer Care Ontario, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and the statements of operations, changes in
fund balances, and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I
conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of Cancer Care Ontario as at March 31, 2018 and the results of its operations, and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

=
Toronto, Ontario Bonnie Lysyk, MBA, FCPA, FCA, LPA
June 25,2018 Auditor General
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Cancer Care Ontario

Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash (note 3) 19,882 64,745
Investments (note 4) 71,818 76,226
Receivables and prepaid expenses (note 5) 13,851 5,069
105,551 146,040
Capital assets (note 6) 9,433 6,867
114,984 152,907
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) 73,051 98,161
Non-current liabilities
Deferred contributions related to capital assets (note 8) 7,626 5,989
Post-employment benefits other than pension plan (note 9(b)) 2,344 2,428
9,970 8,417
Fund Balances
Endowment 88 88
Internally restricted - 86
Externally restricted 1,473 1,577
General - unrestricted 28,595 43,700
Invested in capital assets (note 10) 1,807 878
31,963 46,329
114,984 152,907

Commitments (note 15)
Contingencies (note 16)

Guarantees (note 17)

App\t%ljﬂ‘j Boayd/6f Directors
. { r'{ Director Q Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

Restricted General Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
$ $ $ $ $ $
Revenue
Ministry of Health and
Long-Term Care - - 2131,356 2,023,038 2,131,356 2,023,038
Amortization of deferred
contributions related to
capital assets (note 8) - - 1,107 1,268 1,107 1,268
Other revenue (note 11) 2,175 1,396 4,162 5,297 6,337 6,693
Investment income (note 12) - 1 2,480 2,201 2,480 2,202
2,175 1,397 2,139,105 2,031,804 2,141,280 2,033,201
Expenses
Cancer and prevention related
services - 9 800,567 754,123 800,567 754,132
Chronic kidney disease services - - 631,408 634,118 631,408 634,118
Provincial drug reimbursement
program - - 378,839 319,262 378,839 319,262
Screening services - - 167,729 159,986 167,729 159,986
Salaries and benefits (note 9) 1,867 1,953 106,926 105,845 108,793 107,798
Capital contributions to cancer
related services - - 37,895 34,730 37,895 34,730
Other operating expenses
(note 13) 162 237 21,208 20,365 21,370 20,602
Purchased services 308 496 5,829 2,882 6,137 3,378
Amortization of capital assets - - 1,598 2,279 1,598 2,279
Clinical translational research - - 1,310 1,385 1,310 1,385
2,337 2695 2,153,309 2,034,975 2,155,646 2,037,670
(Deficiency) of revenue over
expenses (162) (1,298) (14,204) (3,171) (14,366) (4,469)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Cancer Care Ontario

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

2018
Restricted Invested
General in capital
Endowment Internally  Externally unrestricted assets Total
$ $
Fund balances -
March 31, 2017 88 86 1,577 43,700 878 46,329
(Deficiency) of
revenue over
expenses - (86) (76) (14,204) - (14,366)
Net change in
invested in
capital assets
(note 10) - - - (929) 929 -
Interfund transfers
(note 14) - - (28) 28 - -
Fund balances -
March 31, 2018 88 - 1,473 28,595 1,807 31,963
2017
Restricted Invested
General in capital
Endowment Internally  Externally unrestricted assets Total
$
Fund balances -
March 31, 2016 1,088 99 1,867 45,974 1,770 50,798
(Deficiency) of
revenue over
expenses (1,000) (8) (290) (3,171) - (4,469)
Net change in
invested in
capital assets
(note 10) - - - 892 (892) -
Interfund transfers
(note 14) - (5) - 5 - -
Fund balances -
March 31, 2017 88 86 1,577 43,700 878 46,329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



1-66 PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2017-2018

Cancer Care Ontario

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

2018 2017
$ $
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
(Deficiency) of revenue over expenses (14,366) (4,469)
Amortization of capital assets 1,598 2,279
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets (1,107) (1,268)
Post-employment benefits expense other than pension plan 138 141
Post-employment benefits paid other than pension plan (222) (224)
Change in non-cash operating working capital
Receivables and prepaid expenses (8,782) 44,025
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (25,110) (21,035)
(47,851) 19,449
Capital activities
Purchase of capital assets (4,164) (3,099)
Investing activities
Proceeds from maturity of investments 76,756 -
Purchase of investments (72,348) (10,085)
4,408 (10,085)
Financing activities
Amounts received related to capital assets 2,744 2,980
(Decrease) increase in cash during the year (44,863) 9,245
Cash - Beginning of year 64,745 55,500
Cash - End of year 19,882 64,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)
1 Nature of operations

Cancer Care Ontario (the Organization) is the provincial government agency responsible for driving health
system performance improvement for Ontario’s cancer and chronic kidney disease health systems. The
Organization also supports achievement of Ontario’s Wait Time and Emergency Room/Alternate Level of Care
Strategies through the collection and provision of information that enables the government to measure, manage
and improve access quality and efficiency of care. With this mandate, the Organization is responsible for the
funding to continually improve health system performance to ensure that patients receive the right care, at the
right time, in the right place, at every step of their journey.

The Organization’s role includes working with healthcare providers in every region across the province to plan
services that will meet current and future patient needs; to support providers in delivering the highest-quality
care aligned to evidence-based standards and guidelines; and to work with administrators, doctors and other
care providers to improve system efficiency and effectiveness.

The Organization also leads the development and implementation of innovative payment models; implements
provincial programs designed to raise screening participation rates; translates research and evidence into
standards and guidelines; puts information into the hands of the provincial policy makers; and ensures
Ontarians have cancer and renal care systems that are accountable, efficient and of the highest quality by
measuring and reporting on the performance of services.

The Organization is primarily funded by the Province of Ontario through the Ministry of Health and Long-Term
Care (MOHLTC).

The Organization is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and, accordingly, is exempt from
income taxes, provided certain requirements of the Income Tax Act are met. Members of the Board of Directors
and Board Committees are volunteers who serve without remuneration.

2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Public Sector Accounting Standards for
government not-for-profit organizations, as issued by the Public Sector Accounting Board.

Fund accounting

The Endowment Fund reports contributions subject to externally-imposed stipulations specifying that the
resources contributed be maintained permanently, unless specifically disendowed by the donor. Restricted
investment income earned on Endowment Fund resources is recognized as revenue of the Externally
Restricted Fund.

Investment income is recognized on an accrual basis. Interest income is accrued based on the number of
days the investment is held during the year.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies - continued

The Internally Restricted Fund reports funds internally restricted by the Board of Directors for education,
research or other special purposes.

The Externally Restricted Fund reports donations and grants which have restrictions placed on their use by the
donor, primarily related to research. The Organization ensures, as part of its fiduciary responsibility, that all
funds received with a restricted purpose are expended for the purpose for which they were provided.

The General Fund accounts for the Organization’s MOHLTC and other funded programs. This Fund reports
unrestricted resources, all restricted grants from MOHLTC, and restricted grants from others for which the
Organization has no corresponding restricted fund.

Contributions

The Organization follows the restricted fund method of accounting for its restricted contributions.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund if the amount to be received can
be reasonably estimated and ultimate collection is reasonably assured. Restricted contributions for which
there is no corresponding Restricted Fund (including MOHLTC and other funded programs) are
recognized as revenue in the General Fund using the deferral method.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the General Fund when the amount is reasonably
estimable and collection is probable.

Unrestricted contributions received for the purpose of capital assets are recorded as deferred capital
contributions related to capital assets and are amortized on the same basis as the related capital assets.

Contributions for endowment are recognized as revenue of the Endowment Fund in the year of receipt.
Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers deposits in banks, certificates of deposit, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are measured at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, financial
instruments (including investments) are reported at cost or amortized cost less impairment, if applicable.
Financial assets are tested for impairment when there is objective evidence of impairment. When there has
been a loss in value of investments that is other than a temporary decline, the investment is written down and
the loss is recorded in the statement of operations. For receivables, when a loss is considered probable, the
receivable is reflected at its estimated net recoverable amount, with the loss reported on the statement of
operations. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are charged to the
financial instrument.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

2

Significant accounting policies - continued
Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Third party and internal labour costs are capitalized under software in connection with the development of
information technology projects.

All capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis at rates based on the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Therapeutic and other technical equipment are amortized over periods ranging from 4 years to 9 years; office
furniture and equipment are amortized over periods ranging from 3 years to 5 years; and leasehold
improvements are amortized over the term of the leases. Software is amortized over periods ranging from

3 years to 4 years.

Land and buildings for four lodges donated by the Canadian Cancer Society - Ontario Division are recorded at
nominal value, as the fair value was not reasonably determinable at the time of the donation.

When a capital asset no longer has any long-term service potential to the Organization, the differential of its net
carrying amount and any residual value, is recognized as a gain or loss, as appropriate, in the statement of
operations.

Expenses

Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis.

Pension benefits and post-employment benefits other than pension plan
i)  Pension costs

The Organization accounts for its participation in the Healthcare of Ontario Pension Plan (HOOPP), a
multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, as a defined contribution plan, as the Organization has
insufficient information to apply defined benefit plan accounting. Therefore, the Organization’s
contributions are accounted for as if the plan were a defined contribution plan with the Organization’s
contributions being expensed in the period they come due.

ii)  Post-employment benefits other than pension plan

The cost of post-employment benefits other than pension plan is actuarially determined using the
projected benefit method pro-rated on services and expensed as employment services are rendered.
Adjustments to these costs arising from changes in estimates and actuarial experience gains and losses are
amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of the employee groups on a straight-line
basis.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

2 Significant accounting policies - continued
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Items subject to such
estimates and assumptions include accruals and receivables related to drug expenditures. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

3 Cash

Cash includes $330 (2017 - $330), which is restricted, as it relates to a pension plan that has been dissolved
and is being held in escrow in the event that former members put forth a claim. These funds are subject to
externally imposed restrictions and are not available for general use.

4 Investments

2018 2017
$ $

Guaranteed investment certificates, as follows:

Redeemable on demand:

Interest at 2.28%, maturing September 19, 2019 10,088 -
Interest at 1.95%, maturing November 4, 2019 10,079 -
Interest at 2.28%, maturing September 20, 2019 6,005 -
Interest at 1.75%, maturing September 5, 2017 - 44 861
Interest at 1.75%, maturing October 2, 2017 - 10,830
Interest at 1.75%, maturing November 3, 2017 - 10,450

Non-Redeemable:
Interest at 1.75%, maturing September 5, 2018 45,646

Interest at 1.60%, maturing March 19, 2018 10,085
71,818 76,226

5 Receivables and prepaid expenses
2018 2017
$ $
Accounts receivable 3,147 2,606
Due from MOHLTC 780 350
Prepaid expenses 9,924 2,113

13,851 5,069
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

6 Capital assets

2018

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

$ $ $

Therapeutic and other technical equipment 2,996 2,976 20
Office furniture and equipment 6,914 6,177 737
Leasehold improvements 6,064 5,082 982
Land and building 1 - 1
Software 37,043 29,350 7,693
53,018 43,585 9,433

2017

Accumulated Net book

Cost amortization value

Therapeutic and other technical equipment 2,996 2,955 41
Office furniture and equipment 7,417 6,798 619
Leasehold improvements 5,058 4,972 86
Land and building 1 - 1
Software 34,633 28,513 6,120
50,105 43,238 6,867

The cost of capital assets include software under development of $6,208 (2017 - $3,464), leasehold
improvements not yet available for use of $765 (2017 - $Nil), and office furniture not yet available for use of
$414 (2017 - $Nil). Amortization of these amounts will commence when the asset is available for use. During
the year, there were disposals of fully depreciated capital assets of $1,251 (2017 - $4,130). The values represent
the original cost.

7  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

2018 2017

$ $

Trade payables - 38,738
Accrued liabilities 54,829 48,783
Payable to MOHLTC 17,891 10,206
Payable to other funders 1 104
Pension escrow (note 3) 330 330

73,051 98,161
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

8 Deferred contributions related to capital assets

The changes in the deferred contributions related to capital assets balance for the year are as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Balance - beginning of year 5,989 4,277
Amounts received related to capital assets 2,744 2,980
Amounts recognized as revenue (1,107) (1,268)
Balance - end of year 7,626 5,989

9 Pension benefits and post-employment benefits

a)

b)

Pension plan

Employees of the Organization are members of HOOPP, which is a multi-employer contributory defined
benefit pension plan. HOOPP members receive benefits based on length of service and the average
annualized earnings during the five consecutive years that provide the highest earnings prior to retirement,
termination or death.

Contributions to HOOPP made during the year by the Organization on behalf of its employees amounted
to $8,328 (2017 - $8,724) and are included in the pension expenses, which reflect all amounts owing for
the year, in the statement of operations.

Post-employment benefits plan other than pension plan

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Organization offered non-pension, post-employment health and dental
benefits to its active and retired employees. Effective January 1, 2006, the Organization offers non-
pension, post-employment benefits only to its retired employees, who retired prior to January 1, 2006.
Benefits paid during the year under this unfunded plan were $222 (2017 - $224). The actuarial valuation
for the post-employment benefits other than pension plan is dated March 31, 2017 and has been
extrapolated to March 31, 2018.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

9 Pension benefits and post-employment benefits - continued

b) Post-employment benefits plan other than pension plan — continued

Information about the Organization’s post-employment benefits other than pension plan is as follows:

2018 2017
$ $
Accrued benefit obligation 2,633 2,795
Unamortized actuarial losses (289) (367)
Post-employment benefits other than pension plan 2,344 2,428
The movement in the employee future benefits liability during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
$ $
Post-employment benefits other than pension plan -
opening balance 2,428 2,511
Expense related to post-retirement benefits 138 141
Funding contributions (222) (224)
Post-employment benefits other than pension plan - ending
balance 2,344 2,428
2018 2017
$ $
Interest cost 81 84
Amortization of experience losses 57 57
Total expense related to post-retirement benefits 138 141
The actuarially determined present value of the accrued benefit obligation is measured using
management’s best estimates based on assumptions that reflect the most probable set of economic
circumstances and planned courses of action as follows:
2018 2017
Discount rate 3.00% 3.00%
Extended health care trend rate 6.00% in 6.00% in
2018 to 4.5% 2017 to 4.5%
in 2023 and in 2023 and
after after
Dental cost trend rates 3% 3%
Employee average remaining lifetime (years) 9.5 9.5
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

10 Invested in capital assets

2018 2017
$ $
Capital assets 9,433 6,867
Amounts financed by deferred capital contributions (note 8) (7,626) (5,989)
1,807 878
Change in net assets invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:
2018 2017
$ $
Purchase of capital assets 4,164 3,099
Capital funding (2,744) (2,980)
Amortization of deferred contributions related to capital assets 1,107 1,268
Amortization of capital assets (1,598) (2,279)
929 (892)
11 Other revenue
2018 2017
$ $
General Fund
Public Health Ontario 2,720 2,353
Canadian Partnership Against Cancer - 1,231
Other income 1,442 1,713
4,162 5,297
Restricted Fund
Grants 2,175 1,396

12 Investment income

Investment income earned on the Endowment Fund resources in the amount of $1 (2017 - $1) is included in the
Restricted Fund.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

13 Other operating expenses

2018 2017
$ $
Restricted Fund 162 237

General Fund
Equipment 7,590 7,492
General office 1,480 1,385
Occupancy costs 6,240 5,213
Education and publications 2,225 2,209
Consulting services 1,637 1,968
Travel 1,634 1,610
Professional fees 175 176
Other expenses 227 312
21,208 20,365

14 Interfund transfers

2018 2017
$ $
Transfer to the General Fund from the Internally Restricted Fund - 5
Transfer to the General Fund from the Externally Restricted Fund 28 -
28 5

15 Commitments

The minimum rental payments for lease space, computer and office equipment, and software agreements under
the terms of the operating leases are estimated as follows for the years ending March 31:

$
2019 9,487
2020 9,268
2021 7,076
2022 5,841
2023 2,723

34,395
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

16 Contingencies

The Organization is a member of the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada (HIROC), which was
established by hospitals and other organizations to self-insure. If the aggregate premiums paid are not
sufficient to cover claims, the Organization will be required to provide additional funding on a participatory
basis.

Since the inception, HIROC has accumulated an unappropriated surplus, which is the total of premiums paid by
all subscribers plus investment income less the obligation for claims reserves and expenses and operating
expenses. Each subscriber which has an excess of premium plus investment income over the obligation for their
allocation of claims reserves and operating expenses may be entitled to receive distributions of their share of
the unappropriated surplus at the time such distributions are declared by the Board of Directors of HIROC.

17 Guarantees
a) Director/officer indemnification

The Organization’s general by-laws contain an indemnification of its directors/officers, former
directors/officers and other persons who have served on board committees against all costs incurred by
them in connection with any action, suit or other proceeding in which they are sued as a result of their
service, as well as all other costs sustained in or incurred by them in relation to their service. This
indemnity excludes costs that are occasioned by the indemnified party’s own dishonesty, wilful neglect or
default.

The nature of the indemnification prevents the Organization from making a reasonable estimate of the
maximum amount that it could be required to pay to counterparties. To offset any potential future
payments, the Organization has purchased from HIROC directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to the
maximum available coverage. The Organization has not made any payments under such indemnifications,
and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying financial statements with respect to the contingent
aspect of these indemnities.

b) Other indemnification agreements

In the normal course of its operations, the Organization executes agreements that provide for
indemnification to third parties. These include, without limitation: indemnification of the landlords under
the Organization’s leases of premises; indemnification of the MOHLTC from claims, actions, suits or other
proceedings based upon the actions or omissions of the representative groups of medical, radiation and
gynaecology/oncology physicians under certain Alternate Funding Agreements; and indemnification of the
Integrated Cancer Program host hospitals from claims, actions, costs, damages and expenses brought
about as a result of any breach by the Organization of its obligations under the Cancer Program Integration
Agreement and the related documentation.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)
17 Guarantees - continued
b) Other indemnification agreements - continued

While the terms of these indemnities vary based upon the underlying contract, they normally extend for
the term of the contract. In most cases, the contract does not provide a limit on the maximum potential
amount of indemnification, which prevents the Organization from making a reasonable estimate of its
maximum potential exposure. The Organization has not made any payments under such indemnifications,
and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying financial statements with respect to the contingent
aspect of these indemnities.

18 Financial instruments

The Organization’s financial instruments are exposed to certain financial risks, including credit risk, interest
rate risk, and liquidity risk. There have been no significant changes from the previous year in the exposure to
these risks or in methods used to measure these risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and investments held with financial institutions and credit
exposures on outstanding receivables. Cash and cash equivalents and investments are held at major financial
institutions that have high credit ratings assigned to them by credit-rating agencies minimizing any potential
exposure to credit risk. The Organization assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into account
their financial position and other factors. It is management’s opinion that the risk related to receivables is
minimal as most of the receivables are from federal and provincial governments and organizations controlled
by them.

The Organization’s maximum exposure to credit risk related to accounts receivable at year-end was as follows:

0to 30 31to 60 61 to 90 91 +
days days days days Total
$ $ $ $ $
Accounts receivable 3,009 94 16 28 3,147
Due from MOHLTC - - 780 - 780
Amount receivable 3,009 94 796 28 3,927

As there is no indication that the Organization will not be able to recover these receivables, an impairment
allowance has not been recognized.
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Cancer Care Ontario

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

(in thousands of dollars)

18 Financial instruments - continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. The Organization currently is only exposed to interest rate risk from its
investments. The Organization does not expect fluctuations in market interest rates to have a material impact
on its financial performance and does not use derivative instruments. The Organization mitigates interest rate
risk on its investments by purchasing guaranteed investment certificates with short-term maturities and

demand features.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk the Organization will not be able to meet its cash flow obligations as they fall due. The
Organization mitigates this risk by not incurring debt and monitoring cash activities and expected outflows
through budgeting and maintaining investments that may be converted to cash in the near term if unexpected

cash outflows arise. The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted

contractual cash flows) of financial liabilities:

Accrued liabilities
Payable to MOHLTC
Payable to other funders
Pension escrow

Amount payable

0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 91 +
days days days days Total
$ $ $ $ $
54,485 127 88 129 54,829
17,891 - - - 17,891
1 - - - 1
- - - 330 330
72,377 127 88 459 73,051
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Information

Management and the Board of Trustees of The Centennial Centre of Sciencc and Technology (the Centre)
are responsible for the financial statements and all other information presented in the Annual Report. The
financial statements have been prepared by Management in accordance with the Canadian public scctor
accounting standards, and, where appropriatc, include amounts based on Management’s best estimates and
judgments.

The Centre is dedicated to the highest standards of integrity in its business. To safeguard assets, the Centre
has a sound sct of intcrnal financial controls and procedures that balance benefits and costs. Management
has developed and maintains financial and management controls, information systems and management
practices to provide reasonable assurance of the reliability of financial information.

The Finance and Operations Committcc and the Board of Trustees meet quarterly to oversee the financial
activities of the Centre, including an annual review of the financial statements and the Auditor General’s
report. The Finance and Operations Commitlee recommends the financial statcments to thc Board of
Trustees for approval. The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Trustees.

The financial statements have been auditcd by the Office of the Auditor General of Ontario. The Auditor
General’s responsibility is to cxpress an opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in
accordancc with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The Independent Auditor’s Report that
appears as part of the financial statcments outlines the scope of the Auditor’s examination and opinion.

e

aurice Bitran, Ph.D. erri Lang
hief Executive Officer Chlet Operating Officer

770 Don Mills Road, Toronto 770, Chemin Don Mills, Toronto
Ontario, Canada M3C1T3 (Ontario) Canada M3C1T3
TEL. 416 696 1000 TEL. 416 696 1000
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Office of the Auditor General of Ontario
Bureau de la vérificatrice générale de I'Ontario

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees of The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology
and to the Minister of Tourism, Culture and Sport

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Centennial Centre of Science and
Technology, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, and the
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. |
conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology as at March 31, 2018 and the results
of its operations, and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

Toronto, Ontario Susan Klein, CPA, CA, LPA
June 26,2018 Assistant Auditor General


http:www.aud1tor.on.ca
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Statement of Financial Position

As at March 31, 2018
2018 2017
($ 000) ($ 000)
ASSETS
Current
Cash 13,674 11,793
Cash - Internally Restricted Reserve Fund (Note 6) 3,047 3,000
Accounts receivable (Note 4(B)) 940 532
Prepaid expenses 603 813
Inventory of general stores 107 100
18,371 16,238
Capital Assets (Note 8) 9,417 10,150
27,788 26,388
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,041 2,276
Deferred revenue 4,382 3,523
Due to Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation 2,186 1,888
Due to the Province of Ontario 1,209 1,214
9,818 8,901
Long-Term Liabilities
Accrued legislated employee benefit obligation (Note 13(C)) 2,821 3,056
Deferred Capital Contributions (Note 9) 8,326 8,761
11,147 11,817
20,965 20,718
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets (Note 10) 1,091 1,389
Accumulated surplus 2,685 1,281
Internally Restricted Reserve Fund (Note 6) 3,047 3,000
6,823 5,670
27,788 26,388

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 15)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Centre:

z?/m,?/
Trustee

Trustee
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Revenue
Province of Ontario
Operating grant
Occupancy grant (Note 15(A))
Other grants
General Admission and Parking Fees
Revenue from Ancillary Operations (Schedule 1)

Expenses
General Operations
Exhibits and Programs
Marketing and Advertising
Visitor Services
Facility Operations
Program Management
Administration
Occupancy Costs (Note 15(A))
Expenses from Ancillary Operations (Schedule 1)

Income before amortization

Less:
Amortization of Deferred Capital Contributions (Note 9)
Amortization Expense

Net income for the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

2018 2017
(§ 000) ($ 000)
15,476 15,476

3,888 3,888

722 299

5,556 5,110
11,422 11,389
37,064 36,162

2,556 2,706

1,755 2,144

3,291 3,235

5,261 5,142

3,464 3,518

3,916 3,569

5,474 5,347

9,172 8,458
34,889 34,119

2,175 2,043

1,699 1,840
@2,721) (3,039)
(1,022) (1,199)

1,153 844
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the Year Ended March 31, 2018

2018 2017
($ 000) (§ 000)
Internally Accumulated
Restricted  Invested in Surplus
Reserve Fund Capital from
{Note 6 (J)) Assets  Operations Total Total
Balance, beginning of year 3,000 1,389 1,281 5,670 4,826
Investment in capital assets 724 (724) -
Transfer to Internally restricted reserve 47 - (47) -
fund
Net income (loss) for the year (1,022) 2,175 1,153 844
Balance, end of year 3,047 1,091 2,685 6,823 5,670

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended March 31, 2018

2018 2017
($ 000) ($ 000)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income for the year 1,153 844
Adjustments for items not requiring an outlay of cash
¢ Amortization of capital assets 2,721 3,039
° Amortization of deferred capital contributions (1,699) (1,840)
* Gain on accrued employee benefit obligation (5) (35)
2,170 2,008
Changes in non-cash working capital (Note 7) 712 1,773
Reduction of accrued employee benefit obligation (235) (181)
Curtailment of accrued employee benefit obligation 5 35
482 1,627
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,652 3,635
Cash Flows used in Capital Activities
Capital Assets acquisitions (1,988) (1,234)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Loan repayment — Ontario Financing Authority - (500)
Deferred capital contributions 1,264 1,706
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,264 1,206
Net change in cash for the year 1,928 3,607
Cash, beginning of year 14,793 11,186
Cash, end of year 16,721 14,793
Cash Consists of:
Cash 13,674 11,793
Cash - Internally Restricted Reserve Fund 3,047 3,000
16,721 14,793

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology
Schedule of Revenue and Expenses from Ancillary Operations

For the Year Ended March 31, 2018 Schedule 1
2018 2017
($ 000) ($ 000)

Revenue Expenses Net Revenue Expenses Net

OMNIMAX® Theatre 1,248 1,214 34 1,278 1,395 (117)

International Sales and Rentals (Note 5) 1,268 1,203 65 2,227 1,872 355

Educational Programs & Admission 1,284 2,173 (889) 1,281 1,928 (647)
Recreation & Family Learning

Experiences 1,199 871 328 1,201 854 347

Memberships 1,919 497 1,422 2,247 539 1,708

Ontario 150 420 805 (385) - - -

Concessions 360 100 260 163 120 43

Interest 287 - 287 161 - 161

Adult & Corporate Learning Experiences 470 335 135 484 269 215

Development (Note 16) 3,510 1,616 1,894 2,579 1,274 1,305

Program Support and Other Revenue 144 136 8 67 18 49

Bank & Service Fees - 222 (222) - 189 (189)

12,109 9,172 2,937 11,688 8,458 3,230

Less: Provincial Programs (687) - (687) (299) - (299)

Totals 11,422 9,172 2,250 11,389 8,458 2,931

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

1. Nature of the Business

The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology, commonly known as the Ontario Science Centre (the Centre), a
government agency of the Province of Ontario, was incorporated without share capital pursuant to the Centennial Centre
of Science and Technology Act. The objectives of the Centre are to:

a) maintain and operate a science centre and related facilities that will stimulate the interest of the public;

b) conduct a program of education in the origins, development and progress of science and technology, and their
relationship to society;

¢) depict the role of Ontario in the furtherance of science and technology; and
d) collect, manufacture, market, exhibit and sell objects and displays.

Under the Centennial Centre of Science and Technology Act, the Centre is exempted from federal and provincial income
taxes.

2. Basis of Presentation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards for government not-

for-profit organizations that include the 4200 series of the Public Sector Accounting Standards.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies followed to prepare these financial statements are summarized below:

(A) REVENUE RECOGNITION

The Centre follows the deferral method of accounting for restricted operating grants from the Province which are
recognized in revenue in the year the related expenses are incurred.

Provincial grants restricted for the purchase of capital assets are deferred and amortized into revenue over the same period
as the related asset.

Revenue from exhibits manufactured for sale is recognized on a percentage-of-completion basis.
Revenues from general admissions, parking and other ancillary operations are recognized when the services are provided.
Membership fees are deferred and recognized as revenue over the term covered by the fees.

Donations are recognized when funds are received. Sponsorship revenue is recognized over the term of the agreement.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(B) ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES

Expenses are reported in the Statement of Operations on a functional basis. The costs of each function include the salaries
and benefits, supplies, and other expenses that are directly related to the function. The Centre also incurs general support
expenses in the variety of activities it undertakes. These expenses are considered a function in their own right and are
reported as Administration expenses.

(C) DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions represent the amount of donations and government grants received and used, or to be used
to acquire capital assets. Revenue is recognized over the same period as the expected life of the capital assets to which
they relate.

(D) DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue is comprised mainly of deferred sponsorships, the unexpired portion of annual membership fees and
deposits for future exhibit rentals.

(E) CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization begins when capital assets are ready for
use. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as indicated

below:
Leasehold Improvements 10 years
Exhibits 10 years
OMNIMAX® Theatre Leasehold Improvements 20 years
Exhibits — Rentals 4 or 5 years
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

The land on which the Centre is located is leased from the City of Toronto for $1 per annum on a 99-year lease, which
commenced July 1, 1965. The Province owns the buildings, which house the Centre. For details of occupancy costs see
note 15(A).

(F) INVENTORY

General stores inventory is valued at cost using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(G) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Centre’s financial instruments, which include cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable, and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities, due to Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation and due to the Province of Ontario, are all valued
at cost less any amount for valuation allowance.

(H) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards requires that
management make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and
assumptions may change over time as new information is obtained or subsequent developments occur. Actual amounts
could differ from these estimates. The items subject to the most significant estimates are amortization of capital assets,
accrued liabilities and accrued employee benefit obligation.

() EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The costs of severance entitlements under the Public Service of Ontario Act and unused vacation entitlements earned by
employees during the year are accrued for in the financial statements. The costs of any legislated severance are
recognized when earned by eligible employees.

(J) GOVERNMENT PARTNERSHIP

The Centre uses the proportionate consolidation method to account for its interest in a government partnership.

4. Cash Availability and Risks Related to Financial Instruments

The risks related to the Centre’s financial instruments are as follows:
(A) CASH AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY RISK

The Centre has unrestricted cash of $13,674,000 (2017 - $11,793,000) to settle current liabilities of $9,818,000 and a
legislated employee benefit obligation of $2,821,000 totaling $12,639,000 (2017 - $11,957,000) leaving a cash balance
(deficit) for operations of $1,035,000 (2017 - ($164,000)). During the year, due to the seasonal nature of the business,
cash balances fluctuate requiring a modest cash balance to meet ongoing payroll and other supplier obligations.

(B) CREDIT RISK

The Centre’s exposure to credit risk is minimal. The Centre determines on a continuing basis, the probable credit losses
and sets up a provision for losses, if necessary, based on the estimated realizable value.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

4. Cash Availability and Risks Related to Financial Instruments (Continued)

Below the accounts receivable aging is summarized:

($ 000)
Current +60 Days  +80 Days Total
General Accounts Receivable 674 - - 674
Admissions 78 - - 78
Facility Rental 11 - - 1
International Sales 160 - 17 177
Totals 923 - 17 940

(C) CURRENCY RISK

The Centre realizes approximately 6.1% (2017, 4.35%) of its total revenue in foreign currency. Consequently, some
assets and revenues are exposed to foreign exchange fluctuations. Cash, accounts receivable and deferred revenue in US
dollars are converted into Canadian dollars at year-end.

5. Government Partnership

Capital assets include the Centre's partnership interest in rental exhibits of $1,269,000 (2017 - $710,000). The exhibits are
managed by another government agency. The Centre recognized $118,000 (2017 - $34,000) of revenue in International
Sales and Rentals in Schedule 1 as a result of this partnership.

6. Internally Restricted Reserve Fund

During the year, the Board approved an increase to the internally restricted reserve fund of $47,000 (2017-$3,000,000)
from accumulated surplus. The reserve fund was established to provide funding for various capital and operating projects
at the Centre.

7. Change in Non-cash Working Capital

2018 2017

Cash provided by (used in): ($ 000) (§000)
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (408) 821
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 210 157
Decrease (increase) in inventory (7 6
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (235) (11
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 859 (509)
Increase (decrease) in Due to Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation 298 1019
Increase (decrease) in Due to the Province of Ontario (5) 290

712 1,773
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2018
8. Capital Assets
Capital assets consist of the following:
2018 2017
( 000) (8 000)
Accumulated  Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Leasehold Improvements 35,798 32,706 3,092 3,346
Exhibits 28,528 24,318 4,210 5,056
OMNIMAX® Theatre Leasehold Improvements 15,331 15,331 - -
Exhibits — Rentals 2,457 1,472 985 586
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 2,409 1,665 744 612
Computers 2,865 2,479 386 550
Total 87,388 77,971 9,417 10,150
Net carrying amounts of Capital Assets (work-in-progress) not being amortized as at March 31:
2018 2017
($ 000) ($ 000)
Leasehold Improvements 96 22
Exhibits — Rentals 558 -
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment - 3
Computers - 168
Total 654 193
9. Deferred Capital Contributions
The changes in the deferred capital contributions balance are as follows:
2018 2017
($ 000) ($000)
Balance, beginning of year 8,761 8,895
Net additions/transfers during year 1,264 1,706
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (1,699) (1,840)
8,326 8,761
The ending balance of deferred capital contributions consists of the following:
2018 2017
($ 000) ($ 000)
Agents of Change Project - 440
Health and Safety Initiatives 7,287 7,105
Exhibits 1,039 1,216
8,326 8,761
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

10. Invested in Capital Assets

Invested in capital assets represents the following:

2018 2017

($ 000) ($ 000)

Capital assets, net 9,417 10,150
Less amount financed by deferred capital contributions (8,326) (8,761)
1,091 1,389

11. Property Maintenance and Repairs

Certain major maintenance and repair expenses of the Centre are absorbed by the Province of Ontario, through Ontario
Infrastructure and Lands Corporation, and are not included in the Statement of Operations.

12. Economic Dependence

The Centre is dependent on the Province of Ontario for financial assistance to cover some of the costs of operations.

13. Employee Benefits
(A) PENSION BENEFITS

The Centre’s full-time employees participate in the Public Service Pension Fund (PSPF) and the Ontario Public Service
Employees’ Union Pension Fund (OPSEU-PF), which are defined benefit pension plans for employees of the Province
and many provincial agencies. The Province of Ontario, which is the sole sponsor of the PSPF and a joint sponsor of the
OPSEU-PF, determines the Centre’s annual payments to the funds. As the sponsors are responsible for ensuring that the
pension funds are financially viable, any surpluses or unfunded liabilities arising from statutory actuarial funding
valuations are not assets or obligations of the Centre.

The Centre’s annual payment of $1,333,941 for the current year (2017-$1,300,042), is included in salaries and employee

benefit costs allocated to various expense categories in the Statement of Operations. See also note 14.

(B) POST-EMPLOYMENT NON-PENSION BENEFITS

The cost of post-employment non-pension benefits are paid by the Province of Ontario and are not included in the
Statement of Operations.

(C) ACCRUED LEGISLATED EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The accrued legislated employee benefit obligation includes accrued severance entitlements. The total costs for the year
amount to $80,000 (2017-$208,000) and are included in salaries and benefits, disclosed in note 14. During the year, the
accrued legislated employee benefits obligation was reduced by $5,000 (2017-$35,000) due to a curtailment resulting
from changes commencing in 2016 under the Public Service of Ontario Act.
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

14. Breakdown of Expenses

Expenses are reported in the Statement of Operations on a functional basis. Total expenses by type are as follows:

2018 2017

($ 000) ($ 000)

Salaries and Benefits 19,953 19,780
Other Direct Operating Expenses 14,936 14,339
34,889 34,119

18. Commitments and Contingencies
(A) OCCUPANCY COSTS

The Province, through Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation, charges the Centre an accommodation fee for
occupying its facilities. The fee covers rent, taxes, maintenance and certain operating costs. The lease is being renewed
on a year-to-year basis until a new agreement is reached between the Centre and the Province. The minimum lease
payment for the coming year is $4,764,000. The Centre received a grant of $3,888,000 from the Ministry of Tourism,
Culture and Sport in the current year towards occupancy costs.

(B) EXHIBITS AND SERVICES

The Centre has entered into contracts for various promotional, maintenance and utility services spanning several years.

Total committed costs relating to these contracts for the next five fiscal years are as follows:

($ 000)
2018/19 4,429
2019/20 1,778
2020/21 1,297
2021/22 240
2022/23 31

7,775
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The Centennial Centre of Science and Technology

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2018

16. Development Revenue

The Centre is active in obtaining sponsorships and donations from the private sector to support new projects, experiences
and operations. Development revenue and expenses for the year include a long-term sponsorship for the Agents of
Change Project. Amounts pledged and agreed to but not yet received (including $485,000 for the Agents of Change
Project) have not been recognized as revenue, deferred revenue or deferred capital contributions as of March 31, 2018 and
are as follows:

($000)
2018/19 1,060
2019/20 350
2020/21 100
1,510

17. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the 2018 presentation.
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Education Quality and 2 Carlton Street, Suite 1200

Accountability Office Toronto ON M5B 2M9
r \| Telephone: 1-888-327-7377

E AO Fax: 416-325-083|
“ Web site: www.eqao.com
L .

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The accompanying financial statements of the Education Quality and Accountability Office
(EQAO) for the year ended March 31, 2018, are the responsibility of management and have
been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The
significant accounting policies followed by EQAO are described in the summary of
Significant Accounting Policies contained in Note 1 of the financial statements. The
preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on
management’s judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting
period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods. The financial statements
have been prepared within reasonable limits of materiality and in light of information
available up to June 8, 2018.

Management maintained a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that the assets were safeguarded and that reliable information was available on
a timely basis. The system included formal policies and procedures and an organizational
structure that provided for the appropriate delegation of authority and segregation of
responsibilities.

These financial statements have been examined by KPMG LLP, a firm of independent
external auditors appointed by EQAQO’s Board of Directors. The external auditors’
responsibility is to express their opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly
presented in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The Auditor’s
Report, which follows, outlines the scope of their examination and their opinion.

EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE
On behalf of management,

1) sl Vi

Norah Marsh Tony Saini
Chief Executive Officer Director, Corporate and Public Affairs

Toronto, Canada
June 8, 2018
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PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2017-2018

KPMG LLP

Vaughan Metropolitan Centre
100 New Park Place, Suite 1400
Vaughan ON L4K 0J3

Canada

Tel 905-265-5900

Fax 905-265-6390

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Education Quality and Accountability Office

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Education Quality and
Accountability Office, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
March 31, 2018, the statements of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in
net financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG LLP, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Education Quality and Accountability Office as at March 31,
2018, and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

L& 1P
7

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

June 6, 2018
Vaughan, Canada
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018 2017
Financial Assets
Cash $ 1,590,434 $ 1,057,123
Cash - board restricted fund (note 2(b)) 6,969,154 6,602,318
Accounts receivable (note 3) 1,974,320 645,151
Tangible capital assets held for resale (note 5) 250,000 -
10,783,908 8,304,592
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,241,441 2,160,863
Net financial assets 7,542,467 6,143,729
Non-Financial Assets
Prepaid expenses (note 4) 613,190 1,010,291
Tangible capital assets (note 5) 884,460 671,878
1,497,650 1,682,169
Commitments (note 6)
Accumulated surplus (note 2) $ 9,040,117 $ 7,825,898

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

,2”—& % Chairman

N' /LM/ Chief Executive Officer
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

Year ended March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
(note 10)
Revenue:
Ministry of Education:
Base allocation payments $ 31,719,961 32,431,323 $ 31,443,684
Other - 423,234 593,090
31,719,961 32,854,557 32,036,774
Expenses:
Service and rental 16,059,395 16,225,420 18,638,971
Salaries and wages 12,581,469 12,387,720 11,998,134
Transportation and communication 2,377,493 2,335,037 1,830,026
Supplies and equipment 701,604 692,161 2,565,081
31,719,961 31,640,338 35,032,212
Annual surplus (deficit) - 1,214,219 (2,995,438)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 7,825,898 7,825,898 10,821,336
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 7,825,898 9,040,117 $ 7,825,898
Accumulated surplus comprises:
Externally restricted 2,070,963 $ 1,223,580
Internally restricted (note 2(b)) 6,969,154 6,602,318
9,040,117 $ 7,825,898

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

Year ended March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
(note 10)
Annual surplus (deficit) $ - $ 1,214,219 $ (2,995,438)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets - (530,957) (192,668)
Amortization and impairment of tangible
capital assets (note 5) 363,268 318,375 2,209,235
363,268 (212,582) 2,016,567
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (613,190) (1,010,291)
Use of prepaid expenses — 1,010,291 1,299,480
— 397,101 289,189
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets 363,268 1,398,738 (689,682)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 6,143,729 6,143,729 6,833,411
Net financial assets, end of year $ 6,506,997 $ 7,542,467 $ 6,143,729

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

2018 2017
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 1,214,219 $ (2,995,438)
Items not involving cash:
Amortization and impairment of tangible
capital assets (note 5) 318,375 2,209,235
1,532,594 (786,203)

Change in non-cash operating working capital:

Accounts receivable (1,329,169) 13,294
Tangible capital assets held for resale (250,000) -
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,080,578 (259,832)
Prepaid expenses 397,101 289,189
1,431,104 (743,552)

Capital activities:

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (530,957) (192,668)
Investing activities:

Change to board restricted fund (366,836) (540,046)
Increase (decrease) in cash 533,311 (1,476,266)
Cash, beginning of year 1,057,123 2,533,389
Cash, end of year $ 1,590,434 $ 1,057,123

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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The Education Quality and Accountability Office (the "Agency") was established by the Province of
Ontario by the EQAO Act, June 1996. The Agency was created to assure greater accountability and
to contribute to the enhancement of the quality of education in Ontario. This is done through
assessments and reviews based on objective, reliable and relevant information, and the timely public
release of that information along with recommendations for system improvement.

1. Significant accounting policies:

These financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards, as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada ("CPA Canada") and, where applicable, the
recommendations of the Accounting Standards Board of CPA Canada, reflect the accounting
policies set out below:

(@)

(b)

Revenue recognition:

The Agency is funded by the Ministry of Education in accordance with established budget
arrangements. The Agency receives base allocation payments in accordance with the
fiscal year's approved budget. These transfer payments are recognized in the financial
statements in the year in which the transfer is authorized and all eligibility criteria have
been met, except when a transfer gives rise to a liability.

Other revenue is recognized at the time the service is rendered.

Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Tangible capital
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Computer equipment 3 to 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

For assets acquired or brought into use during the year, amortization is calculated from the
month following that in which additions come into operation.
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Year ended March 31, 2018

1.

Significant accounting policies (continued):

(d)

The Agency considers the carrying value of tangible capital assets when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable or
when a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Agency's ability to provide goods
and services. If the Agency expects an asset to generate cash flows less than the asset's
carrying value, at the lowest level of identifiable cash flows, the Agency recognizes a loss
for the difference between the asset's carrying value and its fair value.

Measurement uncertainty:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Such estimates include providing for
amortization and impairment of tangible capital assets. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Newly adopted accounting standards:

(i) The Agency adopted Public Sector ("PS") 3210, Assets effective April 1, 2017. This
standard provides a definition of assets and further expands that definition as it relates
to control and includes some disclosure requirements related to economic resources
that are not recorded as assets to provide the user with better information about the
types of resources available to the public sector entity. The adoption of this standard
as at April 1, 2017 did not have a material impact on the Agency's fiscal year 2018
financial statements.

(i) The Agency adopted PS 3320, Contingent Assets effective April 1, 2017. This
standard provides a definition of contingent assets and has two basis characteristics. It
includes specific disclosure requirements for contingent assets when the occurrence of
the confirming event is likely. The adoption of this standard as at April 1, 2017 did not
have a material impact on the Agency's fiscal year 2018 financial statements.
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Year ended March 31, 2018

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(iii) The Agency adopted PS 3380, Contractual Rights effective April 1, 2017. This

standard provides contractual rights to future assets and revenue. Information about a
public sector entity's contractual rights should be disclosed in notes or schedules to the
financial statements and should include descriptions about their nature and extent and
the timing. The adoption of this standard as at April 1, 2017 did not have a material
impact on the Agency's fiscal year 2018 financial statements.

(iv) The Agency adopted PS 2200, Related Party Disclosures effective April 1, 2017. This

(v)

standard provides related party disclosures and defines related parties. Related parties
could be either an entity or an individual. Related parties exist when one party has the
ability to control or has shared control over another party. Individuals that are key
management personnel or close family members may also be related parties. The
adoption of this standard as at April 1, 2017 did not have a material impact on the
Agency's fiscal year 2018 financial statements.

The Agency adopted PS 3420, Inter-entity Transactions effective April 1, 2017. This
standard provides measurement of related party transactions and includes a decision
tree to support the standard. Transactions are recorded at carrying amounts with some
exceptions. The adoption of this standard as at April 1, 2017 did not have a material
impact on the Agency's fiscal year 2018 financial statements.

2. Accumulated surplus:

(a) Externally restricted accumulated surplus:

The Agency receives base allocation payments in accordance with the year's approved
budget. Actual expenses incurred in the year could differ from the budgeted amounts. The
difference between base allocation payments received and actual expenses incurred are
tracked separately as externally restricted accumulated surplus.
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2,

Accumulated surplus (continued):
(b) Internally restricted accumulated surplus:

A board restricted fund was established by a Board of Directors' ("Board") resolution for the
purpose of examining assessment processes and researching emerging methodologies in
large scale assessment in order to maintain Ontario's high quality assessment programs as
best of class. The fund is currently invested in a Royal Bank of Canada current account.
The Agency has the authority to retain any revenue that is not provincial funding according
to the EQAO Act, June 1996, the Agencies and Appointment Directive and the Financial
Administration Act.

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year $ 6,602,318 $ 6,062,272
Appropriation of other income 309,850 507,323
Interest income earned on funds 113,384 84,106
Cost associated with fee-based administration (note 8) (56,398) (51,383)
Balance, end of year $ 6,969,154 $ 6,602,318

In a prior year, the Board approved a motion to fully restrict the internally restricted
accumulated surplus for the Board-approved IT strategy.

Accounts receivable:

Included in accounts receivable is a transfer payment in the amount of $1,891,740 (2017 -
$297,446) due from the Ministry of Education.

Prepaid expenses:

Prepaid expenses are paid in cash and recorded as assets before they are used or consumed.
As at year end, the balance is made up of the following amounts:

2018 2017
Prepaid expenses $ 266,246 $ 351,841
Prepaid secondees 346,944 658,450

$ 613,190 $ 1,010,291
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5. Tangible capital assets:

2018 2017

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Computer equipment $ 3,163,171 $ 2,383,279 $ 779,892 $ 584,054
Furniture and fixtures 433,759 329,191 104,568 87,824

$ 3,596,930 $ 2,712,470 $ 884,460 $ 671,878

Amortization and impairment of tangible capital assets recorded in the current year amounts to
$318,375 (2017 - $2,209,235).

As at March 31, 2018, the Agency approved plans to sell certain tangible capital assets (TCA);
accordingly, the TCA of $250,000 (2017 - nil) has been reported as a financial asset in the
statement of financial position.

6. Lease commitments:

The Agency leases premises under certain operating lease arrangements with expiry dates up
to December 31, 2022. Under the terms of the leases, the Agency is required to pay an annual
base rent, which is predetermined based on square footage rates plus operating and
maintenance charges. Future minimum annual scheduled payments are as follows:

2019 $ 1,420,608
2020 1,228,190
2021 898,850
2022 898,850
2023 674,137

$ 5,120,635




1-107

EDUCATION QUALITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY OFFICE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2018

10.

Financial instruments:

The Agency's financial instruments consist of cash, board restricted fund, accounts receivable
and accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Financial instruments are recorded at fair value
on initial recognition. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
values due to their short-term nature.

It is management's opinion that the Agency is not exposed to significant interest, currency or
credit risk arising from these financial instruments.

Allocation of expenses:
Incremental administration expenses are allocated to fee-based administration revenue.

Expenses are allocated proportionately based on the number of individual student assessments
administered.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Agency will be unable to fulfill its obligations on a timely basis or
at a reasonable cost. The Agency manages its liquidity risk by monitoring its operating
requirements. The Agency prepares budget and cash forecasts to ensure it has sufficient

funds to fulfill its obligations.

There have been no significant changes to the liquidity risk exposure from 2017.

Budget:

The budget information has been derived from the budget approved by the Board on
August 24, 2017.
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June 21, 2018

Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the accompanying financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards and where appropriate, include amounts based on management’s best
estimates and judgment. Management is responsible for the accuracy, integrity and objectivity of
these financial statements. The financial statements have been properly prepared within reasonable
limits of materiality and in light of information available up to June 21, 2018.

eHealth Ontario is dedicated to the highest standards of integrity in its business. To safeguard the
agency’s assets and assure the reliability of financial information, eHealth Ontario follows sound
management practices and procedures, and maintains appropriate financial reporting systems and
controls.

The Board of Directors ensures that management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting
and internal controls. The Board generally meets periodically with management to satisfy itself that
such responsibilities have been fulfilled. The financial statements have been reviewed by eHealth
Ontario’s Finance and Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors.

The financial statements have been examined by Ernst & Young LLP, independent external auditors
appointed by the Board of Directors. The external auditors’ responsibility is to examine the
financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards to enable
them to express their opinion on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The Independent Auditor’s Report outlines the
scope of the Auditor’s examination and opinion.

On behalf of management,

bt

Karen McKibbin
Chief Executive Officer

YA

Allan Gunn
Chief Administrative Officer / Chief Financial Officer
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Independent auditors’ report

To the Board of Directors of
eHealth Ontario

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of eHealth Ontario, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2018, and the statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of eHealth
Ontario as at March 31, 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the y ear then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

é\m«t ?‘yomf LLp

Toronto, Canada Chartered Professional Accountants
June 21, 2018 Licensed Public Accountants

E I A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



eHealth Ontario

Statement of financial position
[in thousands of dollars]

As at March 31

Assets

Current

Cash

Prepaid expenses

Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care [note 3[b]]
HST and other receivables [note 6]

Total current assets

Capital assets, net [note 4]

Prepaid expenses

Liabilities and net assets

Current

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [notes 6 and 7[€]]
Total current liabilities

Deferred capital contributions [note 5]

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies [note 7]

Net assets [note 1]

See accompanying notes

On behalf of the Board:

Sy

Karen McKibbin
Chief Executive Officer
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2018 2017
$ $
18,612 8,026
11,878 12,710
2,714 18,358
1,738 4,558
34,942 43,652
79,645 90,508
453 1,463
115,040 135,623
35,395 45115
35,395 45115
79,645 90,508
115,040 135,623
115,040 135,623

Lorelle Taylor

Chair of the Board of Directors
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eHealth Ontario

Statement of operations and changes in
[in thousands of dollars]

Year ended March 31

net assets

Revenue
Government grants [note 3[a]]
Amortization of deferred capital contributions [note 5]

Expenses [notes 6, 8 and 9]
Technology and operations
Enterprise planning and reporting
Architecture, standards and planning
Corporate offices

Amortization of capital assets [note 4]

2018 2017
$ $

255,799 264,733
26,906 25,312
282,705 290,045
162,955 160,228
65,961 76,321
9,560 9,332
17,323 18,852
255,799 264,733
26,906 25,312
282,705 290,045

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year [note 1]

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes
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eHealth Ontario

Statement of cash flows
[in thousands of dollars]

Year ended March 31

2018 2017
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year — —
Add (deduct) items not involving cash
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (26,906) (25,312)
Amortization of capital assets 26,906 25,312
Changes in non-cash working capital balances related to operations
Prepaid expenses 1,842 (1,586)
Due from Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care 15,644 36,299
HST and other receivables 2,820 (2,298)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities [note 10] (9,884) (30,465)
Cash provided by operating activities 10,422 1,950
Capital activities
Purchase of capital assets [note 10] (15,879) (32,721)
Cash used in capital activities (15,879) (32,721)
Financing activities
Contributions used to fund capital asset purchases 16,043 34,840
Cash provided by financing activities 16,043 34,840
Net increase in cash during the year 10,586 4,069
Cash, beginning of year 8,026 3,957
Cash, end of year 18,612 8,026

See accompanying notes
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eHealth Ontario

Notes to financial statements
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

1. Nature of operations

eHealth Ontario is designated as an operational service agency established under the Ontario Regulation made
under the Development Corporations Act (O. Reg. 43/02). Subsection 2(3) of O. Reg. 43/02 provides that eHealth
Ontario is, for all purposes, an agency of Her Majesty within the meaning of the Crown Agency Act and its powers
may be exercised only as an agency of Her Majesty. Subsection 6(1) of O. Reg. 43/02 provides that the Board of
Directors is composed of the members appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council on the recommendation
of the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care. The Lieutenant-Governor in Council can appoint up to 12 members
to eHealth Ontario’s Board of Directors. Pursuant to Subsection 7(1) of O. Reg. 43/02 and subject to any directions
given by the Minister of Health and Long-Term Care under Section 8, the affairs of eHealth Ontario are under the
management and control of t he Board of Directors. Subsection 9(1) of O. Reg. 43/02 provides that the Chief
Executive Officer of eHealth Ontario be appointed by the Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

The objectives of eHealth Ontario are as follows:

[a] to provide eHealth Ontario services and related support for the effective and efficient planning, management
and delivery of health care in Ontario;

[b] to develop eHealth Ontario services strategy and operational policy; and

[c] to protect the privacy of individuals whose personal information or personal health information is collected,
transmitted, stored or exchanged by and through eHealth Ontario, in a ccordance with the Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act, the Personal Health Information Protection Act, 2004 and any other
applicable law (O. Reg. 339/08, s.4).

eHealth Ontario is funded by the Province of Ontario through the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care [the
“Ministry”]. eHealth Ontario and the Ministry entered into an Accountability Agreement which was in effect from
April 1, 2015 until March 31, 2018. A new Accountability Agreement was signed and will be in effect from April 1,
2018 until terminated by either the Ministry or eHealth Ontario. Any excess of revenue over expenses must be
repaid in the following fiscal year. Any deficiency reduces the funding allocation in the following fiscal year.

As a Crown agency, eHealth Ontario is exempt from income taxes.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the CPA Canada Public Sector Accounting Handbook,
which sets out generally accepted accounting principles for government not-for-profit organizations in Canada.
eHealth Ontario has chosen to use the standards for government not-for-profit organizations that include Sections
PS 4200 to PS 4270. The significant accounting policies are summarized below.

Revenue recognition

eHealth Ontario follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. Contributions are recorded when
received or receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured. Contributions with respect to the purchase of capital assets are recorded as deferred capital contributions
when initially recorded in the accounts and are amortized to operations on the same basis as the related asset is
amortized.
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eHealth Ontario

Notes to financial statements
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

Allocation of expenses

The costs of each function include the costs of personnel and other expenses that are directly related to the
function. General support and other costs are included in corporate offices expenses.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost, net of accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Computer hardware 3 to 5 years

Computer software 3to 10 years

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases

Capital assets that no longer have any long-term service potential for eHealth Ontario are written down to residual
value, if any. The excess of the carrying value over the residual value of such assets is recognized as amortization
in the statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Internal labour costs are capitalized in connection with the development of information technology projects.

Employee future benefits

eHealth Ontario has a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. Under the plan, eHealth Ontario
contributes an equal match to employees’ contributions up to a maximum of 6% of their annual earnings. eHealth
Ontario’s contributions to the plan are expensed on an accrual basis.

Financial assets and liabilities

eHealth Ontario initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value. eHealth Ontario subsequently
measures all its financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost, net of any provisions for impairment.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost include cash, due from the Ministry, HST and other
receivables and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

New accounting standards

During the year, eHealth Ontario adopted the new accounting standards PS 2200, related party disclosures, and
PS 3420 inter-entity transactions. These new standards are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2017. PS 2200 defines a related party and establishes disclosures required for related party transactions. PS 3420
establishes standards on how to account for and report transactions between public sector entities that comprise
a government’s reporting entity from both a provider and recipient perspective. The change in accounting policy
was applied on a retroactive basis and did not have any impact on the financial statements.
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eHealth Ontario

Notes to financial statements

[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

3. Government of Ontario

[a] Funding from the Ministry recognized as revenue is calculated as follows:

Funding for eHealth Ontario operating/capital expenditures
Funding for transfer payments to eHealth Ontario partners

Total funding

Amounts used to fund capital assets and recorded as deferred capital
contributions [note 5]

Interest earned during the year repayable to the Ministry

Funding receivable from the Ministry [note 3[b]]

Amount recognized as revenue

[p] The amount due from the Ministry consists of the following:

Due from the Ministry for administered programs [note 6][f]]
Funding receivable — current year [note 3[a]]
Funding repayable — prior years

2018 2017
$ $
215,524 228,090
54,204 63,760
269,728 291,850
(16,043) (34,840)
237 161
1,877 7,562
255,799 264,733
2018 2017
$ $
2,125 12,445
1,877 7,562
(1,288) (1,649)
2,714 18,358




eHealth Ontario

March 31, 2018

4. Capital assets

Computer hardware

Computer software

Furniture and office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Work-in-process

Computer hardware

Computer software

Furniture and office equipment
Leasehold improvements
Work-in-process

Notes to financial statements

[in thousands of dollars]

1-117

2018
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value

$ $ $
102,346 68,331 34,015
141,760 99,144 42,616
7,231 6,651 580
6,475 5,634 941
1,493 — 1,493
259,305 179,660 79,645

2017
Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value

$ $ $
103,693 66,750 36,943
135,495 83,977 51,518
7,037 6,343 694
6,023 5,166 857
496 — 496
252,744 162,236 90,508

In the current year, certain assets no longer in use with a total cost of $9,482 [2017 — $264], accumulated
amortization of $9,478 [2017 — $261] and a net book value of $4 [2017 — $3] were written off and included in

amortization of capital assets.

No impairment charges to write down projects were recognized in the current year [2017 — $711 included in

amortization of capital assets].

5. Deferred capital contributions

Balance, beginning of year

Contributions used to fund capital asset purchases [note 3[a]]

Amortization
Balance, end of year

2018 2017
$ $
90,508 80,980
16,043 34,840
(26,906) (25,312)
79,645 90,508
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eHealth Ontario

Notes to financial statements
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

6. Related party transactions

eHealth Ontario is controlled by the Province of Ontario through the Ministry and is therefore a related party to
other organizations that are controlled by or subject to significant influence by the Province of Ontario. Transactions
with related parties are outlined below.

All related party transactions were measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the related parties.

[a]

[b]

[c]

eHealth Ontario has entered into transfer payment agreements with various related parties. Under these
agreements, eHealth Ontario makes payments to these parties once defined eligibility requirements have
been met.

Expenses for the year include transfer payments to related party hospitals:

2018 2017

$ $
Enterprise planning and reporting expenses 40,621 51,452
Technology and operations expenses — 70
40,621 51,522

At March 31, 2018, accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $835 [2017 — nil] payable to related
parties and HST and other receivables includes $136 [2017 — $1,113] repayable to eHealth Ontario from a
related party under these agreements.

eHealth Ontario has entered into a service provider agreement with an Ontario hospital for the provision of
support services in connection with one of its ap plications. Enterprise planning and rep orting expenses
include $1,860 [2017 — $1,389 was in technology and operations expenses] in connection with this
agreement. At March 31, 2018, accounts payable and accrued liabilities includes $457 [2017 — $488] payable
to the hospital.

During the year, Hydro One charged eHealth Ontario $23,332 [2017 — $30,174] for network services. This
amount is included in technology and operations expenses. At March 31, 2018, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities includes $3,327 [2017 — $1,911] payable to Hydro One.
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[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

[d]

[e]

[fl

(9]

(h]

Technology and operations expenses include $2,192 [2017 — $2,614] and corporate offices expenses include
nil [2017 — $12] for the rental of office space and other facility related expenses from the Ministry of
Government Services. Corporate offices expenses also include $5,494 [2017 — $5,342] for the rental of office
space and other facility related expenses from Infrastructure Ontario. At March 31, 2018, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities include $570 [2017 — $1,314] and $495 [2017 — $2,947] payable to the Ministry of
Government Services and Infrastructure Ontario, respectively.

Technology and operations expenses include $738 [2017 — $412] and corporate offices expenses include
$305 [2017 — $177] for the provision of administrative and other support services from the Ministry of
Government Services, Treasury Board Secretariat, the Ontario Ministry of Labour, the Ministry of Finance,
the Ministry of the Attorney General and other hospitals and health care organizations. At March 31, 2018,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities include $659 [2017 — $448] in respect of these services.

During the year, eHealth Ontario spent $10,262 [2017 — $12,566] on programs that it administers on behalf
of the Ministry. Amounts spent on these programs are recoverable from the Ministry [note 3[b]]. Amounts are
recorded net of recoveries and included in technology and operations expenses.

Under an arrangement with an Ontario college, eHealth Ontario spent $288 [2017 — $294] to develop
prototypes and proof of concepts for eHealth Ontario’s electronic health record infrastructure. Of these costs,
$170 [2017 — $294] is included in architecture, standards and planning expenses and $118 [2017 — nil] of
these costs are included in technology and operations expenses. At March 31, 2018, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities include $237 [2017 — $184].

During the year, an Ontario hospital transferred its interest in certain software and hardware to eHealth
Ontario for no consideration. These assets have been recognized in the financial statements at nominal value
as their fair value at the date of transfer could not be reasonably determined. The assets transferred will be
used by eHealth Ontario and its partners to access digital health records.

7. Commitments and contingencies

[a]

eHealth Ontario has various multi-year contractual commitments for services. Payments required on these
commitments are as follows:

$
2019 58,240
2020 41,348
2021 37,888
2022 23,520
2023 and thereafter 14,566
175,562

Commitments above include $103,028 payable to Hydro One under a network services contract and $9,217
payable to the Ministry of Government Services for facility related costs.
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Notes to financial statements
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

[b]

[c]

[d]

[e]

Ontario Realty Corporation, a Crown Corporation of the Province of Ontario, holds leases on the office space
occupied by eHealth Ontario. eHealth Ontario is responsible for all of the operating lease payments and other
occupancy costs. The payments required to the date of expiry are as follows:

$

2019 5,740
2020 5,770
2021 5,770
2022 3,291
2023 2,066
2024 and thereafter 4,246

26,883

eHealth Ontario has entered into transfer payment agreements with eHealth Ontario partners that require
future payments once defined eligibility requirements have been met. Work has begun under many of these
arrangements and progress against the eligibility requirements is monitored regularly. Total future payments
in connection with these contracts are approximately $38.5 million, of which $35.7 million will be paid to
related parties as described in note 6[a]. These payments are payable over the period ending December 31,
2019. Approximately $37.9 million of total future payments is expected to be paid in fiscal 2019.

eHealth Ontario participates in the Healthcare Insurance Reciprocal of Canada [*HIROC”]. HIROC is a
pooling of the public liability insurance risks of its members who are all Canadian not-for-profit health care
organizations. All members of the HIROC pool pay annual premiums that are actuarially determined. All
members are subject to assessment for losses, if any, experienced by the pool for the years in which they
are members. No assessments have been made for the year ended March 31, 2018.

In the normal course of operations, eHealth Ontario is subject to various claims and potential claims.
Management has recorded its best estimate of the potential liability related to these claims where potential
liability is likely and able to be estimated. In other cases, the ultimate outcome of the claims cannot be
determined at this time.

Any additional losses related to claims will be recorded in the year during which the liability is able to be
estimated or adjustments to any amount recorded are determined to be required.

8. Employee future benefits

eHealth Ontario has a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. eHealth Ontario’s contributions to this
plan during the year amounted to $3,970 [2017 — $3,836].
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eHealth Ontario

Notes to financial statements
[in thousands of dollars]

March 31, 2018

9. Board remuneration

Total remuneration paid to members of the Board of Directors during the year was $35 [2017 — $62]. Salary paid
to members of the Board of Directors who are employees of the Government of Ontario is disclosed on the “Public
Sector Salary Disclosure” listing on the Government of Ontario website.

10. Supplemental cash flow information

The change in accounts payable and accrued liabilities related to the purchase of capital assets for the year ended
March 31, 2018 of $164 [2017 — $2,119] has been excluded from the statement of cash flows.

11. Financial instruments

Credit risk

eHealth Ontario is exposed to credit risk in connection with its accounts receivable because of the risk that one

party to the financial instrument may cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

eHealth Ontario manages and controls credit risk with respect to accounts receivable by only dealing with
recognized, creditworthy third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis. At
March 31, 2018, there were no significant amounts that are past due or impaired.

Liquidity risk

eHealth Ontario is exposed to the risk that it will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. eHealth Ontario derives all of its operating revenue from the Government of Ontario with no firm
commitment of funding in future years. To manage liquidity risk, eHealth Ontario keeps sufficient resources readily
available to meet its obligations.

Accounts payable mature within six months.
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‘& 4 Office of the Auditor General of Ontario
< “ Bureau de la vérificatrice générale de I'Ontario

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario

[ have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Financial Services Regulatory Authority of
Ontario, which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, and the statements of
operations and changes in net debt, and cash flows for the period from June 30, 2017 to March 31, 2018,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my
audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that I
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

[ believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario as at March 31, 2018 and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the period from June 30, 2017 to March 31, 2018 in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

Toronto, Ontario Bonnie Lysyk, MBA, FCPA, FCA, LPA
June 12, 2018 Auditor General
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Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

[ in thousands of dollars |

As atMarch 31, 2018 L NOte® i 2
ASSETS

Current

Cash 15,041

HST Recoverable 178

Accounts Receivable 6

Prepaid Expenses 39

Total Current Assets 15,264

Total Assets 15,264

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 633

Total Current Liabilities 633

Loan Payable 3and 7 17,388

Interest Payable 3and 7 29

Total Liabilities 18,050

Net Debt (2,786)
Total Liabilities and Net Debt 15,264

See accompanying notes

On behalf of the Board of the Commission

a )

Chair Board Member
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CHANGES IN NET DEBT

[ in thousands of dollars |

For the period from June 30, 2017

(commencement of operations) to March 31, 2018 e L) .
REVENUE 4
Interest Income 23
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 5and 7 580
Employee benefits 7 35
Services
Consultants and advisors 1,646
Legal 247
Accommodation 215
Other 57
Total Services 2,165
Interest expense 3and 7 29
2,809
Deficiency of revenue over expenses 2,786
Net Debt, beginning of year ---
Net Debt, end of year 2,786

See accompanying notes
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Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

[ in thousands of dollars |

For the period from June 30, 2017

(commencement of operations) to March 31, 2018 o . 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year (2,786)
Changes in non-cash operating items
Increase in prepaid expenses (39
Increase in HST receivable a78)
Increase in accounts receivable ®)
Increase in interest payable 29
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 633
Cash (used in) operating activities 2,347

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan advances 3 17,388
Cash provided by financing activities 17,388
Net increase in cash 15,041

See accompanying notes



Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2018

1. DESCRIPTION OF
THE ORGANIZATION

The Financial Services Regulatory
Authority of Ontario [“FSRA”] was
established under the Financial Services
Regulatory Authority of Ontario Act, 2016
as a corporation without share capital.
The FSRA's mandate is to improve,
through regulation, consumer and
pension plan beneficiary protections in
Ontario.

The FSRA was incorporated effective
June 29, 2017. These financial
statements include results of operations
of the FSRA from June 30, 2017
(commencement of operations).

The fiscal year ending March 31, 2018 is
the FSRA's inaugural year of operation.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These financial statements have been
prepared by management of the FSRA in
accordance with Public Sector
Accounting Standards for government
not-for-profit organizations (PSA-
GNFPO) as issued by the Public Sector
Accounting Board

(PSAB). The significant accounting
policies used to prepare these
statements are summarized below.

(a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition methods will be
established once FSRA has developed
and received Minister of Finance
approval of its fee rules. The
implementation of its fee rules is
expected by April 1, 2019.

(b) Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are included on
the statement of financial position and
are measured either at fair value or at
cost

or amortized cost. The FSRA's accounts
receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities and loan payable are
recorded at cost in its financial
statements.

(c) Use of Estimates

Management can make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities as at
the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Actual
amounts could differ from these
estimates. Significant items subject to
estimates include accrued liabilities.

3. LOAN AGREEMENT

On August 29, 2017, the FSRA entered
into a non-revolving Loan Agreement
with Her Majesty the Queen in the right
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Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2018

of Ontario as represented by the
Minister of Finance to borrow up to
$20 million for the purpose of covering
initial administrative and operational
costs related to its start-up activities.

The Loan Agreement permitted the
FSRA to draw advances (Advance
Period End Date) until March 31, 2018.
All amounts plus interest drawn under the
Loan Agreement are due on April 1, 2019
(Maturity Date), unless otherwise

agreed to by both parties.

Interest expense on advances is
calculated at the annual interest rate
equal to the ninety-day Ontario Treasury
Bill Rate as of each quarterly interest
reset date, plus 0.25 percent. The
average interest rate during the year was
1.39%.

On March 31, 2018, the Loan Agreement
was amended (Amending Agreement) to:

® increase the amount of the non-
revolving Loan Agreement up to
$40 million,

® amend the Advance Period End Date
to March 31, 2019,

® amend the Maturity Date to April 1,
2020, and

® acknowledge that amendments will
be required to convert the non-
revolving loan facility into a long-term
loan facility.

There was no change in the basis of
the interest expense calculation
between the Agreements.

As at March 31, 2018, the FSRA
borrowed $17.4 million. Interest expense
amounted to $29,000.

4. REVENUE

Under the Financial Services Regulatory
Authority of Ontario Act, 2016 (Act), the
FSRA may make rules in respect of any
matter over which the Act gives authority
in respect of fees, sector assessments
and other charges (Fees).

As at March 31, 2018, sections of the Act
related to Fees, have received royal
assent, but have not yet been
proclaimed. Sections of the Act related to
Fees are expected to be proclaimed when
the FSRA becomes operational on April

1, 2019.

5. DIRECTOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Agencies & Appointments Directive
requires the disclosure of remuneration
paid to directors. For the year ended
March 31, 2018, director’s remuneration
amounted to approximately $350,000.
The Board of Directors are part-time
appointees and the amounts paid to the
Directors are established in an Order in
Council. During the year, the Board of
Directors took a more active and direct
senior role in the management of FSRA's
activities as there was limited staff on
hand to support the start-up activities.



Financial Services Regulatory Authority of Ontario

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2018

6. FINANCIAL INSRUMENTS

Interest rate risk:

Financial assets and liabilities are
not exposed to significant interest
rate risk due to their short term
nature.

Liquidity risk:

Exposure to liquidity risk is minimal
as the FSRA has sufficient cash to
settle all current liabilities.

7. RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) Metrolinx (an Ontario Crown Agency)

During the course of the year, the
FSRA entered into a sub-lease
agreement with Metrolinx.

The FSRA paid Metrolinx $215,000
related to rent and common area
costs.

(b) The Province of Ontario

During the course of the year, the
FSRA entered into the following
transactions with the Province of
Ontario:

() A $40 million Loan Agreement with

the Ministry of Finance to cover
initial administrative and operational
costs. During the year, FSRA
borrowed

$17.4 million and incurred loan
interest of $29,000.

(i) Seconded employees from the
Province to support its start-up
activities. During the year, the
FSRA reimbursed the Province
$218,000 related to salary and
benefit costs.

8. LEASE COMMITMENTS

FSRA has entered into an operating
lease agreement for office space and is
committed to operating lease payments
of $201,000 to March 31, 2019.

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to the year end, the Minister
of Infrastructure assigned the premise
lease at 5160 Yonge Street in Toronto
(currently occupied by the Financial
Services Commission of Ontario
(FSCO)) from Infrastructure Ontario to
the

FSRA, effective July 1, 2018. The lease
assignment covers the period July 1,
2018 to March 31, 2019.

The FSRA will receive funding from the
Minister of Finance to fully cover the
cost of the FSCO premise lease. Lease
payments for the assignment period,
including operating expenses and taxes,
are expected to amount to approximately
$3,900,000.
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST

\ RBC Investor &
1\2\116 Treasury Services

July 20, 2018
Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The accompanying financial statements of the Forest Renewal Trust (“Trust”) are the responsibility of the Ontario
Ministry of Natural Resources & Forestry (the “Ministry”) and RBC Investor Services Trust as Trustee for the
Ministry. The financial position and operations of the Trust, pursuant to the Crown Forest Sustainability Act, are
included in the financial statements, which have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards. The statements include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments. Management
has determined such amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented
fairly, in all material respects.

Management, with the assistance of the Trustee, maintains a system of internal accounting and administrative control
that is designed to provide reasonable assurance the financial information is relevant, reliable and accurate and that
the Trust’s assets are properly accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, a firm of independent external auditors appointed by the
Trust's Committee, whose report follows.

[ -

Peter He PF; Michael Keel ' /
Manager. uides and Silviculture Section Associate, Service Assurance, Client Operations*

*Representing RBC Investor Services Trust as Trustee for the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry, Forest
Renewal Trust.

RBC Investor Services Trust rbelts.com
155 Wellingtan Street West, 2™ floor
Toronto, ON, Canada MSV 3L3


http:rbclts.com
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KPMG LLP

Bay Adelaide Centre

333 Bay Street, Suite 4600
Toronto ON M5H 2S5
Canada

Tel 416-777-8500

Fax 416-777-8818

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Ontario Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry
and the Trustee of the Forest Renewal Trust

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Forest Renewal Trust,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018, the
statements of operations, remeasurement gains and losses and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG LLF, is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG Intemational”), a Swiss entity.
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP,
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Forest Renewal Trust as at March 31, 2018, and its results of

operations, its remeasurement gains and losses and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Kins 48
e

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

July 20, 2018
Toronto, Canada
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017

PUBLIC ACCOUNTS, 2017-2018

2018 2017
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,175,440 $ 2,722,958
Capital funding in transit (note 9) 2,380,191 -
Accrued investment income 588,874 604,605
Harmonized sales tax recoveries receivable 308,441 367,148
7,452,946 3,694,711
Investments at fair value (notes 5 and 6) 117,551,650 124,051,433

$ 125,004,596

$ 127,746,144

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 149,556 $ 144,422
Holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements 156,918 301,151
Due to Forestry Futures Trust (note 9) 663,434 590,504
969,908 1,036,077
Net assets:

Trust settlement 1 1
Net assets available for project disbursements 130,814,859 130,356,891
Accumulated remeasurement losses (6,780,172) (3,646,825)
124,034,688 126,710,067

$ 125,004,596

$ 127,746,144

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Trustee

Ontario Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry
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Statement of Operations

Year ended March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017
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2018 2017
Investment income:
Interest income (note 8) $ 3,068,910 $ 3,097,252
Net realized gain (loss) on investments (213,787) 737,930
2,855,123 3,835,182
Expenses:
Professional fees 393,993 423,672
Trustee and investment management fees (note 9) 302,298 277,121
Audit fee 87,521 78,544
Ontario Ministry of Natural Resources and
Forestry fees 70,313 70,313
854,125 849,650
Investmentincome over expenses 2,000,998 2,985,532
Forest Renewal capital funding transactions:
Forest Renewal charges 49,826,206 53,668,281

Forest Renewal disbursements

(51,369,236)

(52,314,723)

Net Forest Renewal capital funding

surplus (deficiency) (1,543,030) 1,353,558
Surplus for the year 457,968 4,339,090
Net assets available for project disbursements,

beginning of year 130,356,891 126,017,801

Net assets available for project disbursements,
end of year

$ 130,814,859

$ 130,356,891

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses

Year ended March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017
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2018

2017

Accumulated remeasurement losses,
beginning of year

Change in unrealized losses

$ (3,646,825)

$ (1,835,244)

attributable to investments (3,347,134) (1,073,651)
Amounts reclassified to the statement of operations:

Net realized loss (gain) on investments 213,787 (737,930)

Net remeasurement losses (3,133,347) (1,811,581)

Accumulated remeasurement losses,
end of year

$ (6,780,172)

$ (3,646,825)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2018, with comparative information for 2017
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2018 2017
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Investment income over expenses $ 2,000,998 2,985,532
Item not involving cash:
Net realized loss (gain) on investments 213,787 (737,930)
Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Decrease in accrued investment income 15,731 210,014
Decrease in harmonized sales
tax recoveries receivable 58,708 111,191
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities 5134 (33,051)
Increase (decrease) in holdback on Forest Renewal
disbursements (144,233) 21,127
Increase in due to Forestry Futures Trust 72,930 312,047
2,223,055 2,868,930
Capital activities:
Capital receipts - Forest Renewal charges 47,446,015 53,668,281
Capital disbursements - Forest Renewal disbursements (51,369,236) (52,314,723)
(3,923,221) 1,353,558
Investing activities:
Purchase of investments (96,381,675) (133,090,482)
Net proceeds of investments sold 99,534,323 130,629,825
3,152,648 (2,460,657)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,452,482 1,761,831
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 2,722,958 961,127
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 4,175,440 2,722,958

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2018

Reporting entity:

Pursuant to the Crown Timber Act, R.S.0. 1990, the Forest Renewal Trust (the "Trust") was
established by an agreement dated October 4, 1994 for the purpose of managing the funding of
silviculture expenses incurred after March 31, 1994 in respect of land where Crown timber has
been cut and such other terms and conditions as may be specified by the Ontario Ministry of
Natural Resources and Forestry (the "Ministry"). The Trust settlement amount of $1 was paid
to RBC Investor Services Trust (the "Trustee") (formerly known as "Montreal Trust Company of
Canada") by the Crown on that date. On October 17, 1997, the agreement was amended by
the First Amending Agreement to bring the Trust arrangement into accord with the Crown
Forest Sustainability Act ("CFSA"), 1994, S.0. 1994. The agreement was also amended by the
Second Amending Agreement on March 25, 1999, effective January 31, 1998, the Third
Amending Agreement with an effective date of April 1, 2000, the Fourth Amending Agreement
with an effective date of April 1, 2001, the Fifth Amending Agreement with an effective date of
April 1, 2003, the Sixth Amending Agreement with an effective date of April 1, 2009 and the
Interim Agreement Amending the Sixth Amending Agreement with an effective date of April 1,
2014. The Trust is domiciled in Canada and its registered office is 155 Wellington Street West,
Toronto, Ontario M5V 3L3. RBC Investor Services Trust is the Trustee.

Forest managers, including licensees, are required to pay forest renewal charges and are
invoiced for such charges by the Crown on a monthly basis according to the volume of wood
harvested and by tree species group. Forest renewal charges are required to be paid to the
Minister of Finance who transfers funds to the Trustee, who, in turn, credits the payment to the
specific forest management unit accounts in the Trust (note 10).

Throughout the year, forest managers submit claims seeking reimbursement for the costs of
eligible silviculture work completed. Forest managers, including licensees, have the option of
seeking reimbursement for expenditures they have incurred to carry out the eligible silviculture
work or they may request that the Trustee reimburse silviculture contractors directly for the
work that has been completed. The Trustee has no duty or obligation to assess the eligibility of
costs claimed as it is the responsibility of the Ministry.

The Trust was established by the Ministry to provide a funding mechanism independent of the
provincial treasury to fund specific forestry activities, as defined in the CFSA.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2018

25 Basis of presentation:

The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
public sector accounting standards ("PSAS").

(a) Functional and presentation currency:

These financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Trust's
functional currency. All financial information is presented in Canadian dollars and has been
rounded to the nearest dollar.

(b) Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PSAS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual
results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in
any future years affected.

(c) Liquidity format:

The Trust presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. Current
assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled within 12 months after the
reporting date and non-current assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled
more than 12 months after the reporting date.
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2018

3. Significant accounting policies:

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise indicated:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Interest:

Interest income, including interest income from non-derivative financial assets at fair value,
is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method on an accrual basis. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

Realized gain from financial instruments at fair value:

Realized gain from financial instruments at fair value includes all realized fair value
changes, but excludes interest and dividend income.

Fees and other expenses:

Fees and other expenses are recognized in profit or loss on an accrual basis when due.
Capital transactions:

Funds received for renewal and silviculture charges are deposited into the Trust and are
considered capital receipts at that time or when they are in transit from the Ministry of
Government and Consumer Services ("MGCS"). Since January 2018, funds received for
renewal charges are initially deposited into a MGCS account and then transferred to the
Trust. Reimbursements are considered capital disbursements when they are claimed from
the Trustee, as directed by the Ministry.

Capital receipts in transit include Forest Renewal charges received by the Ministry of
Government and Consumer Services before March 31, 2018, and were in transit to the
Trust account.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(e) Income taxes, harmonized sales tax ("HST") and goods and services tax ("GST"):

The Trust is considered to be an asset of the Crown and, as such, the Trustee, under the
advisement of the Ministry, has taken the position that the income earned within the Trust
is not subject to income taxes.

According to the Excise Tax Act interpretation, reimbursements paid to Forest License
Holders from the Trust are consideration for a taxable supply of silviculture services for
GST/HST purposes. As such, claims invoiced by forest managers, including licensees, are
subject to GST/ HST, and the Trust, through the Ministry, then files a recovery of an eligible
rebate. Accordingly, GST/HST is paid by the Trust and is accounted for with a net offset for
GST/HST recoveries.

(f) Financial assets and liabilities:
(i) Financial assets:

The Trust initially recognizes loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they
are originated. All other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value) are
recognized initially on the trade date at which the Trust becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Trust derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on
the financial asset in a transaction where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Trust is recognized as a separate asset or
liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Trust has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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FOREST RENEWAL TRUST

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):

The Trust has the following non-derivative financial assets: investments at fair value
and loans and receivables:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Investments at fair value:

Investments are designated at fair value if the Trust manages such investments
and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance
with the Trust's Statement of Investment Policies and Goals (the "SIPG"). Upon
initial recognition, attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as
incurred. Subsequent remeasurement of financial assets measured at fair value
are recognized in the statement of remeasurement gains and losses until realized,
which are then recognized in the statement of operations. The Trust's bond
portfolio comprises its financial assets at fair value. The Trust has elected that all
investments will be at fair value as they are managed and evaluated on the basis of
fair value.

Realized gains are recorded in the statement of operations, while unrealized
gains/losses are recorded through the statement of remeasurement gains and
losses.

Loans and receivables:

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise accrued investment income and cash and cash
equivalents.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and all deposits with original
maturities of three months or less.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Year ended March 31, 2018

3. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(iiy Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Trust becomes
a party to the contractual provisions in the instrument.

The Trust derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

4. Accounting changes

On April 1, 2017, the Trust adopted Canadian public sector accounting standards PS 2200,
Related party disclosures, PS 3420, Inter-entity transactions, PS 3210, Assets, PS 3320,
Contingent Assets, and PS 3380, Contractual rights.

PS 2200, Related party disclosures has been adopted by the Trust on a retroactive basis. The
standard defines a related party and establishes disclosures required for related party
transactions.

In accordance with the provisions of these new accounting standards, the Trust has reflected in
note 9 the required disclosures.

The adoption of the remaining standards did not result in an accounting policy change for the
Trust, and did not result in any adjustments to the financial statements as at April 1, 2017.
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5. Financial assets and liabilities:

The following table details the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
Trust at the reporting date:

2018 2017
Assets
Designated at fair value upon initial recognition:
Investment in:
Canada treasury bills $ 1,719,843 $ 1,522,994
Provincial treasury bills 5,213,056 8,308,181
Corporate discount notes under one year 4,584,072 7,637,713
Canada bonds 29,082,182 32,394,377
Provincial bonds 33,032,821 22,706,444
Corporate bonds and notes over one year 40,011,561 47,617,548
Pooled money market funds 3,908,115 3,864,176
117,551,650 124,051,433
Cash and cash equivalents 4,175,440 2,722,958
Capital funding in transit 2,380,191 -
Accrued investment income 588,874 604,605
HST recoveries receivable 308,441 367,148
7,452,946 3,694,711
Total assets $ 125,004,596 $ 127,746,144
Liabilities
Other liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 149,556 3 144,422
Holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements 156,918 301,151
Due to Forestry Futures Trust 663,434 590,504
Total liabilities, excluding net assets available
for project disbursements $ 969,908 $ 1,036,077

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost presented above represent due to Forestry
Futures Trust, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and holdbacks on Forest Renewal
disbursements.
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6. Fair value estimation:
Investments recorded at fair value on the Trust's statement of financial position are categorized
based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value.
Hierarchical levels, defined by Financial Instruments ("PS3450") and directly related to the
amount of subjectivity associated with inputs to fair valuation of these assets, are as follows:

e Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets;

e Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and

e Level 3 - inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data.

The valuation of the Trust's invested assets under the PS3450 hierarchy as at March 31 is as

follows:
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Total
Canada treasury bills and

other discount notes $ - % 11,516,971 $ 11,516,971
Bonds - 102,126,564 102,126,564
Pooled money market funds 3,908,115 - 3,908,115

$ 3,908,115 § 113,643,535 $ 117,551,650

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Total

Canada treasury bills and

other discount notes $ - $ 17,468,888 $ 17,468,888
Bonds - 102,718,369 102,718,369
Pooled money market funds 3,864,176 - 3,864,176

$ 3864176 $ 120,187,257 $ 124,051,433

There were no transfers between levels during the year, and no investments classified as
Level 3 were held at each reporting date or during each year.

The investments are actively managed according to the SIPG for the Trust dated October 2013,
which includes guidelines with respect to return expectations, asset mix, approved securities,
constraints and investment strategies.
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Financial instruments and associated risks:

The Trust may be exposed to financial risks as a result of its investment holdings. The Trust's
risk management practices include the establishment of investment guidelines, as outlined in
the SIPG and regular monitoring of compliance with these guidelines. The Trust manages the
potential effects of these financial risks on the Trust's performance by employing and
overseeing portfolio advisors who regularly monitor the Trust's positions, market events and
ensure that the investment portfolio is diversified in accordance with investment guidelines.

There have been no changes to exposures to financial risks, or the objectives, policies and
processes in place for managing and measuring the risks.

Eligible investments include Canadian entities, such as equities, bonds, debentures, notes or
other debt obligations of government agencies or public corporations, guaranteed investment
certificates, annuities, cash and money market securities. The Trust's fixed income securities
have a quality rating of "A" or better, as determined by a public bond rating agency.

(a) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment that it has entered with the Trust. Credit risk is generally higher when a
non-exchange traded financial instrument is involved because the counterparty for the
non-exchange traded financial instruments is not backed by an exchange clearing house.
The Trust's fixed income investments are primarily in Canadian-issued instruments and are
diversified among federal, provincial, corporate and other issuers. All transactions in
listed securities are settled or paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. There were
no significant concentrations of credit risk in the portfolio in either 2018 or 2017.
The maximum credit risk exposure as at March 31, 2018 is $121,073,464 (2017 -
$125,023,186), which includes investments, accrued investment income and other
accounts receivable.

The breakdown of the bond investment portfolio by credit ratings is as follows:

Credit rating 2018 2017
AAA 32% 37%
AA 30% 28%
A 38% 34%
BBB - 1%

100% 100%
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7. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued):

The breakdown of the money market investment portfolio by credit ratings at March 31 is as

follows:

Credit rating 2018 2017
R-1 (high) 32% 39%
R-1 (mid) 46% 61%
R-1 (low) 22% -

100% 100%

(b) Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market factors, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to an
individual investment, its issuer, or all factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
The Trust's investments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized through
income; all changes in market conditions will directly result in an increase or decrease in
net assets. Market price risk is managed by the Trust through the construction of a
diversified portfolio of instruments traded on various markets and across various industries,
which is actively managed by a third party administrator.

The Trust's investment in fixed income securities is sensitive to interest rate movements. In
general, as interest rates rise, the price of a fixed rate bond will fall, and vice versa. The
magnitude of the decline will generally be greater for long-term debt securities than
short-term debt securities. An immediate hypothetical 100-basis-point or 1% increase in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease net assets by
approximately $4,801,015 as at March 31, 2018 (2017 - $4,869,439).

The Trust also invests in pooled funds, which are tracked against the benchmark index,
Dex 91-day Treasury Bill Index. An immediate hypothetical decrease of 10% in the above
index will impact the Trust's investments by an approximate loss of $390,812 at March 31,
2018 (2017 - $386,418).
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7

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued):

(c) Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will be unable to meet its obligations as they come
due because of an inability to liquidate assets.

The Trust's fixed income portfolio trades in an active market and can be readily sold and
the Trust's pooled fund investments can be readily redeemed from the mutual fund
company. Although market events could lead to some investment becoming illiquid, the
diversity of the Trust's portfolios should ensure that liquidity is available for future
payments. The duration of investments are summarized below.

The following tables summarize the fair value of investments by maturity:

Less than 1-3 3-10  Greater than
2018 1 year years years 10 years Total

Canada treasury
bills and other

discount notes $ 11,516,971 § - % - % - $ 11,516,971
Bonds - 24,923,364 70,619,223 6,583,977 102,126,564
Pooled money

market funds 3,908,115 - - - 3,908,115

$ 15425086 § 24923364 $ 70,619,223 $ 6,583,977 $ 117,551,650

Less than 1-3 3-10 Greater than
2017 1 year years years 10 years Total

Canada treasury
bills and other

discountnotes $ 17,468,888 § - % - 3 - § 17,468,888
Bonds - 8,852,975 90,701,300 3,164,094 102,718,369
Pooled money

market funds 3,864,176 - - - 3,864,176

$ 21,333,064 $ 8852975 $ 90,701,300 $ 3,164,094 $ 124,051,433

The investments with maturities greater than 10 years represent callable bonds. Their first
call date occurs within 3 - 10 years.

The above investments have varying effective yields of 1.1% to 4.5% (2017 - 0.4% to
8.2%). Interest earned is accrued on a daily basis.
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7. Financial instruments and associated risks (continued):
(d) Fair values of financial instruments:

The fair values of the investments are as disclosed in note 6. The fair values of other
financial instruments of the Trust, which consist of cash and cash equivalents, accrued
investment income, harmonized sales tax recoveries receivable, due to Forestry Futures
Trust, capital funding in transit, holdback on Forest Renewal disbursements and accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, approximate their carrying values due to the short-term
nature of these financial instruments.

8. Interest income:
2018 2017
Interest income from financial assets at fair value $ 2,923,795 $ 2,968,214
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 145,115 129,038

$ 3,068,910 $ 3,097,252

9. Related party information:

The Trust is related to the Trustee, the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry and the
Ministry of Government and Consumer Services in terms of economic interest. The Trust is
related to Forestry Futures Trust in terms of common ownership.

The Trust enters into transactions with these entities in the normal course of business and on
normal trade terms. These transactions are measured at the exchange amount, which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties.

Trustee fees are assessed on the combined average book value of the Trust and Forestry
Futures Trust with the resultant charge apportioned to each trust on the basis of its average
book value. On the first $50 million in average book value, the Trustee fee is 0.05%; on the
next $50 million in average book value, the Trustee fee is 0.04%; and on the average book
value in excess of $100 million, the Trustee fee is 0.02%. Additional fees include fund
administration and reporting for the management unit accounts and master trust, transaction
charges and other charges. Total fees paid to the Trustee were $158,511 (2017 - $158,517).
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10.

Related party information (continued):

Management fees represent a fixed fee incurred by the Trust for account receivable
management activities performed by the Ministry. Total management fees paid to the Ministry
were $70,313 (2017 - $70,313).

As at March 31, 2018, $663,434 (2017 - $590,504) was payable to Forestry Futures Trust.

The Ministry of Government and Consumer Services receives silviculture charges on behalf of
the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry, which are subsequently transferred into the
Trust. As at March 31, 2018, $2,380,191 of capital funding was in transit from the Ministry of
Government and Consumer Services.

Capital management:
The Trust's capital is represented by its net assets.

The Trust comprises a main trust account ("Master Account"), management unit accounts, and
sub-accounts, where applicable for each forest management unit. All Trust charges received
and disbursements made are applied to the individual forest management unit accounts. Each
forest management unit's account balance is expressed in terms of units of the main trust for
the purposes of tracking its share of Trust assets. These units are of equal value and without
priority or preference.

Funds received are effectively held in the management unit account until the Trust valuation
date, which is the last business day of the month. At that time, the funds are transferred into
the Master Account in exchange for units. Disbursements made from each management unit
account are funded through the redemption of units of the Master Account using the most
recently determined valuation.

The value of each unit of the Trust is determined on a monthly basis based upon the net assets
of the Trust. The value of a unit is determined by dividing the aggregate value of net assets of
the main trust by the total number of units outstanding prior to the issuance and redemption of
units.

The main objective of the Trust is to sustain a certain level of net assets in order to meet the
mandate as set out by the CFSA. The Trust is managed by the Trustee and funds are
reimbursed to forest managers, including licensees, for eligible silviculture expenses under the
direction of the Ministry.
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10.

Capital management (continued):

The Trust fulfills its primary objective by adhering to specific investment policies outlined in its
SIPG, which is reviewed on a timely basis as needed. The Trust manages net assets by
engaging knowledgeable investment managers who are charged with the responsibility of
investing funds available in accordance with the approved SIPG. An increase in net assets is a
direct result of investment income generated by investments held by the Trust and excess of
receipts over disbursements made by the Trust.

Forest Renewal charges to the Trust are established by Trust policies, including funding by
harvest volume charges on Crown timber that are paid by the forest managers, including
licensees. The Trust is required to table annual financial statements with the legislature.
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June 25, 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Minister of the
Ministry of Infrastructure General Real Estate Portfolio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Ministry of Infrastructure General Real
Estate Portfolio (GREP), which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and the
statement of operations, accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes, which comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PwC Tower, 18 York Street, Suite 2600, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 0B2
T: +1 416 863 1133, F: +1 416 365 8215

“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Ministry of Infrastructure GREP as at March 31, 2018 and the results of its operations, the changes in its
net financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

%W@/M L~

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
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Financial assets

Cash (Note 3)

Trade and other receivables (Note 4)

AFP receivables

AFP Receivables under capital leases (Note 5)
Due from related party (Note 6)

Project receivables (Note 7)

Assets held for sale (Note 8)

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Liability for contaminated sites (Note 9)
AFP liabilities

Customers’ deposits

AFP Capital lease obligations (Note 5)
Due to related party (Note 6)

Net financial assets

Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 10)
Prepaids, deposits and other assets

Accumulated surplus

Contractual rights (Note 13)
Commitments (Note 14)
Contingent liabilities (Note 15)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
408,772 S 234,205
109,528 93,786
955,349 967,646
356,337 364,978

82 12,066
49,619 30,050
1,901 2,144
1,881,588 1,704,875
184,054 156,329
130,774 132,235
955,349 967,646
23,292 800
356,337 364,978
167,584 78
1,817,390 1,622,066
64,198 82,809
5,447,690 5,508,642
3,412 3,988
5,451,102 5,512,630
5,515,300 $ 5,595,439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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(in thousands of dollars)

For the years ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Budget Actual Actual
Revenue
Rent (Notes 6, 11) $ 858,145 $ 874,163 $ 851,015
Ministry project cost recoveries (Notes 6, 12) 247,838 224,334 172,058
Portfolio rationalization cost recoveries (Note 6) 19,616 16,607 18,350
Interest income 1,627 2,683 1,824
1,127,226 1,117,787 1,043,247
Operating expenses
Facilities (Notes 6, 11) 683,141 688,083 645,067
Capital repair program expenses (note 6) 65,550 100,213 85,453
Ministry project recoverable costs (Notes 6, 12) 247,838 223,733 171,898
Portfolio rationalization costs (Note 6) 19,616 16,607 18,189
General and administration 1,256 517 918
Interest 92,222 92,222 93,551
1,109,623 1,121,375 1,015,076
Adjustment to liability for contaminated sites (Note 9) 94 (2,857) (527)
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets (Note 10) 160,000 152,377 1,281
Gain on sale of assets held for sale (Note 8) 15,640 11,688 9,351
Easements and license revenue (Note 10) - 7,028 17,101
175,640 171,093 27,733
Operating surplus before amortization of tangible capital
assets and government transfers 193,337 164,648 55,377
Amortization of tangible capital assets (220,711) (225,581) (215,367)
Write-down of tangible capital assets (1,415) (5,598) (8,093)
Deficit before Government Transfers (28,789) (66,531) (168,083)
Government Transfers
Funding for capital repair program 68,313 68,313 68,313
Asset additions transferred in from ministries 92,359 164,045 93,574
AFP asset additions transferred in from ministries - 4,893 1,691
Other capital transfers 1,268 2,674 1,343
Funding for remediation of contaminated sites 8,896 4,318 4,579
170,836 244,243 169,500
Pan Am accommodation buildings transfer to PPAGS - - (156,363)
Assets transfers to ministries (18,471) (35,878) (12,275)
Realty sales revenue distribution to the Province (208,110) (197,798) (31,960)
Private sector rent and interest distribution to the Province (21,210) (24,175) (24,167)
(247,791) (257,851) (224,765)
Deficit $ (105,744) $ (80,139) $ (223,348)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Accumulated surplus, beginning of the year

Deficit

Accumulated surplus, end of the year

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Actual Actual
5,595,439 § 5,818,787
(80,139) (223,348)
5,515,300 § 5,595,439
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(in thousands of dollars)

Deficit for the year

Acquisition of tangible capital assets

Transfer of tangible capital assets from held for sale
Amortization of tangible capital assets

Gain on sale of tangible capital assets

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets

Transfer of tangible capital assets to ministries
Write-down of tangible capital assets

Decrease in prepaids, deposits and other assets

Decrease in net financial assets
Net financial assets, beginning of the year
Net financial assets, end of the year

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Actual Actual
(80,139) (223,348)
(232,567) (181,337)
(57) (3,274)
225,581 215,367
(152,377) (1,281)
178,896 1,403
35,878 168,638
5,598 8,093
(19,187) (15,739)
576 158
(18,611) (15,581)
82,809 98,390
64,198 82,809

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




MINISTRY OF INFRASTRUCTURE
GENERAL REAL ESTATE PORTFOLIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended March 31, 2018 and 2017
(in thousands of dollars)

1-159

Operating activities

Deficit for the year

Changes in non-cash items
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets
Gain on sale of assets held for sale
Write-down of tangible capital assets
Adjustment to contaminated sites liability
Transfer of capital assets from ministries
Transfer of capital assets to ministries

Changes in non-cash working capital balances
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
Decrease in AFP receivables
Decrease in AFP receivables under capital lease
Decrease in due from related party
(Increase) in project receivables
Increase in accounts payable and other liabilities
Remediation of contaminated sites
(Decrease) in AFP liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in customers’ deposits
(Decrease) in AFP capital lease obligation
Increase/(Decrease) in due to related party
Decrease in prepaids, deposits and other assets

Capital activities
Proceeds from sale of tangible capital assets
Acquisition of tangible capital assets

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposition of assets held for sale

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
$ (80,139) (223,348)
225,581 215,367
(152,377) (1,281)
(11,688) (9,351)

5,598 8,093

2,857 527

(168,938) (95,265)
35,878 168,638

(15,742) 11,006

12,297 11,400

8,641 8,209

11,984 18,213

(19,569) (1,372)

27,725 1,065

(4,318) (4,579)

(12,297) (11,400)

22,492 (5,670)

(8,641) (8,209)

167,506 (4,594)

576 158

47,426 77,607

178,896 1,403
(63,629) (86,072)
115,267 (84,669)

11,874 13,456

174,567 6,394
234,205 227,811

$ 408,772 234,205
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(in thousands of dollars)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of organization

The Ministry of Infrastructure (MOI) General Real Estate Portfolio (GREP) consists of certain realty assets
owned and/or leased by Her Majesty the Queen, in Right of Ontario, as represented by the Minister of
Infrastructure and managed by Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation (Infrastructure Ontario). Other real
estate assets and liabilities in MOI’s portfolio are not reflected in these statements. GREP is a component of MOI,
carved out for the purpose of managing its real estate portfolio and is not a standalone legal entity.

GREP generates revenue through providing real estate accommodation and project management services to
ministries, crown agencies and other government organizations for their program needs through MOI owned and
third party leased real estate assets. GREP revenue also includes some incidental income from private sector
tenants.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for
governments as established by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada (Canadian public sector accounting standards).

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost includes the expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of an asset or leased
premises, such as material, labour and capitalized interest.

Capitalization of costs associated with the construction work in progress (CIP) cease when the asset is ready for
its intended use or occupancy.

Land includes land acquired for transportation infrastructure, parks, buildings and other program use, as well as
land improvements that have an indefinite life and are not being amortized. Land excludes Crown lands acquired
by right.

Buildings include administrative and service structures. Alternative Financing and Procurement (AFP) buildings
and AFP assets under capital leases represent the value of AFP projects completed and transferred from
sponsoring ministries.

Premises leased from third party landlords through commercial operating lease agreements are excluded from
Tangible Capital Assets.

CIP includes new buildings under construction and alterations to existing buildings.

All tangible capital assets, except CIP, land and land improvements, are amortized on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The useful lives of GREP’s tangible capital assets have been estimated as:

Buildings, AFP Buildings and AFP assets under capital leases 20 to 40 years

Improvements made to third party leased premises Lower of useful life of the
asset or term of lease

Yard works, including airport runways, parking lots and a dam 12 to 40 years
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The carrying value of tangible capital assets are written down to the asset’s residual value if it can no longer
contribute to the Province’s ability to provide service and the impairment is permanent in nature, or when the
value of the future economic benefit is less than the carrying value of the tangible capital asset. Write-downs are
recognized in the statement of operations and are not reversed.

Interest capitalization
The cost of tangible capital assets constructed or developed by the Province includes interest costs incurred by
the Province during the development or construction period.

All interest incurred by the Province to fund the capital projects during the construction period is capitalized to
tangible capital assets. There is no capitalization threshold.

The interest rate used in calculating the interest cost incurred during construction in any given year is the
Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) of the Province. The Ontario Financing Authority (OFA) provides
the appropriate WACC. For fiscal year 2017-18, the WACC is 3.11% (2016-17 — 3.53%)).

Capitalization of interest ceases once the asset is ready for use, even though the asset may be put to use at a later
date. If construction of the tangible capital asset is terminated or deferred indefinitely before completion, the
costs capitalized to date are expensed, unless there is an alternative use for the tangible capital asset.

AFP receivables and liabilities

AFP receivables represent the amount owed from the sponsoring ministries on account of the construction and
other costs incurred by the consortium for completed projects and projects under construction at the financial
statement date. GREP invoices ministries and recovers these receivables as payments are made to the consortium
as per the terms of the project agreement.

AFP liabilities represent the amounts owed to the construction consortium for the value of AFP projects
completed and those under construction at the financial statement date. These amounts are paid to the consortium
as per the terms of the project agreement, which consists of a partial payment at substantial completion and the
remaining amounts through monthly service payments.

Construction costs for AFP projects under construction are recorded in the accounts of sponsoring ministries.

AFP assets under capital lease

MOI has entered into contractual agreements with third parties on behalf of sponsoring ministries to finance,
design, build and manage certain assets, which meet the criteria for, and are classified as, capital leases. Value of
AFP assets acquired under capital leases are recorded as tangible capital assets and a lease liability is recorded
as AFP capital lease obligations at the present value of the minimum lease payments at substantial completion.
Lease payments are receivable from sponsoring ministries and are recorded as AFP receivable under capital
leases. The terms and conditions are the same for both AFP receivables under capital leases from the sponsoring
ministries and the AFP capital leases obligation to the construction consortium.

Assets held for sale

Assets that meet the following criteria are categorized as held for sale: (i) the asset has been authorized or
committed to be sold; (ii) is in a saleable condition; (iii) is publicly seen to be available for sale; (iv) has an active
market with a plan in place for sale; and (v) is reasonably anticipated to be sold to a purchaser external to the
Province within one year of the financial statement date.

Assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of carrying value and net realizable value. Cost includes all costs
of acquisition and capitalized improvements on the property, net of amortization.
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Liability for contaminated sites
Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical,
organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when all the following criteria are met: (i) an
environmental standard exists; (ii) contamination exceeds the environmental standard; (iii) GREP is directly
responsible or accepts responsibility; (iv) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and (v) a
reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The estimated liability includes costs directly attributable to the remediation, containment or mitigation activities
and cost of post remediation maintenance and monitoring in order to bring the site up to, and maintain it at, the
current minimum standard for its use prior to contamination. The cost of remediation is calculated based on the
best available information and is reviewed and revised on an annual basis.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized in the period in which the event that generates the revenue occurs.

Rent consists of income earned from leasing of GREP owned and third party landlord leased properties to
government ministries and private sector tenants as well as the majority of operating funding allocations received
from MOI. Rental revenue includes base rent, parking revenues and recoveries from ministries for operating
expenses, property taxes, third party landlord lease costs, monthly service payments for AFP properties as well
as, tenant specific requirements over and above the standard services provided. Free rent, lease increments and
fixturing allowances related to third party leased buildings are recognized on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease.

Ministry project cost recoveries include reimbursement of costs from ministries for realty projects requested by
ministries. Revenue is recognized as services are provided. Ministry project cost recoveries also include
recoveries from MOI for specific GREP program costs and are recognized as the associated expenses are
incurred.

Interest income represents interest earned on cash and cash equivalents and is recognized on a time proportion
basis.

Gain on sale of tangible capital assets and gain on sale of assets held for sale reflects the proceeds received net
of the cost of the associated assets sold in the period.

Easements revenue represents income earned from granting third parties the right to use GREP properties for a
specific purpose for a specified long term or in perpetuity.

Operating expenses
Operating expenses are recorded as incurred under the accrual basis of accounting.

Facilities operating expenses include rental expenses paid to third party landlords, expenses incurred for the
operation and maintenance of owned properties, including utilities, property taxes, facility management fees paid
to Infrastructure Ontario.

Capital repair program expenses represent costs incurred on major repairs and maintenance for properties which
are not recovered from tenants through rent.

Ministry project recoverable costs include costs incurred for real estate projects requested by ministries. All costs
are recoverable from the respective ministry and are recognized based on value of work completed. Ministry
project recoverable costs also include specific program costs which are fully recovered from MOI.
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Portfolio rationalization costs are costs incurred to bring specific assets identified for sale to a marketable
condition. The costs are expensed as incurred. Costs include property planning, marketing, environmental
assessment, zoning, permits, and settlements. Portfolio rationalization costs also include strategic asset
management fees paid to Infrastructure Ontario.

Interest expense relates to the interest on debt outstanding on AFP liabilities including AFP assets under capital
lease obligations, which are recovered in full from the sponsoring ministries.

Government Transfers

GREP adopted the new Public Sector Accounting Standards PS 3420 — Inter-entity transactions (PS 3420) and
PS 3430 Restructuring transactions (PS 3430) effective April 1, 2016. As a result of adopting PS 3420 and PS
3430, funds received from MOI’s capital allocations as well as the value of assets, asset improvements and
betterments funded by other ministries or government organizations which are capitalized to GREP’s tangible
capital assets are recorded in the statement of operations. Similarly, the transfer of tangible capital assets to
ministries or other government organizations as well as the payment of funds collected by GREP from the private
sector, to the Consolidated Revenue Fund in accordance with the requirements of the Financial Administration
Act, are recorded in the statement of operations.

Use of estimates

The above policies require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the statement of financial
position and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Major areas where
management made subjective estimation include those relating to useful lives of tangible capital assets, accruals
for value of work completed on projects in progress, allowance for doubtful receivables, liabilities for
contaminated sites and accrued expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective April 1, 2017, GREP adopted Public Sector Accounting Standards PS 3320 Contingent assets (PS 3320) and
PS 3380 Contractual rights (PS 3380). GREP conducted a review of its contracts and leases to identify contractual
rights to receive future payments which will result in revenue and assets. GREP has disclosed contractual rights arising

from such contracts or agreements in this financial statements under note 13. There were no contingent assets as at
March 31, 2018.

3. CASH

Cash is held in operating and high interest savings accounts.

4. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables include receivables from government and private sector tenants for charge for
accommodation (CFA), AFP monthly service payments (MSP), project receivables related to cost recoveries from
ministries, HST rebate receivables, tenant inducements receivables arising from amortization of free rents over the life
of the lease, and other receivables including those from private sector tenants. Allowances for doubtful accounts are
recorded for specific third party balances, which are determined uncollectible to reduce their values to the amount
expected to be recovered. The balance consists of the following:
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March 31, March 31,

2018 2017

CFA receivables $ 25,806 $ 17,519
AFP MSP receivables 8,352 15,307
Project receivables 21,255 25,234
Private sector and other receivables 11,257 3,597
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,041) 931)
HST receivables 13,275 12,380
Tenant inducement receivables 30,624 20,680
$ 109,528 $ 93,786

5. AFP RECEIVABLES UNDER CAPITAL LEASES AND AFP CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS

March 31, March 31,
2018 2017
Due March 2040, repayable in blended monthly
installments of $1,026, interest at 5.19%, secured by the
tangible capital assets under the AFP project. $ 161,043 $ 164,876
Due November 2039, repayable in blended monthly
installments of $1,244, interest at 5.11%, secured by the
tangible capital assets under the AFP project. 195,294 200,102
$ 356,337 $ 364,978
Future minimum lease payments under capital leases are as follows:
| Amount
2018-19 $ 27,233
2019-20 27,233
2020-21 27,233
2021-22 27,233
2022-23 27,233
Thereafter 457,561
Total minimum lease payments 593,726
Less: Imputed interest (237,389)
$ 356,337

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The two related parties of GREP are MOI and Infrastructure Ontario. Infrastructure Ontario, an agency of MOI,

manages the real estate portfolio for a management fee.

MOI funds GREP for part of the shortfall between its operating and capital needs and the income generated by
operations. Operating funding allocations are provided for routine and ongoing expenses incurred throughout the year
including strategic advisory fees, project management fees, as well as operating and maintenance funding for corporate

space, vacant and/or non-leasable properties and space leased to non-government tenants.

Capital funding allocations includes funding for specific projects within various real estate programs such as the

Capital Repair Program and the Rightsizing Program (Portfolio rationalization).
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For the year ended March 31, 2018, GREP received the following amounts from MOI as operating and capital funding
allocations, which were recorded as revenue and government transfers.

March 31, March 31,

2018 2017

Operating funding allocations from MOI $ 44,762 $ 45,641
Capital funding allocations from MOI 105,599 94,380
$ 150,361 $ 140,021

Due from related party consists of $82 (March 31, 2017 - $12,066) due from Infrastructure Ontario related to a project.
The prior year outstanding balance was due from MOI on account of CFA, project services, operating and capital
funding allocations, net of private sector rent and property sales revenue payable to MOI for remittance to the
Province’s Consolidated Revenue Fund. The amounts are due on demand, unsecured and non-interest bearing.

Due to related party of $167,584 (March 31, 2017 - $78) consists of outstanding balances due to MOI for remittance
to the Province’s Consolidated Revenue Fund on account of private sector rent and property sales revenue net of
receivable from MOI for CFA, project services, operating and capital funding allocations as at March 31, 2018. Due
to related party balance at March 31, 2017 was payable to Infrastructure Ontario for certain expenses paid on behalf
of GREP associated with the management of the real estate portfolio.

Infrastructure Ontario manages the real estate portfolio and provides project administration and management services
for a management fee. Infrastructure Ontario fees included a facility management fee at 15% of the operating and
maintenance budget for the owned portfolio, an operations management fee for AFP assets in service as well as a
project administration and management fee, all of which were recorded as facilities expenses. In addition,
Infrastructure Ontario charges GREP a strategic asset management fee recorded as portfolio rationalization costs.

March 31, March 31,

2018 2017

Facility management fees $ 32,291 $ 32,166
AFP operations management fees 725 713
Project administration and management fees 8,304 7,808
Strategic asset management fees 10,440 10,936
$ 51,760 $ 51,623

7. PROJECT RECEIVABLES
Project receivables of $49,619 (March 31, 2017 - $30,050) consists of accrued project costs incurred up to March 31,
2018, but yet not invoiced. These amounts are invoiced to the clients on receipt of corresponding vendor invoices.

8. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Assets held for sale are real estate assets that have been declared surplus to the needs of the Province and have been

approved for sale by an Order-in-Council. It is reasonably anticipated that assets held for sale will be sold outside the
reporting entity within one year of the balance sheet date. Assets held for sale are summarized below.
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March 31, March 31,

2018 2017

Land $ 1,671 $ 1,946
Yard works 327 49
Buildings 88 5,804
2,086 7,799

Accumulated amortization (185) (5,655)
Net book value $ 1,901 $ 2,144

Fifteen properties (March 31, 2017- 11 properties) with a carrying value of $186 (March 31, 2017 - $4,105) were sold
for net proceeds of $11,874 (March 31, 2017 - $13,456) generating a net gain on sale of $11,688 (March 31, 2017 -
$9.,351).

9. LIABILITY FOR CONTAMINATED SITES

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when all the following criteria are met: (i) an
environmental standard exists; (ii) contamination exceeds the environmental standard; (iii) GREP is directly
responsible or accepts responsibility; (iv) it is expected the future economic benefits will be given up; and (v) a
reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The sources of contamination specific to individual sites may include petroleum hydrocarbons, volatile organic
compounds, metals, inorganics, herbicides, pesticides, industrial waste, construction debris etc. Contamination was
assessed primarily based on Phase I and Phase II Environmental Site Assessments (ESA) under the Ontario
regulations. In addition, GREP considered a range of key risk factors for each site including potential or historic human
habitation or operations, potential offsite contamination, impacted media, potentially contaminating activities, areas
of potential environmental concern and the contaminants of concern.

Remediation means the improvement of a contaminated site to prevent, minimize or mitigate damage to human health
or the environment. Remediation involves the development and application of a planned approach that removes,
destroys, contains, or otherwise reduces availability of contaminants to receptors of concern.

GREP manages a database of sites with known existing or potential contamination, developed using historical
information it has collected on its properties through past development and investigation. GREP continues to update
the database on an ongoing basis with new information and developments. Based on the current available information,
there were 76 sites (March 31,2017 - 79 sites) identified with known existing or potential contamination, of which 37
sites (March 31, 2017 - 38 sites) have met the liability recognition criteria.

Of the 37 contaminated sites that met the liability recognition criteria, five are not owned by MOI. The ministry
became responsible for remediation of these sites by operational law due to forfeiture to the Crown. MOI has directed
GREP to undertake the responsibility for remediation of these sites.

Significant judgment and estimation were involved in determining whether the properties met the recognition criteria
under this standard including management’s views with respect to the expectation of whether future economic benefits
would be given up. In assessing the properties against the criteria, consideration was given to several factors including
the type, extent and location of contamination. In addition, significant judgment and estimation were made by
management in determining the amount of the liability for these properties that met the recognition criteria under the
standard, including the type of remediation activities that would be required and the associated costs.

Assumptions used in estimating the liability for remediation include land use scenarios, ecological impact and human
health risk. The liability is based on the minimum estimated costs for remediation of contamination to bring the site
to the minimum acceptable environmental standards for its use just prior to contamination, in addition to ongoing
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monitoring and management of the site. During the year ended March 31, 2018, GREP incurred $4,318 (March 31,
2017 - $4,579) of remediation costs and accordingly, reduced the associated liability for the specific contaminated
sites. New information received during the year resulted in recognizing a liability of $2,680 for two additional sites,
an increase of $1,275 in the estimated liability for one site, and the extinguishment of liabilities for three sites for a
total of $1,098 upon determination that no further remediation activities were required for those sites. The net
adjustment to liability for the year was $2,857.

Management’s best estimate of the amount required to settle or otherwise extinguish the liability for the 37 sites
(March 31, 2017 - 38 sites) on an undiscounted basis is $130,774 (March 31, 2017 - $132,235).

10. TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

AFP Assets
Yard- AFP under

Land works Buildings CIP  Buildings Capital Lease Total
Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2017 781,402 59,584 4,121,750 317,688 2,042,100 502,382 7,824,906
Additions 159,260 (1,454) 154,983 203,352 2,963 1,930 521,034
Transfer out from CIP - - - (288,467) - - (288,467)
Disposals (26,519) - - - - - (26,519)
Transfers to ministries (15,788) (64) (47,647) - - - (63,499)
Retirements and write-downs (5,300) (4,965) (2,819) - - - (13,084)
Transfer (to)/from held for sale 89 277) 3,272 - - - 3,084
Balance as at March 31, 2018 893,144 52,824 4,229,539 232,573 2,045,063 504,312 7,957,455
Accumulated Amortization
Balance as at April 1, 2017 - 15,865 1,995,711 - 208,343 96,345 2,316,264
Additions - 7,161 154,155 - 51,637 12,628 225,581
Disposals - - - - - - -
Transfers to ministries - 23) (27,598) - - - (27,621)
Retirements and write-downs - (4,965) (2,521) - - - (7,486)
Transfer (to)/from held for sale - (81) 3,108 - - - 3,027
Balance as at March 31, 2018 - 17,957 2,122,855 - 259,980 108,973 2,509,765
Net book value at March 31, 2018 893,144 34,867 2,106,684 232,573 1,785,083 395,339 5,447,690
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AFP Assets
Yard- AFP under Capital

Land works Buildings CIP  Buildings Lease Total
Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2016 819,499 50,684 4,027,891 403,266 2,040,494 502,297 7,844,131
Additions 3,713 8,818 134,934 175,208 1,606 85 324,364
Transfer out from CIP - - - (143,027 - - (143,027)
Disposals (46) - (208) - - - (254)
Transfers to ministries (40,309) - (26,552)  (117,759) - - (184,620)
Retirements and write-downs (560) - (23,012) - - - (23,572)
Transfer (to)/from held for sale (895) 82 8,697 - - - 7,884
Balance as at March 31, 2017 781,402 59,584 4,121,750 317,688 2,042,100 502,382 7,824,906
Accumulated Amortization
Balance as at April 1, 2016 - 12,575 1,874,778 - 156,777 83,750 2,127,880
Additions - 3,270 147,936 - 51,566 12,595 215,367
Disposals - - (132) - - - (132)
Transfers to ministries - - (15,982) - - - (15,982)
Retirements and write-downs - - (15,479) - - - (15,479)
Transfer (to)/from held for sale - 20 4,590 - - - 4,610
Balance as at March 31, 2017 - 15,865 1,995,711 - 208,343 96,345 2,316,264
Net book value at March 31, 2017 781,402 43,719 2,126,039 317,688 1,833,757 406,037 5,508,642

14 properties (March 31, 2017 - 12 properties) with a carrying value of $26,519 (March 31,2017 - $122) were disposed

of for net proceeds of $178,896 (March 31, 2017 - $1,403) generating a net gain on sale of $152,377 (March 31,2017

- $1,281). Easements and license transactions completed for the year generated $7,028 (March 31, 2017 - $17,101).
11. RENT AND FACILITY OPERATING EXPENSES

Rent and facility operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 were as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2018 2017

Rent
Base rent and recoverable operating expenses - owned $ 336,228 $ 339,910
Base rent and recoverable operating expenses - leased 316,112 296,665
MSP for AFP properties - government tenants 169,309 163,258
Private sector revenues 22,550 21,495
MOI grants for operating expenses 21,660 21,879
MOI grants for project fees 8,304 7,808

$ 874,163 $ 851,015
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Facility operating expenses
Operating and maintenance expenses $ 128,563 $ 125,819
Utilities 73,512 76,149
Property taxes 47,907 33,013
Facility management fees to Infrastructure Ontario 32,291 32,166
Third party leased property expenses 314,437 296,727
Operating cost - AFP facilities 77,087 69,707
IT systems and non-recoverable project costs 5,982 3,678
Project administration fees to Infrastructure Ontario 8,304 7,808

$ 688,083 $ 645,067

12. MINISTRY PROJECT COST RECOVERIES & MINISTRY PROJECT RECOVERABLE COSTS

13.

Ministry recoverable projects include capital and non-capital projects, related to GREP assets initiated by ministries
for their program requirements, the costs of which are fully recovered from the ministry requesting the work. Ministry
project cost recoveries also include recoveries from MOI for specific GREP program costs.

CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS

GREP has entered into contracts with various third parties for property leases and property sales which are expected to
generate revenues and assets in the future periods. Property leases are lease contracts entered into with certain third party
tenants in MOI owned or leased buildings. Occupancy agreements with provincial government tenants are determined to
be not in the nature of contracts and hence future revenues and assets from such agreements are not considered contractual
rights. Contractual rights also include contracts entered into with non-government parties for sale of properties in a future
period. Contractual rights as at March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Property leases Sale of properties

and easements

2018-19 $ 16,840 $ 26,225
2019-20 14,975 -
2020-21 13,314 -
2021-22 6,267 -
2022-23 4,669 -
Thereafter 15,878 -

$ 71,943 $ 26,225

14. COMMITMENTS

GREP has entered into contractual obligations and does so on a continuing basis for building leases, construction contracts
and construction and operation management of AFP assets. The building leases are lease contracts with third party
landlords to provide accommodation to the ministries and government organizations. Commitments for construction
contracts are determined based on management’s estimate of costs to be incurred over the constructio